
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members 01 
Ws Veritas Inha & Loeistics Private Umited 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanl,jine, financial statements of Ws Veritas Infra & Loeistics Private Umited 

{"the Co.ll1pany") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss, (statement of chane,es in equit1,))i and statement of cash flows for the 1,)ear then ended, and notes to the 

financial statements, indudine, a summan] of sienificant accountine, policies and other explanaton] 

information 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordine, to the explanations e,iven to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements e,ive the information required b1,) the Act in the manner so required and 

e,ive a true and fair view in confonnit1,) with the aCCOtUltine, principles e,eneralltj accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Compan1,) as at March 31, 2019, and profit/loss, (chane,es in equittj)ii and its ca.sh flows 

for the tjear ended on that date. 

BtlSis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditine, (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Compautj in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued b1,) the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India toe,ether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have . 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD. GOREGAON (W). MUMBAI · 400 062. 

TEL : 2872 0555/2873 9939. CrN No. AAC-2949. shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Responsibility of Manaaement for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that 8ive a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance, (chan8es in equitlj)iii and cash flows of the Companlj 

in accordance with the accountin8 principles 8eneralllj accepted in India, includin8 the accountin8 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibilitlj also includes maintenance of 

adequate accountin8 records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe8uardin8 of the assets of 

the Companlj and for preventin8 and detectin8 frauds and other irre8ularities; selection and application 

of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accountin8 policies; makin8 juJements and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and desi8n, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operatin8 effectivellj for ensurin8 the accuraclj and completeness of the 

accountin8 records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that 8ive a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparin8 the financial statements, mana8ement is responsible for assessin8 the Companlj's abilitlj to 

continue as a 80in8 concern, disclosin8, as applicable, matters related to 80in8 concern and usin8 the 

80in8 concern basis of accountin8 unless manaBement either intends to liquidate the Companlj or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseein8 the companlj's financial reportin8 process 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a -whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hi8h level of assurance, but is not a 8uarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will alwaljs detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualllj or in the 

a88re8ate, thelj could reasonabllj be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Report on Other Leea! and Reeulatory Requirements 

1) As required blJ the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, '2016 ("the Order"), issued blJ the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

'2013, we eive in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paraeraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order, to the extent applicable. 

'2) As required blJ Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

We have soueht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowleJee and belief were necessatl] for the purposes of our audit. 

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required blJ law have been kept blJ the CompanlJ so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books 

1. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with blJ this 

Report are in aereement with the books of account 

c. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compllJ with the Accountine Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, '2014. 

d. On the basis of the written representations received frmn the directors as on 31st March, '2019 taken on 

record blJ the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, '2019 from beina 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 ('2) of the Act. 

e. We are not required to report on the adeqt1aclJ of the internal financial controls over financial 

reportina of the CompanlJ and the operatine effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report 

in "Annexure B". 

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, '2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

accordin8 to the explanations aiven to us: 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

i. The Company does not have any pendine litieations which would impact its financial pOSition in 

its financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accountine standards, 

for material foreseeable losses, if any, on lone-term contracts indudine derivative contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor :Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES ill 
Chartered Accountants 

o.109420W 

bir S Baeasrawala 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 

Place o£ Sianature: Mumbai 

Date: 30/04/201 9 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

"ANNEXlJR.EA" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Referred to in paraaraph 1 under the headin8 'Report on Other Le8al & Re8ulatoll] Requirement' of our 
report of even date to the financial statements of the Companlj for the ljear ended March 31, 2019, we 
report that: 

1) (a) The Companlj has maintained proper records showin8 full particulars, indudin8 quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been phljsicalllj verified blj the mana8ement in a phased manner, 
desi8ned to cover all the items over a period of three ljears, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable havin8 re8ard to the size of the companlj and nature of its business. Pursuant to 
the pro8ram, a portion of the fixed asset has been phljsicalllj verified blj the manae,ement 
durin8 the ljear and no material discrepancies between the books records and the phljsical 
fixed assets have been noticed. 

(c) Ie title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the companlj. 

2) (a) The manaaement has conducted the phljsical verification of inventoll] at reasonable in tervals. 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on phljsical verification of the inventoll] as compared to books 
records which has been properllj dealt with in the books of account were not material. 

3) Accordin8 to the information and explanations 8iven to us, the Companlj has 8ranted unsecured 
loans to wholllj owned subsidiaries covered under section 189 of the Act. 

(a) The terms and conditions on which loan has been 8ranted to the borrower Compal11.] covered 
under Section 189 of the Act is not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Companlj. 

(b) The principal amount is repaljable within two ljears from the date of receipt of such loan. The 

borrower has been re8ular in paljin8 interest on loan. 
(c) There is no overdue amount of more than 90 daljs in respect of loan 8ranted to the partlj listed 

in the re8ister maintained under section 189 of the Act. 

4) In our opinion and accordin8 to the information and explanations 8iven to us, the companlj has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
loans, investments, 8uarantees, and securitlj. 

5) The Companlj has not accepted anlj deposits from the public and hence the directives issued blj 
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or anlj other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with re8ard to the deposits 
accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified blj the Central 
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on 
blj the companlj. 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
7) (a) According to inlorl11dtion and expidndtions given to liS dnd on the .bdsis olour exan1iI:1ation 01 

the .books 01 dccount, dnd records, the COl11pdng hds .been generdiig reguidr in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues includin8 Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, 
Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Dut-y of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other 
statu tOrt) dues with the appropriate authorities. Accordin8 to the information and explanations 
8iven to us, 110 undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 
2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) Accordin8 to the information and explanation 8iven to us, that there are no dues of Income 
Tax and Sales Tax / Value Added Tax have not been deposited by the Company on account 
of disputes. 

8) In our opinion and accordin8 to the information and explanations 8iven to us, the Company has 
not defaul ted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken am) loan eitber from 
financial institutions or from the 80vernment and has not issued am) debentures. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and e information and explanations 8ivel1 by the 

mand$ement, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer includin8 debt instruments and term Loans. Accordin8ly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 8ivel1 b\j the 
mand$ement, we report that no fraud by the Compam) or on the compam) by its o££icers or 
employees has been noticed or reported durin8 the year. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 8ivel1 b\j the 
mand$ement, the mand$erial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated b':) the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the Compan':) is not a Nidhi Compan\j. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

13) our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section1TI and 188 
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accountin8 standards. 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 8iven by the 

mana8ement, the company has made preferential allotment of equity shares durin8 the year 

under review and has complied with all the requirements of section 42 of the Compi es Act, 

2013. 

(a) The amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised b':) the 

Compan':). 
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15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 8iven hy the 
manaeement, the compan-y has not entered into an-y non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordin8l-y, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Compan-y and hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the compan-y is not required to be re8istered under section 45 IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordin8l-y, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Compan-y and hence not commented upon. 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES ill 
Chartered Accoun tan ts 

0.109420W 

abbir S Ba8asrawala 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 
Place of Si8nature: MlUl1bai 

Date:30/04/2019 
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"ANNEXUR.E B" TO mE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON mE 
STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF liAZEL lvfERCANTILE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF 
SECTION 143 OF TIiE COlY1P ANIES ACT, 2013 ('11iE ACT") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reportin8 of Veritas Infra &' l08istics ("the 
CompamJ") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone finanCial statements of 
the Compan-y for the -year ended on that date. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Compan-y's manaBement is responsible for establishin8 and maintainin8 internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reportin8 criteria established b-y the Compan-y considerin8 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reportin8 issued b-y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the desi8n, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operatin8 eHectivel-y for ensurin8 the orderl-y and efficient conduct of its business, 
includin8 adherence to compan-y's policies, the safe8uardin8 of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accurac-y and completeness of the accountin8 records, and the timel-y preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibilit-y is to express an opinion on the CompamJ's internal financial controls over financial 
reportin8 based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportin8 (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditin8, issued b-y ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued b-y the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we compl-y with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
finanCial reportin8 was established and maintained and if such controls operated ef£ectivel-y in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performin8 procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequac-y of the internal 
financial controls s-ystem over financial reportin8 and their operatin8 effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reportin8 hlcluded obtainin8 an understandin8 of internal financial 
controls over financial reportin8, assessin8 the risk that a material weakness exists, and testin8 and 
evaluatin8 the desi8n and operatin8 effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judeement, includin8 the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suHicient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the CompanlJ's internal financial controls slJstem over financial reporline,. 

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

A companlJ's internal financial control over financial reportine, is a process desie,ned to provide reasonable 

assurance ree,ardine, the reliabilitl,) o£ financial reportine, and the preparation o£ financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with e,eneralll,) accepted accountine, principles. A companlJ's internal 
financial control over financial reporline, includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratellJ and fairllJ reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the companlJj (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessarlJ to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with e,eneralllJ accepted 
accountine, principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the companlJ are beine, made onllJ in 
accordance with authorisations of manaaement and directors of the compant]j and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance ree,ardine, prevention or timellJ detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

INHERENTLIWTATIONSOFINTERNALFINANCIALCONTROLSOVERFINANCIAL 
REPORTING 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportine" includine, the 
possfuilitt] of collusion or improper manaaement override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud mat] occur and not be detected. Also, projections of anl,) evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reportine, to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reportine, malJ become inadequate because of chane,es in conditions, or that the dee,ree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

OPINION 

In our opinion, the Compant] has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls st]stem 
over financial reportine, and such internal financial controls over financial reportine, were opera tine, 

effectivellJ as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reportine, criteria established 
bt] the CompanlJ considerine, the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportine, issued blJ the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES liP 
Chartered Accoun tan ts 

n No.109420W 

habbir S Bae,asrawala 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 

Place o£ Sie,nature: Mumbai 

Date: 30/04/2019 
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VERlrAS INFRA !\ND LOGI STICS PRIVArE UNilrED 

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 31st March 2019 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 
Cost of Materials Consumed 
Manufacturing Costs 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 

_ Emloyee Benefit Expenses 
Depreciation alia Amortisation Expenses . -- -
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
Prior Period Items 

Total Expenses 

Profitl (loss) before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 

Profitl (loss) before tax 

Tax Expense 
a) Current tax 
b) Income Tax Adjustment 
b) Deferred tax 

Total Tax Expense 

Profit! (loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 
- Items that will not be reclassified to proFit or loss 
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 
- Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to proFit 

or loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Earnings per equity share 
a) Basic 
b) Diluted 
The accompanying notes Forms Integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates llP .....-l:::::::=::::::::""" 

Portner 

Membership No.: 039865 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30/04/2019 

Notes 

12 

21 
22 
23 - -
3 
13 
14 

15 

,- , , > 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

6,63,716 6,63,716 

6,63,716 6,63,716 

- -
-

- -
- -
-

10,90,742 - . 
366 624 

25,463 9,23,607 
- -

11,16,571 9,24,231 

(4,52,855) (2,60,515) 

- -

(4,52,855) (2,60,515) 

- -
- -

- -

- -

(4,52,855) (2,60,515) 

- -
- -

- -
- -

(4,52,855) (2,60,515) 

(45.29) (26.05) 
(45.29) (26.05) 

WIOtI ~~'---_ 
anJay S J\garw\1 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended 31st March, l019 

Particulars 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

Profits before Tax 

Add/(Lessl: 
Inleresl & Finance Charges 

Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 

Worklnc Capital Chances 
(Increasel/Decrea.e In Trade Receivables 
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term loans and Advances 

Increase/iDeaeasel In 6ther Current Llablllde. 
(Increasel/Decre;s. In Working Capital 

Cash Used (-111+) generated for operating activities (A) 

8 Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
Proceeds from disposal of Fixed Assets 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities I B ) 

C Cash Flow From Flnanelne Activities 

(Repayment all/Proceeds from 5hortTerm Borrowings 
Repayments of long Term BorrOWings 
Interest Paid 

Net Cash Used In Flnanelng Activities (C) 

o Net Increase 1+)/ Decrease 1-) In cosh and cash eqUivalent 
Cash equivalent I A+B+C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalent OpenIng Balance 
Cash and Cash Equivalent Closing Balance 

Opening Balances represented by: 
cash and Bank Balances 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(I) Balances With Banks 
01) Cash on Hand 

Other Bank Balances 
Q) Earmarked Balances with Banks 
(ii) Against Margin Money for SlBC 

Closing Ba~nces represented by: 
Cash and Bank Balances 
CaSh and Cash Equivalents 
(i) Balances with Banks 
Oil Cash on Hand 

Other Bank Balances 
(i) Earmarked Balances wilh Banks 

Qi) Against Margin Money for SLBC 

The accompanying notes forms Integral part of the Financial Statements 
As per our report of even date attached 

For 5h.bblr and Rita Associates LLP 

Partn~r 

Membership No,: 039865 

Place: Mumbal 
Date: 30/04/2019 

For the year period ended 31st 

March 2019 

366 

(16,372) 
(17470) 

13,61,454 
(366) 

« r 

(4,52,855) 

10,91,108 

6,38,253 

(33,842 

6,04,411 

13,61,088 

19,65,499 

10,U,206 
2,04,797 

9,04,777 
1,07,429 

10,12,206 

1,00,669 
1,04,128 

2,04,797 

(Amount in Rs.) 

For the veilr period ended 31st 
March 2018 

624 

l,90,B19 
(16,372) 
(25,194) 

(22,81,240) 

32,89,996 
(624) 

(2,60,515) 

624 

12,59,891) 

1.49,253 

11,10,638) 

(22,81,240) 

32,89,372 

8,97,494 

l,14,7U 
10,12,206 

56,984 
57,728 

1,14,712 

9,04,777 
1,07,429 

10,12,206 

o 
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... ,~ ... ~ . ..... ~. , .. ':,,;/ 
'~::'::~ •. ,::;;.:;::> Shashlkant Bagarla 

Direclor 

DIN: 03555669 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2019 

1 Corporate Information 

To carryon in India or elsewhere the business of infrastructure activities such as development, maintenance and 

operations of all types of infrastructural projects or facilities including Port related activities, development of Port 

and other related activities thereto, transportation of all types, Management and Collection of Tolls, Storage & 

warehousing infrastructure & facilities, Water management, Waste Management, Industrial Park, Agricultural Park, 

Bio Technology Parks, Amusement Parks, such other parks and zones as may be permitted by the concerned 

authorities, Commercial and Social development, redevelopment and maintenance, Housing Projects, Power, 

Petroleum and natural gas, mining and related activities, Technology related infrastructure, manufacture, buying, 

selling, dealing, importing, exporting of components &materials or any other utilities or facilities used by and/or for 

infra~tructure projec_t~ and to buy, sell, lease, ~ub-Iease any type. of immovable a~d movable properties, and to act 

as Builders, Developers, Contractors, Sub-Contractors, Civil Engineers, Sunieyors, Town Planners, Architect, 

Consultants, Commissioning agents, Estimators and Valuers for designing, engineering, erection, laying, 

construction, commissioning & maintenance of infrastructure projects or facilities and to enter into any contracts, 

agreements, memorandum of understandings, joint ventures, arrangements or such other mode of contract with 

_ Government of India, State Governments, municipal or local authorities, bodies corporate, persons or such other 

authorities, on such manner or methods for the purpose of carrying out the foregoing objects a nd to obtain from 

them the rights of all sorts for assistance, privileges, charters, licenses, approvals, no-objects and concessions, as 

may be necessary or incidental in the connection." 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards ('ind 

AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with the 

requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which includes Standards notified-under 

the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as "Previous GAAP". 

These Financial Statements are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and 

liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

(i). Derivative financial instruments 

(ii). Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 

instruments) 

Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. The unit of 

presentation is indian rupees in lakhs. 

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a). Current I Non- Current Classification 

The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current! Non-Current 

classification. 

An Asset is treated as current when it is: 

a). Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

b). Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c). Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

d). Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other Assets are classified as Non-Current. 
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A Liability is current when: 

a). It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

b). It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c). It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

d). There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other Liabilities as Non-Current. 

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in Cash 

and Cash Equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

b). Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumr ted depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost 

and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful life prescribed in Schedule \I of 

the Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

The company has in an earlier financial year carried out assessment of useful lives of these assets and based 

on technical justification, different useful lives have been arrived at in respect of above assets. The 

justification for adopting different useful life compared to the useful life of assets provided in Schedule II is 

based on the business specific environment & usage, consumption pattern of the assets, past performance of 

similar assets and peer industry comparison duly supported by technical assessment by a Chartered Engineer. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 

at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

c). Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys 

a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has determined V,h"+h,,,~ +h~ ~~~~~n~...,ent 

contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transitiol 

Company as a lessee 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
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A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term. 

d). Intangible Assets and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation /depletion and impairment 

loss, if any. 

Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bri nging the asset to 

its working condition for the intended use, ne"Cch-arges on foreign exchange contracts and"adjustments arising 

from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Intangible assets of the company comprises of Software which is amortized over a period of 5 years. 

e). Finance Costs 

Borrowing Costs includes Interest, amortisation of ancilliary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement 

of Borrowings and exchange differences arisiog. from Foreign Currenc-y Borrowings to the extent they are 

regarded as an adjustment to the Interest Costs. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are 

incurred. 

f); Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, 

if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other overheads net of recoverable taxes 

incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. The valuation of inventories is 

done on FIFO Method. 

g). Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant 

and equipment and Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount 

of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount 

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal 

and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 

using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk 

specific to the assets. 

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimate of recoverable amount. 
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h). Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

i). Employee Benefit Expenses 

(ij. Short Term Employee.Benefits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering the service are classified as Short 

Term Employee Benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related 

service. 

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the 

services. 

(ii). Post Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified 

monthly payments to Employee State Insurance Scheme, Provident Fund Scheme and Government 
administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable employees. The Company's contribution is recognised as 
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation-on 

Projected Unit cost method made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/(Iosses) are recognised 

directly in other comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after deducting 

the fair value of the plan assets. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability 

(asset) in respect of a defined benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by 

the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the beginning of 

the annual reporting period. 

Re-mE urement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other 

Comprehensive Income. 

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of 

such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 

accumulated at the reporting date. 

Other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non­

accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial 

valuation using projected unit credit method. 

j). Tax Expenses 
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The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit 

and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In 

which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance 

sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is 

convincing evidence that the company will pailncome Tax under the normal provisions during the spe~iffed 
period, resulting in utilisation of MAT Credit. In the Year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be 

recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants' of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of 

Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date 

and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 

evidence to the effect that the Company will utilise MAT Credit during the specified period. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 

profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 

which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 

substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at 

the end of each reporting period. 

k). Foreign currencies transactions and translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction . 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 

closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest 

costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of 

qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the 

exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or 

loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 

of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (Le., translation differences on items whose fair 

value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement 

of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on 

the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss. 
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I). Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company 

and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

Revenue from Sale of Goods 

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to 

the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the conside ration received or 

receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts. 

-~Revenue from Electricity Generation 

Sale of Power is recognised at the point of transmission of electricity generated from Windmill. 

Interest Income 

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Dividends 
Dividends are recognised when the company's right to receive the payment has been established. 

m). Financiallnstruments 

(i). Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value 

through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by 

both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (fVTPl) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 

Equity Investments 

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost. 

Other Equity Investments 
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For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company ma"kes such election on an 

instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the 

Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the 

statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative 

gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value 

with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 

assets) is primarily de recognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

a). The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

b). The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received c~sh flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass­

through' arrangement; and either 

(i). the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(ii) . the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass­

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 

transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 

the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The 

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations 

that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 

Company could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECl) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a). Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, and bank balance 

b). Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

c). Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result 

from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue 

receivables' in these standalone financial statements) 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 

a). Trade Receivables and 

b). Other Receivables 

le application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 

~ cognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 

~cognition. 
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 

whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not 

increased significantly, 12- month ECl is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 

increased significantly, lifetime ECl is used . If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 

improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the 

entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECl are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of 

a financial instrument. The 12-month ECl is a portion of the lifetime ECl which results from default events 

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 

contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 

original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

a). All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, ca II and similar 

options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life 

of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining 

contractual term of the financial instrument. 

b). Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the 

contractual terms. 

c). Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 

ECl is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the 

balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, 

the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

(ii). Financial liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 

appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 

overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tra ding and financial 

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 

classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 

category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that a re not designated 

as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedd ed derivatives are 

also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments . 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 

such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind . AS 109 are sat.j.sfied. For liabilities 

designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 

These gains/ loss are' not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the 

cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through 

profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de recognised as 

well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition a nd fees or costs 

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 

and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the de recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 

difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

(iii). Derivative Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments- forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency 

risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 

financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

(iv). Fair Value Measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 

e presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
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a). In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b). In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lia bility 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 

when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 

that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Com-pany uses valuation techniques that -are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 

data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the 

use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements 

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 'markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 

the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 

basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 

explained above. 

n). Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 

with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

0). Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit after tax for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

pl. Segment Reporting 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating 

Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of 

, _:J/arious performance indicators by business segments. The Company conclude that it operates under one 

',I :-rl'~eporting segment. 
· .. ·/1 

, 'J. J . -~\ '> . ./~' 
"'.!:... .. 5/ 
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Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 

business segment. 

Segment Policies 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting pol icies adopted for 

preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable 

costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 

2.3 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The pr€paration of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgement, 

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the 

accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 

require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a). Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property plant and equipment / intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful 

lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and 

residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be 

recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's 

historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technolo! :al changes. The 

depreciation / amortisation for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous 

estimates. 

b). Recoverability of trade receivable 

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining 

whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the 

counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be 

taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 

c). Provisions 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future 

outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably 

estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement 

to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and 

liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances. 

d). Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount 

is the higher of an asset's or fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 

other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or exceeds its recoverable amount, 
... _r';"'- _ . ... ---- ... 

the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. ./'.. ._; >'::::... 
. . . " .:. \\ 

./ '.. .. : ' '\ ,. 
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if 

no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

e). Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 

cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 

. impairment cakulation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward 

looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

2.4 First Time Adoption of Ind AS 

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being restated. 

Accordingly the impact of transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as at 1st April 2016. The 

figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever required to comply 

with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule III. 

Exemptions from Retrospective Application 

(i). Business combinations 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind AS 103, 

"Business Combinations" to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 2016 (the "Transition 

Date"), pursuant to which goodwill/capital reserve arising from a business combination has been stated at the 

carrying amount prior to the date of transition under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the 

exemption for past business combinations to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint 

ventures consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

(ii). Fair value as Deemed Cost 

The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at its 

carrying value at the transition date except for certain class of assets which are measured at fair value as 

deemed cost. 

(iii). Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 

The Company has elected to measure Investments in SubSidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates at Cost 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2019 

I. PROPERTY, Pt:ANT AND EQUIPMENT 

AS at 1st Apral, 

2017 



VERITAS INFRA AND l OGISTICS PRIVAT£ LIMITED 

Note5 to Fil1~nci~15tatemel1 t 5 for the per iod el1ded 31st M~rt h, Z019 

5 CASH AND CASH {QUIVAlENTS 

P."kll~ 

_ C,o.h ~nd cash Equlvalenu 

'" 
B. la",,~, witlrBanl<s 

In Curr~nt Acco""t~ 

I~) O*' OIl~nd 

.... 
~ and Otsh £quiv1If:(1t~ .. ~ PIlI ~ment of ca5h now. 

6 tOANS - CURRENT 

Umecu,ed Con~ldorl!d Good unless otMrwl~. " .. tad 
toans and Advances 

1 OTHER CURRENT ASSfB 

A~ ~t "' ... 
31M~f("lOI9 31 MOtr<h 2.018 

" 

- " - . " 

1,00,669 9,04,777 

1,04,128 1,07,429 

, .m 10,:1'2,206 

lJ)t;797 10,U.,lQ6 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE L1MITED-

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2019 
8 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particula rs 

Authorised Share Capital 

Equity Shares of' 10 each 

(CY 10,000 shares of' 10 each) 

(PY 10,000 shares of' 10 each) 

", ' 1:",tal 

Issued SubsFribed and Paid Up 

Equj1Y Shares of' 10 each 

(cY 10,000 shares of ' 10 each) 

(py 10,000 shares of' 10 each) 

As a t 

31 March 2019 . 

1,00,000 

, 1,00,OOJ). 

1,po,OOO 

'Ce' 

B.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below: 

B.2 The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares: 

VERITAS INDIA LTD 10,000 100 

9 OTHER EQUITY 

(iii). Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 

10 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - NON CURRENT 

Deposil-VPPL 

Unsecured loan from Holding Company 

11 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - CURRENT 

10,000 

150,00,000 

33,36,642 

As at 

31 March 2018 

1,00,000 

1,00,QOii: 

100 

(1,99,653) 

_ (2,60,515) 

150,00,000 

46,98,096 



I 
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VERITAS INF RA L\NO LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2019 

12 OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 

. 

Lease Rent 

_Tota l 

13 FINANCE COSTS 

~ - " . ~ . ',0 
j p,artic~lar$ 

,~ . "~,~' ." ~ --" ,~ 

- . ~ -
On Term Loans 

- Interest on Term loan 

- Interest on Car loan 

On Working Capital loans 

. Bank Interest (Refer 24.1) 

• Bank Charges, Commission and others 

~ 
, 

if~.I .. . ~ ..... '- .Z<. " ~ .. .. . 

14 OTHER EXPENSES 

Audit Fees 

ROC Fees 

Rent, Rates and taxes 

legal and professional fees 

Professional Tax 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Interest & Penalty on lOS 

14.1 PaymenttoAuditors as: 

Statutory Audit Fees 

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

(i) . Profit /(loss) attributable to Equity 

Shareholders of the Company 

r-

."'-,. . 

(ii) . Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 

(Basic) 

(iii). Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 

(Diluted) 

(iv). Basic Earnings per Share 

(v). Diluted Earnings per Share 

(vi) . Face Value per Equity Share 

As at As at 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

6,63,716 6,63,716 

6,63,716 6,63,716 

... ' '. .' 
'AS a! As'at 

I ~ ,{j1 March 2'019 ~ ,- ~ '''' 
,;¥~;~arch2018 : 

I fA- .c 

""" . .."" .....- • ...., • ~ :<-

-, 

366 

....... - .. 
_ .. - ,-,' I~",,~~ c..;. ~,,~, 

5,440 

4,343 

12,180 

2,500 

1,000 

(4,52,855) 

10,000.00 

10,000.00 

(45.29) 

(45.29) 

10 

· 

· . 

· 
624 

~ :i.f!iK' 

4,120 

3,600 

8,45,223 

7,080 

2,500 

2,500 

58,584 

(2,60,515) 

10,000.00 

10,000.00 

(26.05) 

(26.05) 

10 



16 Related Party Disclosures: 

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the relat ed parties 
as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 

a) Related Parties: 

(i) Subsidiary Company: NIL 

(ii) Associates: NIL 

(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

• Sanjay Agarwal- Director 

• ShashikantBagaria- Director 
(iv) Enterprise over which KMP exercise control 

• Veritas (India) Limited 

a) Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2019: 

Unsecured Loan NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Taken (P.Y.) (3429946) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

Unsecured Loan 1361454 NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Repaid (P.Y.) (140000) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

Rent Received from NIL 663716 NIL NIL NIL 
VPPL (NIL) (663716) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

b) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2018: 

Unsecured Loan 3336642 NIL NIL NIL NIL 
(P.Y.) (4698096) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

Deposit Received 1,50,00,000 
From VPPL (1,50,00,000 

(P.Y.) ) 

NIL 
(3429946) 
~361454 

(140000) 
663716 

(663716) 

3336642 
(4698096) 



17 Contingent liabilities: NIL 

18 Auditor's Remuneration: 

For services as 
-Total 5,440 4,120 

19 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium 
enterprises as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises 
is based on management's knowledge of their status. The Company has not received any 

- intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the MSMED Act 20 06. Hence, 
disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, together w ith interest 
paid / payable as required under the said act have not been given. 

20 In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, t h e value on 
realization of the current assets,loans &advance~, deposits, in the ordinary course of. 
business will not be less than the value stated in the Balance sheet. The lia bilities on 
account of supply of goods & services are also not more than the value of liabilities except 
written off on account of shortage/rate Difference/contract performance/Qua lity Issues 
etc. 

21 Leases: 

a) The Company has taken commercial spaces on operating lease basis. The lease rentals 
are payable by the company on a monthly/quarterly basis. 

b) Future minimum lease rentals payable as at 31/03/2018 as per the lease agreements: 

Particulars For the year For the year 
ended ended 

31/03/2019 31/03/2018 
i) Not later than one year 8,95,930 8,45,223 

""~ 
~ 



22 Previous year Comparatives: 
These Financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Previous year's figures have been regrou ped, 

reclassified wherever necessary to correspondence with the current year's 

classification/ disclosures. 

. As per our Audh Report of even date attached 

For Shabbir& Rita Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N:- 109420W 

Partner 
Membership No.- 039865 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/04/2019 

For and on Behalf of the Board 



OPINION 

MlblNC MfiHTA & CO 
CHART RED ACCOUNTANTS 

lND PENDENT ATJDlTORS' IlIWOIlT 

FINAN tAL. TATEMENT. 

We h ve udited thc uccornp!lflying 'fifianeial siuiG!tlonta of Mis erlt:l8 Polychem 
PrIvate Limited ("the Company"), which cO!l1prl~e !he 531i1MB ShllGt fIB at March 31. 
201!1. the Statilinent of Front nd Loss (inc1udin Othcr CQmpn;hr:n~ive Inco1rtii) iilid 
the Cash Pluw S\iilliltlel1t lind Statemcnt of honges in Equity for the yellr then ended 
nnd n SUllllllUry ofsi nific nt 1¢!:QUl1ti!1g p9lioie~ ulid oihc;r oxplnnatory Informlltion. 

In O\lf opinion iVid I Lhii be~t four Illformollon nnd according to the cl{plnn lions 
gIven to us. the [ore8tlid lnd AS fimwoi,' l stutBITir,llllS giv tho information required 
by ~hG Act itl Illii llliltUliif 80 required lind give II true and fnir view in conformity with 
the Rccounting prillciple~ enemlly lIilc;eplEd ill India including Ihu Iud AS, of tile 
stutii of nffaira of the Company liS II! Mnrch 31, 20 9, IlDd it . profit mcj it~ r,:osh IIt)w~ 
nnd the eh 11!£C!8 in eqlli!)'liJr Ihl} year Glided Oli that dato, -

. I 0 ' OPINION 

Wo conducted our audit in f1l;cordtmco with Ihe !iIIldllrdN on AudlUng ( As) 
spcoitied unc;!ef ~f.let iQrl 143(10) of tilu Companies Act, 201 3, Our re:;ponsibililie~ 
undel' tilOSC SInndord5 nre fYrlhl:r de~¢rib!ld Iii the Auditor's Responsibilit1es for the 
Audit of th Flllnnelal Stotcments seclion of our report, We lire inuGI'iGtlderll of the 
Compl!l1Y in (1!;\iQrc;laIiCo with tho od of Ethics Issued by the In titule of h~J1er!lc1 
Aceountnnts of Indio together will! the ethical rotlulromcl\ts that Dr l'clevont to OUl' 

audit of lho finllnd i.l Biateillunts under the provision of the Comp,mie~ Ml, 201 3 
and the Rules th 'reYmjer. lind we have full1Ued our Otllilf ethlenl Y08ponsibilitics ill 
uCeQrdul cil vllh thcBe requircmentll nnd the Code of" thlo~, We believe that Iho 8udl[ 
evidence we buve obI inr:d i~ sufl1r,;iCnt and spproprlniil to provide basis for our 
oj!llftlan. 

22, V C VANIl( NIWAS CURUKUl.l.ANi TII.AK O"J), ~1ol"'TKOPAR a: ... ,. MUMIiAI 0400077 



MILtNC MEHTA 8tCO 
CHARTER .1' ACCOUNTANTS 

AD , MA RS 

KGY audit mattors nro those m tiers thnt, in our professional judgmenl, were of mQ~l 
5i nificlI.llce in O\,lC (Iudil gf the I1fiuneinl statements of the current pel'iod, hese 
matters were addressed in the context of our lIudit of the t'inll!1Qilll liluliini Ilis as a 
whole, and Iii fbrmlng our oplnl n thel'eon, nnd we do not provide [! ~ep[!l1Ite opinl91J 

on these ill Itter·. 

We !Jave det rmlncd Ulat there Ie lID key Iludil mllU~rs to cgmmUnlcale In our 
r~pOrt 

tU'; . 1'O~ . mILITY 0 ' M 
T TEMENTS 

, FOR TilE l'JNAN tAL 

The Compnny's DOllnl gt OiruolQI'ii Is responsible fur the mnttcrs stated in SelltiQ!'i 
134(S) of the omp nics Act, 201 3 ("the Act") with tilSpilCl to ilie preparation of 
11i(l~1) Ind A linanelal statements thnt give II true !!Ild tilir view 01 th lfiillleial 
position. fin!!Ilci 1 pcrtormUflcc jpel\,ldlng Other omprchcnsive Im:ome, Cllsh flows 
Qf lhe ompany and changes in quit)' of the cOmpt![!y i!'i IlQ\)ordailce WIUI Ule 
nccoullting principles enerully ucceptlld in India neludlng the Accounting Stnndnrds 
(Ind AS) ~pilclliild under Scellon 133 of the Act, re Id with Rule 7 of the _ Qillll3nl!;s 
(Accounts) Rule, 2014. 

Tliis rli~piln~lbl1lly also Includcs Dlnintennnce of udeql,!!l!e !!!;ooul1ling (Goords In 
ceord nec with the provi~lQ!1~ of ill AOl for safeguarding the nssets of the ornpuny 

and for preventing !!Ild deteQtins 'fnud~ Ilrid other trregularlUes; selection nnd 
IIPP!leullufi of appropriate accounting policies; mnkinB j\,ldgrneills and Gstimat s Ulat 
urc re I 'onnblc lind prudent; alld desIgn, Implement tion nd m intenimce Q ' ildllquai­
Internal finnnci I controls. Ihul were operallng etrccUvely fur ensuring the nccurnoy 
find ctlmpllitilness of the nceounting, recordIJ, relevanl to ihc prllparailon nnd 
pn:s~ntlltion of the (l'nd AS) I1nanellll statements that ive 11 try~ tlml (ilir view lind 
life free nom m tcrill l mi stlllemeni. Whether due io /'raud or crror. 

In prepnrin the l1mmokl\ slaiemllllts, management is responsible for !~ 'e~~irt¥ the 
_il1li l)!IliY'& abilIty to continue 8S going conQern, di~dQ~inB, a~ 1lJ'llliCllbIG, mnttlll'S 
reluted 0 goin~ I;oneen'! and using UlG going concern bnsili of IIQCO mting I!nleS~; 
Illanugeffliillt glUier Intends to liquidllte the 'amp/,I!ly Or 10 Ceuse 0PilfIlLlollS; or has 
no reulistic tliternlltiVI;I but to do so. Those Bonrd of DirectQrs tire nJ~(1 np Mlble fa 
oV\;i'iIllGlng thll ompnny'& flllilllCilll repOrlina ptQec)g~. 

aa, V e V"~/K NIWAII GURuKub U.N! ILAK ROA!), (l:HAlXQP"1t IEAIrT MUMIIAI 04000'7 



AUDITOR I RE "PO 

MILINC MEHTA Be CO 
CHARTEREC ACCOUNTAN"5 

Ollr objective"- lire to Qbtllin r(;!l~onl1blll ii~6W'1lf\Ce about whether Ule [nd AS finnncini 
8iatt:lUcnt8 118 !l whole nrc free from mllterinl nll:llllulemr:nt, whether clue to froud or 
ilttQf, lind to lsaua 1m auditor's report III t includes our opinion. Rr,:u~ol1\1blll 
IlSllunmce is !! high Il,lvel of M~Lirilncll. but I~ noi Ii guarantee that an udit conducled 
tn Rccord nee with S s wil! UIWIIYS (Mee! U Iflarrlal ml8Bralcmcnt wbon It exJsts. 
MIs!liatcmcntB can arise from II ud. or error Ilml IIr!;) ~o!i~ idilf(id mfit",r!aJ Ir, 
individuully or in tlls aggl'Ogaill; they could reasonably be expeoted to inilu neil iha 
economic deoi~ion~ or IJ~C!~ rakeli 01\ Ulil basis of these Ind A- fm ncilll 8t!!tement~. 

lUtPORT ON O'l'j:lER LECAL AND REGU TORY REQ IRE)VJENTS 

As req\lired by the ol11paniils (Audlior's Report) Ordt:r, 2016 ("the rdef"), llis\led 
by Ul(: CcntfllJ Goverrtnlent oflmli!1 illtill'fil~ of sub. SiMI on (11) ofscctlon 143 of the 

olrtpahllis Act, 2013. we give In Ule Annex\lre slltemert Oil Ihe Ihlltiil~ Kpilelfled 
in pnrlrilph3 Ilrlg 4 (If Iii - rflar. to UIC cxtentappliCllble. 

J. As req\lired by Sec lion 143( ) of Ih · AOl. we roport Ulat: 
II) We haVe ~ought and obtained all mil informntion nnd expilllllltl n~ which 

to the best of om knowlr:r.lse Illld !;II;lIl$1' Wilro neoessary for Ule purposes of 
our nudii: 

b) In our opinion, proper bnoks ot' iiccoum as required by IlIw hnv~ been kept 
by ihe ompnny so fur as it ppeuru from Q\lr examinuiion of U\OSC books. 

c) The !!!ulIoe sheet, ihe Statement of Profit nnd oss inol\ldlng t,i thllf 
·ompfehcn~ive Inr,lQmi; grid tha _ iI~h Flow Statement and Chnnee8 in 
qulty d It with by this Report !ire iri iig!'iiemCnl with ihe books of 

IlCCO\i1}t , 

0) In O~J Opiriion, til afor said Ind AS finaneiul st temcnlS c mply with the 
Accounting tnndnrds ·peoifir;g irnd$t ~iictlon III of the Act, leud with 
Ryll;l 7!) Ill", (ji1ipalltil$ (Accounts) Rules, 2014 incl\loins Inti AS; 

c) On III bu.qi. of th written represent lionll receiveg ffom tha directors liS 

on Murch ll, 2019. tii~en!,1ri record by the Bonrd ofDin:c on, non", of ih 
dlrr;ctOfS Is dJsqualified as on Murch 1,20)9, trom being appointed os 
direolor ill lelin~ o!'!':l~'"tlon 164 (2) of the Act. 

22. V C VANIK N1WAa U UI<UL \J.NI'f1 K RQ..,o. GHATKOIOAft IL\8 MUM AI-40007 



MII..!NO M HTA80:CO 
CHARTEREOACCOUNTANTS 

o With re pcct to th dequncy of the internnl fimmciul controls over 
flnonclill reporting of Ule company and the operating effectiveness of such 
cf,) IUrf,)IK, reibr tf,) OUt sepumte, R~pf,)rt in AnnexUre B 

g) WIUl reape t to the other matters [0 00 Included In the Audlior's Rll})Ort In 
iltCOri,l llliljl! ~vi th Rule 11 01 Ule i'l!npunie~ (A~lcl it !lml Aydilor~) RIJIr;s, 
2014, in our opinion nd to the besl of our information IlDd according to 
tho cxplan Ilons given iO us: 

<i) The f,)mp!lny h!i~ dbolo~l!d the impuot of pending lili 8Lliiun~ On 

its finill1l.1inl postion in it~ 1ND A limmQiru ~YI!emenls 

(li) he ompnuy It a mnde provision, Ill> requln:d under the 
ilpplieabl- law or accoUfiting IIlli11dnrds, for III terlal foresc~ hie 
I 08~ii~, if Wi}', and liB rcqulrod on long-term !;ontraels IncludIng 
derivlllive QontruQI~, 

(iii) There wele no nmounts wWeh were required to be lTnnaferred, 
to the Investor ·duiiution and I'toteeLion' und by the Company. 

Miliad Mehtl! 

;Z;t, V C VAN!K NIWA QURUKUL I"I.NltTI!-AK ROAO. GttATKOr>A~ A5T MUM!!AI 0400077 
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MIL.INO MEHTA & CO 
CHARTEREC ACCOUNTANTS 

T 

Relerm l to hi pllnigrflph I U1idaf ~\a hoodIng 'Report on thlif egal &. Re ulntol}' 
RequIrement' of our reporl of even dnte to thefinunciul s!lItem~nls of the OlTlpany 
for the YOM ended M reh 1,2019, we rlolpolt that: 

I) () The ompnny has mnintnincd proper rer;ord~ Khowilig L'ull Pllrtirlulnrs. 
induding qliii.fl tiuiliva detaIl and situation of fixed !lBBetll; 

b) The Fixed Assels hnve belln phY8icIl lly vllrifili:d by \he mll(lrlgemant In ii 

phased m!ll1l1cr, designed to e{)ver rul the item8 OVer!! Deriod of lhnr 
years, which in our opinion, is l"e!l onnble mlVinQ reg(lrd Ie) In" s i~e of i.h 
compnny nnd nnture of its bll.'liness. PIIJS\1iu1L to -Lhe program, u POi'ilOfi of 
the fl)(cd 3sel hOB been Dhysi(;l!!!y \lerll1ed by III fllanag mill'lt durIng III 
yeM md no mpteri!') d[mlrapl1riuie~ b-I\"'i!ill'l tho books recorda nnd the 
physicu) lixed i.is~ .. (il~ have bcGI'I noticed. 

(e) The title deeds of i!11mt)Vulilri propilrtlil8 ill'C hold In tile n rue of the 
compnny. 

2) (iI) 'rh~ riiuoagalnilnt has conducted the physicol verifle lion of inventoi')l tlf 
t"coBonnblc intcrvoJs. 

(b) The di~crepun"ie~ nOliii¢9 On phY8iC~1 vlirlllea!1ofl of the Inventory DS 
compared !o bQ(1ks recQrtl~ which has been properly dilnlt with in Ihe 
bl!Qk~ of account WGI'ii flOt mllterlal. 

3) AccordIng 10 the informlltion II1d e)(plnnlltion~ given to us, th~ ompany hilS 
not granted unsecured IOlllll! to wholly Owried !lubHidiari s eovoI'Cd under 
section 189 oflhe Act. 

(II) Thli terms uud conditions 011 which 10M bils been grunted 10 \11 _ liolTowcr 
Company covered under Section 189 of Iq~ /I ~I i~ flUI. prima fuelc. 
projudicinl to the intCfe31 of me (impany - oi Applicable. 

(b) he principal nmount is rep!!Yllble wilhi l'l two years from the dnte of 
recilipt of 8uch loan. he borrower h IS been resu!ur in P!lying ;il t(jr~t on 
lo n · No pp!ii!¥. leo 

(O) 1ere Is no overdue nmounl of more IhUll 90 days In I'iiSpcct of loan 
granted to the party li.8tcd in the resistet mOwUliilt;id under s etlon 189 of _. ~ 
tho Act - Not Applicoblc. ~ .' ~;.., 

fi, V C V ANIK NIWA QU~YKYL LANIt TILAK ROAC, GHAi'KOPAR 

C\ ' 
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MlblNC MEHTA Si CO 
OHART ~I;f) ACCOUNTANTS 

4) In our opinion lIod according to th inform tion nnd . )(plll!ll1tjo!'l~ !!liven to Wi, 
the comp!lny hl\~ CO!J1pl i~d with Iho provisions of Bcctlon 18S !!fld 186 of the 

0111panlc8 Act, 2013 in rcspect of IOlms, i!1ve~tr\illnl~, gUilrunillcs, and 
security, 

5) The Illpany has not accepted !!fly depo 'it from the publil,l und honce tho 
directives Issued by the Reserve B tnK f lndhl find til ~ provisions of cctlons 
73 to 76 or 1111)' other relevun! provigions of th Act and tho ompnnies 
(Aecept!!flcll of Deposit) Rule.~, 2015 with reglil'd to tho d posits accepted 
from the public ar!! itot applicable. 

6) A~ irll'ormild 10 us, UIO malnten nco of Cost Record~ hll~ nCJt bij!!n specified by 
th cntral Govcmmen under ~yb·~«:Clion (I) of Sccilon 148 of i11C Aet, in 
rc 'pe ,t QfLhe noUvllle. c.W'ri d on by th compl1ny, 

7) (tI) According 10 information and xpl!U1ations given to II' lind gn tho bfl~i~ of 
our r:x,lminllti iin of the books of account, nd records, the gmpuny has beon 
gencl'\lliy rllgular in doposlilng undisputed toMory dUI;;! including Provident 
Film!, mplOyiio~ State lnSUftUlCC, Income-Tax, ::ili!e.s ltIX, Sllrvice ax, Duly 
of ustQm~, DULY of xclao. V.lue dded Tux, C!~s tlntl ailY oUler statutory 
d\le~ willi the appropriate auUloritioa, Accordinl tQ the information lind 
explnnutiow sive!1 tn liS, no undisputed amounts p yable in respect 01' the 
I1bove were in rreOrs (is iit Murch 31, 2018 for n period of more lliun ~ il!; 
monUIB fl'om the d te on when they become payable. 

b) According to tile infomlation nd exphm!ltiQ(i given to us, .there ar no 
ducs of Income Tox ond lie' Tax r Value Added ax whleh h vo not 
been depo 'ited by the CC)lnpany on account of disputes, 

8) In our opinion nod ccordin 10 Lhll inh,lffnlltion and oxpl nntiol1ll given to U~l, 
the ompnny hilli !'lot dr}faultcd In the r P ),ment of dlles to bunkM. The!! 

omp,my hu~ nol Lukon finy lonn either from ID!lllcilll in~liluLion~ or from the 
gOVCrfilnilnt nod has not iS8ued uny debenluras. 

9) ~;islld upon the audit proc dure periormed and th Infofmntjon!U1d 
explanation iven by Ihll h'lufiagGIU Ilt, the compillly hu ' not ruised moneys 
by way or Initial public offer or further public on~r including debt Instruments 
llnd term Olin , A<lQordi!'lgly. ih - provIsions of clause 3 (ix) of llie Order at 
!lui :lppllcable to the ompany illld henoe not cnmmetllild upon. 

I 0) nll~ed upon til audli proc\;dures performed u!i.d the Information and 
exp!lI[\uI10tlB given by the mnoogemenl, w rep(1f\ that no frnud by the 

olUpany or on the eompnny by ils oil'icerR or eltlploycca has been noticed or _~. __ -
reported durin the yeur, ,··(I·e: \ 11 f' 

;O[J ~:" ~. 
~ . )r.,)d 

~, v C VANIK NIWA CUIWKUL.L.ANI'-IIL OAP, CilHATKQiOAR ilAeT MUM AJ -4000 'q.' ,. /;):. 
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MIl-INC M~HTAacCO 
CHARTERED ACCQUNTANTS 

Bnsed upon the udi procedures pertol111ed and lhe inlofrtiiiiion and 
fi'xplarilll ions giviin by llie nUlIlagillllcnt, tho lIlnnagerl I rcmlli1crntlon hns been 
paid or provided in n~cord co with the reqllisilt:! !!PflrOv,ll~ ml,lnllaled by ihe 
provision3 of section 197 reud wilh Schedule V to mil olllpanios Act: 

12) In our ()piniol~. tho ompnny Is not a Nidhi omp ny. Therefore, the 
provi~i~ms QI'", lllU~11l4 (xii) or th Ordor are HOi applicable to the Company. 

13) In 0!ll' opinion, al1 transactions witJ.11he relnted pnrties ill'C in compliancCi wllh 
scctlon 177 [md 188 of omppnll:s Act. 20 11 anti ttl· detail. havii bcun 
lIi~ulO~Qd in the Fiilancial StaiiiftUmts a requIred by Lhe npplic bl~ c(:oullling 
stllndaJ'ds, 

14) ~1I!jed upon the audit proCCdUfllS pcrfomlcd lind Lhe informnlion nnd 
cxpl notions given by the !1iun;igiirtiflnl. the cotl'lpany has not mnde 
profel'cntlal nllolmcnl of equity shllres during \he year undar reviow ilIld has 
eOrnpli!!d with all tho requtrelllilntB ofscclion-42 oflhe Compnnie" AQt, 201 3. 

(l!l) The amounts so r ised bove been u~ed fur !h", putposeg t'or which U1C funds 
wcra ralscd by thu CompLll1Y. 

15) Bascd UPOIl the lIudit procc:dure~ performed !;Ind th~ information lind 
uxpllillotioll8 given by the mnnu~ement. the comp!l!1Y has not Gntcmw Into nny 
110n-ClIsh t1'8nSllctions with direC t()r~ of p ' ('song connectcd with him, 
Accordingly, the provisions of elu\1S\l . (1'.v) of Ihli! rdill'!ir 1I01lippllcablc to 
Ule ompany LIl1d hence not commented upon. 

1.6) In our opinion, the company is not required to be regisiered \Ind r RllCilon 4~ 
IA of the Rescrve Bank ofIndi AQ!, 1934 lind accordingly. the pl'ovlslollS of 
clause (xvi) of !he OrdQr fire flOI uppllcable 10 U1C CompLll1Y LIl1d bence not 
commented upon. 

ror MILIND MER A ' '0 
hatierod Accouniants 

Mi nd Mehll! 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 0477 9 
Place of Signature: Mlli11bui 
Dnl ; 28/QS/20! 9 
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MILINC M I!HTA& e O 
CHAR R", ACCOUNTAN S 

ItEI'Onl' ON INTER AL FINANCIAL ONTROL 0 
RJ;;PORTING 

Report on the Inll:mll! finuncial (}n\:i'ol~ Wider Claus (I) of sub-scctlon 3 of Section 
143 orThe Companies Act, 201 3 ("the Act") 

w huve lI\.1dited the Inl mal tinullcial controls over financial reporting of Mis, 
V RI , POLY REM PRIVATE LlMITltD (lii.l; - ompany") 8S of 
March 31 j 2019 In eoqjulletioll with our alldit of the lND A timlll.dll' 81ll lem~ls 01' 
thii ompnny /01' thi! Y(;ar ended on that date, 

M~AG£MENT; RE PON ILIL Y 0 IN RNAL FINAN IAL 
ON R 

The ompany's manogement is ro 'poru;ible for I,lNt{lbllf;hing lind Inlllntllllling Internal 
Imanclal controls based Oil Ole internal control over tln!!.!ll1il,l/ fli!p.Qri ing criteria 
e~!libliShed by thl) -Oliipany eOllsiderrng the essential component of intcronl control 
ruled in the YIl!gulllil,l Notii On Audll of Intel'nal Flnnneln.l Controls over Fionnoinl 

Reporting isslled, by lhe In ·tilllte of Ch!lflilrod Accountants of India, hesc 
1" spOiI~ibilllll'lB Include the d!;sign, implement Ition nod muLnll;n!!l1ee {if adl.iquilt 
inlernal fimmQiul C()Ii trt)l~ thut Wiil'O opEratlng effectlv Iy for cnsuring the orderly nnd 
Gfflclllnt conduct of Its business, inoludins u>lhert:lice, to ctlmp"inis pollclos. the 
~u i'egua l'd lng or' Ii. a~SGts the prevention and deteclion of frauds lind errorS, Ule 
accuracy Dnd completeness of the ut¢o\.lnting roilord~. and i.l;a timely preparation of 
reliable linanclallnformation, as rcquired \mder the omp mir;~ AQl. 2013. 

A U1TOll ; HE 'r'U IBILlTY 

Our I'csponsibi lily is 10 express llJ'I opinion on Ih~ Company's Internal financial 
cOnlmb; fiVer IUIllficiul reporting bascd on our audit, We !';onduQted O\lr !llldii in 
accordllJlCe with lh llid!lnco Not- On Audll of Jnternal Fl..tulflcinl ConlTol~ Over 
Flnonclal Rcporting (the "Ouidun!';e NOle") !lnd Lhe SlandlU'ds on Auditing, issued by 
I AL ;llld deemed to b prcBcrib d I!nder st:l.1lio!l 143(10) of iha Companies Act, 
201 3, to 11111- axlenl uppllclible to an udl! 0 internnl [in noilll QontrOlli. both 
upplicuble 10 ,In aud it 01' Intllnllli Financial ontrols lind. both i slIc:d by ilie InNI,lula 
of haftercd Ae!';ounl nl' of Indig, Tho~!;\ SWI,diirds and IhG Guldoncc Note require 
thUL We comply with ethical requirements ilIld pllt.l'l lind perform Lhl! audit to obtain 
rensoDnble USSUrI!DCe nboy! w/ieth(lr adequate Internal financinl controls over 
~Lnal1ela l rGllorilng was established and mninllined "Iiil if s\lQh I,;QIltl'ols op"rated 
effectively in 11 muterinl r 'specI " ~\'\H7~ 

t;)\'i-.\:;.. - (,.h~ 
i~~~()' • ~ ·r["~ " 
:::-~ • ).1\", ,'" ~( 
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MILIND MEHTA & CO 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Our fiudll Involve pertbrmlng procedures 10 obtain audit evidence nbout the 
m!equ!lcy of Ihe inlermll linnnciul ool'lttois Hystem over 11n nelal rep rung Ilfld their 
operotinQ effectivene~~. ur !1udil ot" irlllii'f'lul tmaneiaJ 0 ntrols over 1lnanclal 
reporting Included obtaininlJ 11 ulldersmnding ot ililemal tllifiticial oonU'ol8 over 
linlint;ial reporting, 8s0881n& the ri k th t mntcrinl WCl!kIlIlS~ exists, and le~Ling and 
evalualing th design and oper tlng ffcctivcneJIs of inlC!mlll I,1tlnlrQI busEd 01'1 lhe 
l\B~cs~ed ri~k . The procedur()s selocted dllpend on the uditor's judij,cmcllt, ineluding 
the n8sessmenl of the riJ;k~ Ilf liillle!'!al rni88t!licment of the flnancial statements 
whcU\ r du to fr ud or error, 

We believe tlml !he uut!it (Widenlle we have obtained Is suffici nt and opproprillle to 
provldc a b sis fur our udit opinion on lhe OI11P!1ny's internal flnaHel I controls 
~ySLGrn over linanclal reporting, 

A company's intemnl fimml,1illl contrOl over hnunclal reporting is a process designed 
to provide reason ble assuronce regarding lhe r liability of flnanel I r portlug aud 
the prl;!Dfil"uLion III I NO A financial at temcmls for c:xlc:ml!l p\ll"(JQ~es in nccordance 
with gillli.lrully f1ccep l~d accounHng principles, ~omptlnY'N inLernul financial 
control over fin n i II reporting imiludes those pollclcs Ilnd procedure thut 

I, ('ertnln to Ule ms ntcnllflCo of record thut. in l'euSQ!1ublc dl3ta.l l, accurately and 
fOirly reflect the 1r!lJlli Iction~ UI1(.i di~j)o lUons of the aSBels of the compiI.ny, 

2. Provide reasouabl ssurnnce th lIT m~ill,1 ti()n~ firu recordild as necessary to 
pemlit prepllmtiOJ1 -I lillunclal slatolllonlB in accordance with a 'nc:nilly aeeepl(ld 
accounting principle ,uml thut re!,;eip l ~ und expenditures of the COlllpllfly ore 
bein~ 111U(.ie only in accordance with authorlsntiollll of m!lnllgeI!1~!lt lind directors 
of the companYi nnd 

3. Proylde rca nable assurance reg ding pr 'vlmtiQIl or timely diitClCtlon of 
wUlulhorized ilr;qui~ili ' n, use, or dlsposltlou of thc company' . el~ fulll QQuid 
hnvo n m terlal cffect on the flrnmci!!l ~lUtemer\t S. 

Be~u~e 01' the inherent limitations of intemnl flmmcigl controls over tlnancl 1 
reporting, including the po~~ibillty of collusion or improp r mlln ·Igernent override of 
controls, mnt rial mis 'tntem nl~ due to error or fraud may occur Ilfld no be deleQtr;d. 
A I~o, l;roJeollol1B of any evalu lion o ' !he internal flnnneial control over flIlllllciul 
report inS 10 l\!\ure Pllriod ar(l 8ubJt:et to the risk thn the lnlern~ 1 finanolal control 
over financial reporting rony become inadBquat b cause of chnnges in Qomlitlo!1'i, iiI' 
th I Ihe dCl;lree gf COft\pliillICG with the policies or proced\lre . IIiay (.i(lterlorntG. ~~\T \ -., .~ 

. . ~- -'Q. 
~ r) 

.:. , .\0. 

\ J \' ~ 

~;~ '-:~~:J/! 
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MIl-INC MEHTA SC cO 
OHARTEREO ACCOUNTANTS 

In our opinion, the ompnn)' hu', in !III lill1lerial I'GSpects, an ndc:qunte mtcron! 
fll'mflcial COnLr Is system over flnonci I rcportins ufld ~uoh inlernlil (lnanels1 controls 
over fll1lnQill1 repurting \v(jI'G oPGl'Iitlng effectively t Mnrch I, 201 , tllised Otl 
ihe Int rnn l control over limlJlQiul reporting erit rIa establish d by th Compnny 
oonsiderlng the scntllli components of intern I C90lrgl ~iil!(jd itl LIio GuIdance Note 
on l/\liI ur Inlernal Fil1anclul ontrols Ovc:r Finnm:in! Rcp(lrtins i~~Li~d by ihtl 
Institute of hurtcred ACC;OUl1wnl~ o[ Illdiu, 

For Mll,IND MI1,HTA & 0 
'hlll'lcr d Account nt 

22. V C VANii< NIWA GURUKUL LANg; TlLAK ROAO, GHATKO AR IAIT MUM!!!/\! -.4QQ077 
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N tes fOI'Jiiing purl of the Bal~lI1cc Shect as at March 31, 2019 and Stat mcnt of 
PI'o:flt MQ 0 'for the ycur ended March 31} 2019 

J. CJlmlll:lltc Infnrnllll lnn: 

To Durry un Ihe b\l~ine5' in Indi r elsewhere !IS manul IUfas, produc(ii'il, I='ri)t:Ii~silrs , 
n;finers, fommln\or, prep I' ra, exporter, Importer, buyer, Nailer, dislrlbulflr, denier, slnok icS\, 
supplier nd to d olin chemicals, potro-e!tamkillg Including but 1101 limiled 10 mnl1 mel's like, 
Vinyl ChlorIde MOilomt:r, Vlliyl Acelllte M(}nnm~r~, ~thylene, Propylene, BIlI .di n , Villyl 
polymcl'!l Including 1111 grades of Pnly Vinyl hlorid (PV ) nd its compounds, chlorInated 
PY , eilloralklllies, Blhylenc Dichloride, pi sUclzed products, alkltl <;;s, hlorlne IIhd il'~ 
liiln1pilul1d~;, liquefier;! B(I~ S lik Lpn, LN , N , PNG etc. Pu I II, Uas ull , heavy lind 
light pe1rn!e\l!11 ~lock~ nd distillnl<;;!i, dll rem orgonlc Clilolygu , IiClivlllor'IJ, Inlliulors, cuu~ tio 
sn(lll, CI\\lsUC pOI sh, II cids, bydrochlol'lc acids, oxidizing i1l1d bli:ut:hil1l! "l!\Inl~, brQI11ide', 
br min, sodn ash, sodlultl hydroxidli, sodium bicllrbunulC, soail!l11 cnrbon!ltc, rOl11nllcs, 
polymers, plll.>llit:&, \"~si ns, !III ~\nd~ of 5Q\V nls, intermedi tes, ingrcdlcms, derivatives, 
COin pounds, mixt!,lrl;!~ , ~Qurcc ml1t ri lIs and diluenill, rencUvo agemB, rliCid stock~ and Lu 
rmmul"uclure QOWnstrclU11 producls V lIablc from pClroeitell'l cals, nllilltal gilSas. tuu l lur, pllll1l 
snurces, hydro cnrbon , liquid fuels lind ChCl llculs. 

(a) Hnsb or j'l'cplIrlIiiun of Fiu!! n(!inl . tllten! nl : 

The Finunoilll S\lIlemenls Qf Ihe ompnny have b en prepared to cOlnply with Lhe Indian 
Accn\ll1lill~ ~l{lnd rds ('Ind A'). Including iha ru les fiol iliad under Iha releval1l prnvisiol1!! of 
Ihe Ql11)1 nies Act, 20 I j 

UIlIO Ihe YCtf ended Marcil 3 1, 2017, Ihe 1)n1pIIllY h!ls prepared il Pin lei I I lemenls In 
ccordallliii with the requirl;lmen of Intli n en 'mlly Accepted Accounilng f'rlndples 

{CAAl'), which ino!udes SI nd rda notified lmdcr ih(l oll1panl -g (ACc\1Ullll ll l! Slundll rd~) 
Rule:!, 2006 una onsid red Il8 "Previous AAP" 

The Pin neinl I tomenla hllve beal1 prepared nn II hi~lori nj co I b sis, excepl for lhe 
following !lSSCI lind lIublHlle~ wllillh have been rllep.~!,Ired III filir villu : 
(i), Dcrlvllilvc rnUlleial iI1SlrUm!lI1!~ 
(II), Ccl1illfl lituifiOial u~~C!I~ and lillbililil:s I1l1:ll'ured l . ir vnlue (reCur ICCOlmt11i1:\ j!lullc)l 
l'C8I1l'dlfi~ lInal1 'iui inslr!,lll1enl~) 

oll1f1\lny's [lin . !l\~i[jJ St temenls rc prllsclUild In lildlilli !tupCI.lS, whillh is II lso ils f\II1~lion I 
1;\111" 'ney, Thl: unit of prcsontutlon; In~lal\ rupees in lukh~; . 

All other A8Bii l~ llrii da~si fled a~ Non- urrt;[ll , 

A Liiibili ly i~ aurrenl when; 



tut ~n'lr,:lit of 

he ompany 01 silks nil oiher Llnblllil -8 iliI N 11- -tlrr(sfli. 

[)(ll'erted ' I'lL X A~~eL~ !1nd I.illbili!ie~ nn: I;l l llli~ iftc:d ns Non" \!rrent ASl!cts Ilnd inbiliies, 

Tile opel' tin eye1 Is the lime between the acquisition 0 assetl! ror processing and lheir 
r Iizatlon In h and ash -qUIValllftI8, Til om puny ha!i idenlill(ld lWelv!3 monlhs us il ~ 
operallng cycle, 

(b) UJC uf Esli r!1 utcs! 

The prepm:ntinn of fin tIlei I 81 lemenls in confom1ity with ih - 'Indian GA.AJ>' rcquiroM 
III Jl gement to make estlm los and assumptions that may of/cet the ropofusd amOunlM or 
nss ts ond liabili ties IIlld tJlscioBufil8 relallng lO ilontlrlgerll liilbililie~ aM ul the du l~ Or lhe 
I1n nclaJ !!tmGIii(ir\I~ und the rBpurled amOunL~ uf imlom\ls lind ~xpen~~~ durillB the rcporlinij 
periot.l_ Although lhe~:(;l eslin1ll1es lire bnscd upI'm I11nl1,\ elllon 's be t kl1owled" f curt'i:m 
evel1 1~ und mlliuns, 111;1\1,1 1 re~\lI\lIl;ould differ from these cstil1l te8, Dif~ rence b~tweiln lhe 
301\lul resultll nd estim tes Ilre recognized In the year In which the resul lB arc knownl 
mnt ri IIz~d , Ex.nmpk of such cstimmeR lneludes provision for duublful d~blS , ilmpl\lyee 
bClleflts, pl'ovlston foi' illCOiilG [axeS Wld provi.~ions ror impllinnenl ~ I Q , 

(e) PrnJl!)rty, PI. nt !!nd F.q!!lpm -nt 

Prnperly, Plun! nnd Qllipmelll nrll stot d t cost, nCI o. rccove 1l;le tIlXUS, trudt! di~Cuunt 
nd rt:b te I cClImtil led dep <:1 tiOI and ImpulrmCil[ lossllH, If lilly. ullh ctl ~l 

includes (>ureh BI: price, borrowing CuSl and any cO~1 dir~clly allributable 10 bringing the 
ssels to its wOl'klng condition for lis IIllOnd6d U~G_ 

Subsequent cosis atc Induded in the lIsslll's ollrryil1B omO\!l1l nr recognized, PIlfIlIC 
!I&~iil, liS ~ppruprillle, ullly Wh~ll it i~ probable Ihut flt ure economic b\,;ncf1ts assoclllI<ld 
wiLh the ilem will nuw to lhe enti y !fid the ~OEt e n b mCllsllred reliably, 

Depreei lion 11 II Property, Plani and Bqulpmllnl Is pruvlded ba~ed On useful lili: 
prescribed In Schedulo II Oflho Cumpunies Ml, 2013 under Stnlight Line Method , 

Tho cumpany hll~ in 1m f;llrliCr fin mei I yenr c rl d out 8C8Slllcnt of us -rul UVGa of llio8G 
us~e l s lind bused on technic 1 ju lifiention, diffilronl u Cui lives liave biliirl arrived iii in 
re~r.ccl of b VI; elll, The justine li lol1 fo adopllng dll'feriirll u~el'u l lil'e ~ompuredlQ the 
useful life (If IlS ets provided in Schedule 11 is ba8ed lin the bu~il1e~s speui ilo envi rOl1lnenl 
& us ge, onaumptloll p [tern of lhe assel , pugl pcrl'ormllntlO of similnr n.~s~l~ pnd peer 
indu Iry comparison duly supportlid oy led1l1iuu l us~e~sm~nl by II h[lr!ered nlltin~er, 

rile fesid uul va lues, u~cl'ul lives lind methods of depreci lion of properly, pi HI iind 
equipmenl !Ire r¢vi c:wed III e J:h fin nciuJ year end IlIld adJusied pfoapecllv-Iy, if 
lIPPlVpril1lc:, 



apllil l Work In Progress 

as at Mru'ch j t, 2019 lind m~Oomenl of 
1, 2019 

Oi l llf AS~Gb nOI reud)' lOr inlended use. us un the Bullln!;!c Sheel d,lle, i~ ~hown under 
capilnl wtlrK in pr(l !!re~!;. All f;!xP\!nsf;!~ i n9id~!l1 111 \0 lhe !loquisilion of lhe n~set nlQng with 
Illnded COSl, doy to (l1!Y revenue cxpendillirrl: e pitnlized until lhe eonunia ionlng of the 
nsse!. The revenue Bener ted au of dcposi ts/guarnntcea f, r custom lind/or other buslilcSR 
Ilyrpos 8 or statutory obligations are cop t IIzed till the BaelS are COIlHll\8S\0IlCd. 

Cd) LCll~c.~ 

The delermillllt\on of whelher Jl IlIToogcment is ( r contilins II: Be 18 bnsed Oil Lho 

~\Jb~tllnee of the Ilfr ngement i the lnccptloll of the lOllS . The !lfl'1mgOtl\Oflt Is. o.r on(uin~, 
!\ len e if fulf1lm nt ofth~ rr ngement 18 de~endet1t Oft lhe USa or II Bpucllie ilIlR t Or 1Is.~els 
and th Fran cmel1t conveys II rlghl 1 li ile thli !IS. ill UT aS~li t~. Bven if Ihlll ri Hhl is nul 
~xpllci tly specllled In 911 ilrrunllOmGfll. 

For utrungilm(l nt~ entered In\.o prim to 1 April 20l S, the olnrmny has determin d whether 
the arrangement QO l1lnin lense on the b sis of f. cta ood circumst I1CCS existing n the date 
of tl'UllHitioll. 

A hm~1l b elu ~;si ji (!d ll l the inoeption dll!I; lIS I lin mee lellse or III oper tins le"8c. A I asc 
Ih!11 l!'Irn~fr:r~ sllbst mtinlly II the ri k nd rcwards Incidentill to ownel'8hlp til Iho 

olnpo.ny is cloBsified 8 nnllllCC lcasc. poratlng IU(iSB PUYIiiOrilS ure racognized a~ fin 
expense in thc tnt mcnt ofprofltlilld 1088 Oft !I alralght-1l11e \;1Il'lis Oller the leiisCl lr;;rm. 

(0) IJi iUJigibl~ As~cls lint.! Anr Ul-ii~ lI t ICln 

lillililglblo Aslillt~ arCl slilled LII cosl gf Rcquis iliol1 les Icc\!ll1\!1 ted morti lion Idcl) lellon 
lind il1lpuirlt)llf1 1 loss. if III1Y • 

• lIch cost include pmchnsc prIce. borrowIng t;om. ilnd 1111)' Cosl direclly all til;lU\ablr: 10 
bringing thc assct (oilS working cllildltllJn for Ihe inlended lI~e , nel QlllIrges . n roreian 
c Chllllgo conlrnCIS fujJ adjuSUi'IIlnls arblng lrum ClxQhunge rIll; v[lrill!ion Uri lit ble to 
the Illl!lllgiblo a~Nals. 

Sub~equenl n. ls me included in U,e set' cnrl'ylng m Utll or rct;ognlscd il!i " Nc purule 
1155 'i, IlB nppropriate, only wh n It Is probiiblii Lhal ('ulure e~nr1l)mit: b\lI1 r: Ii \,~ "~~Ql;in l r:d 
with the tern w 11 !low to th entity mId lha CIlNL cun be m~l!s\lred retinbly. 

uinN or ION~e~ urising froOl derec gllilioll 0 II Intangi ble nBBot re lt1iluSUr d il8 lhu 
diffarenllC betw~en the l1i!t dispo II proceeds Gild the carryltlg am Ulll ol' lha Ll~:;(S1 and lire 
recogni Ned in Ihe Stntement f Profit nnd Loss when UIO nss -l is dCfllcoglllsed. 



Notes fOl'ming part of ih 
Profit and Loss fol' th 'y II 

(I) Impllir lilclii ill" Nun. li'inllncilll s Is· Prop r t I Plant & qUipmeni lind Intllngih! 
A Rci8: 

TM umpllny Il~Be88e III leh I' portlna dat n 10 w!llllhul' Ihure is uny indiontion h I n)' 
properly, pilln! lind quipmenl, nd 1m ngible As~ t~ mlly be il11pnired. If ny uch 
indiQn!iclll existslh re verllble amount oflUl u!l~ · 1 i~ estlmllted to det rmine Ih xlent of 
impnifmcnt, if any, 

An ImpII rmont IO!lll is rel=o!!ni~ed in Ihe ! I m nt f Pr fil UJ1d Loss LO the eXtent, 11s~el' s 
carrying amllunl exceeds i t ~ reeov I' ble amount, he re over8blii oiltiuunt i~ hi an 'I' of .n 
u~!leL'~ luir vulue le~s cost of disp08 I nnd value in liB!). Vuluc ill use i ~ lmlO d on Ih 
c~timltled futu re Oil ·h flows, dl counted to thuir pr~s nL vu lue lISiJiIl pre-tox dis QUill rail' 
th t r~n t current markeL -0 8t1\01l tS uf the! lime vulue gf mOlley and risk pc Inc 10 Ihe 
IsseIs, 

The impairmenl lo~~ re ogni ed in prior accountlng p rlod ill reversed if t h~re h 8 been 
ohunlle in Ihli\ eslimnt of I"licovcrllble IInluLint. The impuinnenl lo ·~ reoo!!.ni d in pr or 
IIcclI\lIlting period I rover cd If III -1'0 Ilou \;luen 1I chllns\: in Ule slim I of r covcrublG 
111111111111. 

(~ In nlorles: 

Itemi! of invonL rie~ ur' meOSUf d I lower of cost nd fiOL rlllllisable value 1I1ier prQvidin" 1i r 
obSOlescence, if ny. ost of inVlilllorlcs comprlBo~ f '"u~t !,If' purDl1tl~e Imel other ovcrh dB 
nat of retoverllble t lXCS incurred In bringing t11em to lheir respeclive pr 8 III 10 allon anti 
condition. The v lu lion of Inventories i& delll!! On FIFO Ivh;lhod. 

(h) . Innne (I I: 

Borrowing Cll~L~ inoludes inter '5\, _m flis lion of flflCHllllr)l CU~I incurred in conJ1 -clion wllh 
Lhe arransement of Borr wings nd c cilatl!ll! dillirence~ nrising from J70rclgn urretlcy 
BllrrowinllN to Ihe exlent Ihey arc rogurtled ii_~ an udju~lmt;nIIO the Inlerc t OBIS. 

In\cre3 income elll'lied an the temporary investmenl of specific borrowinllN pimdina their 
(!xp·nditurc on I ualit),inll u~~;cL~ iN ded llct d from llle barr wing co~t~ eli ible ~ r 
c .pil I! II II , 

AI! oLher burrowinK costs Irc chnrllCd 10 tho t!ltolllCnl of" !'rillil li nd I .os~ Jor Ihe I'eriod ·lor 
which Lhey are inourred. 

(i) PI'ovl nn : 

Proviai ns nrc rCliogllbed wh~1l the ol11puny h a present obligutiun (leBIl I or con ·Im live) 
s 0 result a fl p<L~t event, it is PI" b ble thm lin OUlnOW uf rO~llurces IlmbodyinS ec n 1111 

benonls will be reqllired Lo eWe the bllgmioll and a reli ublo e ·timu\ con b mllde ul' lhe 
Ol11ounl of the oblig lion. 



N te otlTling p-u·t of the Bal nee h\;ot as I March I, 2019 'ina tnt tncnt of 
PI'ofit and OS~ tl r Ih Y '[u' ended March 31,20 19 

G> Il:mplnyee ncnt;flt t :11 

(I), d!OI'1 "I'mmplo (lC Utmc lil~ 

All mploYll1l Benefit!! payllb10 wholly within Iw lYe month of rGnderln~ the !'lllrvioc lire 
cl!l!islfilld us l1\1rl Tenn . mploy c Benefits Ilnd lhey ar rilcogni~lld in Ihe period in which 
the ~anployce renders the fi:1 tcd crY1cc. 

The I!ndiscount d mount ofshoftlllnn employee benefits CliP ctcd to b p Id In e ChWlg 
for th ervlc rendered by oll1plo)'ees IIrll recognised II n XI ~n c dur ng the p rlod 
wh n ih cmpl yces rOlidGf Ihe servillils. 

(II). f'i1Nt . ICmpln m(lnt B n fin 

pcfil\~d oull' bull n Plan 

A de[jned contrlbutloli plan is il pu~lI.empl!lyrn~l\ t benefil pi n und .. r whl h the ol1\pan)' 
m kC8 pe llied Il'lOl1thly payments to "lllplOY e SI Ie In til nco ·cherne. l'ruvl cl6nt Fund 

heme lillJ Guvernment Udnlinislcrcd P 'n i n Pund ::ichemc I'or all applicable employees. 
rhe '(lmpllny 's cl)ntribution is rccognls d as Hil GXpclnSIi In thll Sillternen\ of Pr fit .nd 
I,.t)~~ Q\!rin& the period In which thll omploye!! rtll1l,lerii the re lnted ·cryicc. 

Ddinild Benefit Vllln ~ 

rotu t}' liubllit)' is II detined h nefit obllgntlon wh cll is pl'OviJed lilr on the b ~ i s of nil 
etll rlul vUIUalilll1 on Prnje~t~d nit co t m thod m de ill the end or eauh limmcinl yellr. 

ACluarial gui nsl(lgsse~) llr~ reCOilni d directly In other cUlnprehensiv~ i"com . his 
bClltlht i~ pre~enlc I p cording 10 pr s nl value nl'llt cledullting the (Jlir volue r th I\on 
l1!I~et ~ , The omprrllY d Illrmln's lheMt Intilrest on the net defined b nefit Ii bUlly (a SCt) 
in n; pe lof difined bcnl:Ot by Itlu l Liplyin~ the net liobility (0 set) in respeci of iI defined 
benefit by the dl count rfile used tn meUS\lre tbe defined b 11 m obllgulloli iii! tlley were 
delemllned Iilt.hll beginning Qflhc: nnnuuJ reporting period. 

Re-mca~urel11ent I}I' clc!ined benefit pi 118 in rc pOCt uJ' pust-employment nre ehnnr;ed 10 Ihe 
Other omprehen lye Income. 

CCUI11Ullllcd ICilY" Is lreated us ~hQrt·tcrrn mployee benefit. ho mpany meu~urcs Ihe 
expected cuBt of such ahsenoe~ liS the oddili n I m \In( that It expects tn pay II~ rl::sul of 
tho Uilu~(jd enti tiemenllh[ll11l! ccumul ted tt.he repurtlng dute. 

Other' Lonl! rm t mplo tc UOrlcfib 

The employe 3 of Ih company ut Ill1tltlecl to cornp 'IlS !led bscnccB which !Itt buth 
lI(;c\llTIul ting nd n lI-ficcul11uluung in !1llt\lfl::. The ellpecl d cost of iit:cumuluting 
C mpcns t d ab tlleo i~ clclennined by !1ctuuri I Y lUlIl lofl using projellted unit. <:r ·elil 
mel hod. ~=_ ....... 

~
~~~ \'\ I II_~r1;;~ 

(( ,N? ~ 
.~ I ~'J ",. ..~ 
'-:LI.:, •• ,_- r.' ". Ir I \ l"ft....o' .... " .,.~ •. t.,I, .1.",.... 



Notcs fOl'ming part of th B. JnJ1!,;' h l (IS al Murch 31. 2019 and Stat mC!nt or 
Profit and Loss for th ye r endt:d M r h 1, 2019 

(k) II ' pens ' : 
he I e p nsc for the period cUI1'prlse~ urrenl lind DefcIT d Tnx, Tnx i r c gnl -d In 
Imcment of Prulil and LOKS, except 10 Iht: e~ t CIl Ihl11 i rclllie 10 items r cogn cd ill lhB 

comprohun. iw incllm!,! or ill eQuily. In which eSe, the lax Is also recollnl d In ulher 
comprehen~ ive income or quily, 

A !r!' nt 11 

"rrcnl t • a CIS IIJld Iiabil lt ie lire meu:;ured LlI the l11c)lmt expccl-d 10 b recove ed I om ur 
paid 10 Ihe Ulxmion [julh l1 ri li e~, bll" ed 011 10 rul 8 nd I WB Ih I r cnacted or SUbKlulIlively 
orlaClllU 8t the Balllnr;~ ~heet dute. 

Minimum Item live lax (MAT) rodil Is r~e()Hnlscd u~ lin psscl only when nd 10 Ihe e Icnt 
Ihere is convincIng "i don~(i Ihal lhll oompllny wi I! p y Tncom Tax under Lh· normal 
provisions duritIS lh !lptn;ilied period, f' 'lIlting in UtiliSIIUOIl of MA rcdlt. In the Yenr in 
whl h lho MA'r reuil be~(lmcK eli!:lible to be r cognis d n 88et In a cordaneo wilh lhe 
rccummclldllLlOtiN eunlllineti in uidonc Nol -I ul:d by Ihe Inslilulo uf hartered 
ACI:()lr rl!lI nl ~' ti l' Indi\l, Ihe so id ssel i crentcd by WIl)' of n credit to tlie Slalemenl of' Pmli t lind 
Lu~~ and shQWJ1 11 MAT redit Entl tlcment. ol11pany review~ Ihe sume III cuoh Blliance 
Sheel dill !ld writcs down Ihe 'nrrylilg iIITIOUnl ul' MAT Creditntitlernent to the xlcm iher' 
is no 1 n I:r convl n Ing evlderl!!e 10 lhl! ufl'ecl tlmt Ihe ompnny wi ll utilisc MAT redlL 
during the sl,ccitied period. 

DcfcrrClI IIX 

Deferred lUx is recognised on t mpornr)' djrrGrOlleE~ belween the Qllrryina Ilmount o· Baets 
lind liubilitl B In tllC standal Ii - lnlunelfll .~ t u lemenls nnd Ihe corresponding I. b 011 lised Iii 
Ihe C Il1putntlOIl of talmbl pruf!!. 

Dcfer'rcd lax liabililies und I ~ct llIe me urcd t the t x fll leS IIl:11 Hro expecl!,!d 10 !lpply in he 
period In whioh Ihe Ii bilily i -tiled or Ih Cl l'iiullsud, bu.~cd un lux rale~ (nnd I , I w 
lhnl have bel;! l1 ennr;:t d or ub I mlv Iy na led by tllI.l end or the reporling p dod. The 
I:nn'yinH urnOllnl of Dc~ rred I llobIllI!" and 1\1I~r;I~ are rBvicwl!d III Ih 'nd of en h rep rting 
period. 

(I) orcigll cr.irrcl1c1c~ trlln~ 1I ilo!! nd tron IMloo: 
r nsal:llon~ in iilreiHn ollrrr:ncics _ re recorded I Ih exch IIgll talll prevuiling on Ihe dille of 

IflillHllttiun. Munetnry !)~5els find Ii bllitl dcn mlnilll!ll 111 furai!:lll Gurrenoies pr Ir ml~ led t 
Ihul'ulleliunuj currency clo in rates fe ch:ll1l:1ll lit Ihe repurlinK date, 

xcill!ng ... differcnces arising On ~il!!l emenl or tran 'l lion of In n Illry Itellls ar recu!:Inlxed In 
Inl menl of f'rolil and Ln~~ r:~cr:p!IO U1C ex! nl of exchange dlfferonces which IIr regl1rded 

as on tidj u~lmllnl tn inlerest cosls on [I rcign CUff nlly borruwinl:lK lIml urc dire t1y !lribul ble 
10 the ucquisilioll 9f C9n lructi n f qu 1It)'lllg n Sel~. arc capitalized ns cns of cis, 



Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1, 20 \.9 and ' tatolnGnt of 
PrO Iland Loss for the year ended March 3 1, 20 I 

Inir vulue W[lS nWl1sured. The Ililin or loss lIri~illll 011 IW115!lIli n of IIOI,omOlll;:t uy item ' 
men ur'd t fair v 1m: is tr ut d in line WIUl the recognition of the g in or 10 s on the chonge 
il1 fl,,1 value of Ihe liom (I.e., Ll'llnslntlon dlITCflltlCCS on IIOIllS whose air value gain r loss Is 
recognised ill 0 ' I Of Slill(iIl,Olll uf PrO.IIL arid Lo~~ flra ii l ~u flitlug lii~ed in 0 ' l Or Sl 'I'menlof 
Prohl und LtI~~. re~pec:lively). 

IncQme IIml expenSQ~ in foreiijn !;lIrrencie5 ure record d exch!ll1~ r I prevnilinll on Ule 
dote of Ihc Ir!ll1 nelion. 'orei n currency monctnry 0 sets nne Ii biliticsre Ir 1181 ted lit til 
exch mije r Ie prevlIiling on Ihe b I nee hl:cl d Ie nnd exch nile !lIn nd 10 HI< l'i81ng on 
sctUcmcnt nd t' stniemelli recognised In the si iemoni ofpro(li lind loss. 

(In) ltevcnuc RccCl llniliunl 

Revenue js reco nized In the J:xl nl Uml it is Ilrobnble Ih 1 the economic b n fits will now to 
Ihe CQmpnllY nnd ihe revenue c n be rellnbly m sur d. 

Rii ~ilUc frulII 'uli! uf uilLb 

R, Vl!n\l~ i~ re~(1snized when 1111: 5igl1itic!l!11 risks om! rewords of owner~hip of the ~QOd8 h ve 
bee!' pns~ed to the buyer. Revenue [l'om th Ie of oods Is me tif!Od 1 ill fuir v [liC of Ule 
con id r lion receIved or receIvable, net of rei urns fiIld allownn c8. lrade discouil ls. Vullul'lo 
r bnlCil and ea h dlscoums. 

Interes t Incnl1l1~ 

Inlllrc~l In"ome rrom II linunciul lI~~et i ~ recosnized using elTeClive interest rut melhod. 
The rev!#nUC II nl;nlled Qut of depo ilsll;!ulli'nnleeS for CII 10m nndlor other business 
Ilurpo~es or mtlltocy oblillntiol18 nl'e cnpitnlizcd tlU Ule !lasels nre conunlssloncd. 

Olvli:J ufid~ 

Dividl!l1d.~ UTe retul:\lIi~ed when \111; ~omp~ny's right 10 receive Ihe pnymenl h 8 be\:n 
e~lilbl i ~hed , 

(n) FlllilDclallnsirumcnb 

1I111illi Rccll Ilnilh;1Il IIlld M !l !If m n! 

All fin !ficinl IlSset nnd liubilities nre initi II )' recognized t fair vlllue. Transactiol1 coma thal 
11111 directl)' \\dbut blc to U1C .equ!sltlotl or Issue of tlilLifiCi'll aSSetS find Ilnilnei!l! l iubi litie~, 
which OJ' not l1i fair value through prutli Of IUB~. IIro udjU$led In the fair Vlllue nn inilil!! 
reeo "ilion. 



Note:; 'Ol'ming pm·t of th • Balance Sheet as at Mal'ch I, 2019 ,Illd St t menL of 
PI'ofit and OS~ ft !' [11 ¥I:ur I:lided March 31, 20 19 

R1Tled Ht Hmort cd co t A ') 

A IiI1PJlcia l GSBei Is me aured aln1110fllsi!d ~OSI if Il I~ held within II bll~ine~l~ model whose 
objective i8 to hold ihll II Stll III order 10 c()I1~(; l cOlllruclunl CII~h nows nnd the ontr ctll I 
I~rms ofthc Ilililneial f1 gol give ti~il nil ~pc!;ifi !;d dlllt;l; 10 C(lsh flows Ih t re olely paymenis 
ofprll1cipal UJid interesl un the prinoiPlll ImOlll1t o\\Isl nding, 

FlnUllcllll1l ill il l rail' illu tllrou -Ii ullitir com[lrllhcn.dvc Incnme (FVTO n 
A iilulllcial !lsset is !t\tia.~ urtod III I' VT I il" il if; he ld wilhin [l business mod .. 1 wh08 obJectiv' 
Is chlevo~ by bUlh CnllflUliri8 conlruot\lnl (lllSh flows nnd ellini I1n nel j 8SBei nnd 111 
conlrllellillll"rm~ uf the limmoial nssel sive ri~c on specifi c! d tes I c all flows lhut III'C solely 
pllyr!'iOlIl~ lil~ prilltlipu l llnd inlere~t on the princip J nmount OUilii ndlng, 

I f Ir . IIlu~ Ihrough pl'u fit Ot lu~!i (I"VTI'L) 

A fin(tnclal ssel which Ig fIOl cla.qRifieil ill uny 01" the ubove cUlcsories are m ur~d at 
FVTPL, 

The . ompnny has accounted fur lis iIlVe~ll11 ilnl~ in sllb~;idillries, nsso~i o,lC~ un I join venlure at 
COSI. 

Olher ECluity I!lv~~ tm nls 

t'ur nil ulher ~quily in~tr\lmenl ,Ihe omp fly m )' mllku uti ItfeVmmblG eleolion II) pre~el1l ill 
ulhar cOl11prl:hen~ive income subsequenl eh ngcs In tho fair valuo. illil CI)lI1puny l11uke~ S\l h 
cil!Oli!)n 011 In instn!lu;:nl by instrumeni baBls, The el1l8s1l1ealion i~ made on init ill l r 'cosnilion 
lind is irf voe Ible. If the ofllJlfln)l t1ucidc;s 10 olussify an ¢quilY in~lrul11 nl liS _I PVTO I, 
Ihen ni l ~ Ir V lUi: changcs on tho inslrumtin'L. Ilxcl\lilins dividenQs, nrc recognized In lhu 0 I, 
There Is no recycling Of lhll amuunts from ! 10 the stntemenl ofproflt and 1088. OVCI! on gale 
of ItWo81f1loni. Iinwevcr, Ihe ommmy mllY Ir llser III cumulative gai n or 1088 within equity. 
~lllihi' inslrumen~ i[l~ I \ldeg wililin III PVTPL c legory I\J'e Iilllusufiltl ul liLi r vulull wilh nil 
changes rccoani1:ed in the ·1.lemenl of pro III and log~ . 

D 're ognlt 011 

A 11I1Unoilli lI~sel (or, where IIppJiC hi , a part of!l fll11l11Cilli asseL or purl Of II oITipony of 
sil11i lllr lin!llwinl [!JIS t ) i prlm lly derccogl1ised (1.0. tenioved fr()m the ompnny'8 b 1m 
~hCil l) wh on: 

II), The. riehlB to receive cosh 110W8 frum Ille U~Sll t have expire\l, or 

b), Th Camplln)! hilli ltan~rerr~d il~ rishts 10 receive c h n Wli from tht; aBBut ur hu.~ ;L~~umcd 
n obllgatiun lu pay the rc;Qcjved !;[!JIh flows in fu ll wlthoul maierial de lllY III u third P(irly. 

~ Prlv. ullder II ' pas~.lhrough ' IIrr ngement; lind ellh r ' 

~ ~ ~~ t C· N.I_-1 ' 
Il. ;J ',1\1 ~~' 
~~~~~~------------------------------------------------~~~~~~~-­'(I", 



Notes onning part of th Balane h l " u~ M(m:h 31, 2019 Bnd Statoflll'!nl of 
Profit unci Loss for th year c:mdcd M r _ h 1,20 19 

(i). lh ' ompnn)' hu ltlU18fotfild ~ubstuntinlly 011 the riskli nnd r wmd fthe set. r 
(II). ih omparl)' hUB nei th!!r trllnsferred nor ret in d Bub t"nli II)' Rllth - rl k. :.md rewlIrds of 
ih' USCt. but kl.'l transl~rrcd C(lIllrol of the {I B I. 

Wlion lhe Com puny hus Irtmsferred its rl hiS 10 reeeivo cnsh flow& from un a~s t or h s 
Ilnt!!red intg . PRS ·throlll!h ff ng I11nl. It ev luaul r ami to whllt Ilxlent it h ilS ret ined the 
ri!*~ lind row lrds of owner hlp. When It hUK n Ithilr lmlisferred flor rol ined sub t ntlally all 
of the risks nd rewards of the us~e t . nor tr<m~ li;rred control of Ule SCi, the OI1'lpiiliY 
ontlnue to filcOglib the transferred lI~el 10 the ext nt f th ompany's continuing 

Involvemcnt. In lhat case, the omp Ily Iso rcc ni e an 8S elated lIabliHy. The Lrllnsferred 
Gsset and the ussocinted Ii Ibility nrc 1111: Uf don bllRls thlll reflects the rights und ohlialltions 
thut. [he ompllny I l\I~ ret ined. 

ontinuin involvellliliH Lhut lukes thl! IQrm of P IJlIIlr ntee over thl: lr nsferred fi~~(lt is 
mea ured at thG lowar til' the originpl cOlT)'in!/. nrnounl of the et and the maxlmLlm IIlnO\l!1\ 

o conslderatiun tlmt the ompuny could be cqulrcd [0 repay. 

IlIIpl1\1'm III of fln n il l iI cis 

In IIccord IIC wiUI Ind AS 109. thu '()mpan), applies expe ted eredi 10 ( L) llOdel fur 
nlCllSur m~nl and ft:COgll!llOn or impllirmenL lo~s on lhe followin fin n I I 8 SCts 3l1J erl3di l 
risk I:xpoBure: 

a). Flnancliul u.:;~e ls thlll lIre debt inlltrull1l:nts, and Ill'ii mellliiJretl III umtlrti~led co~\ ."., 10 liB, 
debt ~ecurilit:~. deposits, and bank balan\; . 
b). Finuncilll n!;~et ~ tho r debi In trumcnts Illillllro m(ja.~ urc!dIl5 (It rVT 1 
t) . Tr!ld~ receiv bl r l1y ontrnctiJlil right to receive cnsh or nolhcr 1i1l~lIci I Usct thllt 
re3llil from tr liS cllons Lhnt ul'll \vlthin the ~c:ope of Ind S 18 (referred to ns '",0111ructual 
revenu r cclvnbl(l~' In the~e sttmdnlone Ii[llllci 1I 1111Cl11e1118) 

Thoompuny follow '~implifkd JlPronch ' fOf recognition o(impnirml;nlloss Ilowtlncc on: 
u) . Trude Recciv ble nd 
b). Qlher R c iv bl s 

The opplic ilon I' s I11pllfiud IIpprollch dnes not require til 
credit 1'1 k. R ther, It rllcogl1i ~e !i impairmenl 10 " lIow. II C b 
r parlin daie. rl~ht lrom its initinl rccoanilion. 

ompB.l1y to lNll:k chunges in 
ed 011 IlIbtimll ECL~ nt ellch 

For I'Gllogllition of imp limlen! los8 11 til 111lan lui ug~ets und ris~ eJo;pQSlIrc, the ompsny 
determines Ihut whether ther h B beon a significant inorcu ·c in the credil risk since Inltinl 
rccol!.nitiol1. lf cfcdil rl k hos noi Irloroa~Gd ~ i gnili cun tl y, 12- l11onih Is u cd to provide for 
impoirmeni 10 s. Howovcr, i credit ri~lk hu~ inCreU8ed sif,tnil1c l1t1y, Bflltlm· b: Lis uNcd. If. 
ill ubscqucl\l poriad. 'rMit quulity C)!" the instrumeni Improves such lill1lthllre is nQ longer II 
isn 11Cfinl hlCI'CuJIe in credit ri~k sil1 c inili I fceognltl n. Lhan Lhl! enli ty reverts 10 r ollni 'in" 
mpairl1lllllt l os~ nllowlll1 e b cd 011 12-momh ECL. 

Lifetime • re til cxpected ol'edlt Ill s!le.~ rQs\lllinll from II possibl d aulL eVllllt ~lllver lh l;! 
'xpecled II~ of n tlnallclal ili~trllmcnl . The 12-l11onth ·· I ponioll of Lhe Iifetil1lr:,. (. . 
which re ults trom dufnLllt events thnt nrc p . 'ible within 12 mOlllh~ iI.liel' the reportin ijtlle . 

... ' 
~.( r J. 

~, t 1-1',; 1 
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Not ol'ming pm·t of the Balance Sheot a~ at M. rch I, 2019 'ma tnl ment of 
Pt'oflt Iilld 0 . Or th' Y AUf ended March 3 I , 20 19 

~ L i~ the dillim;n e b lwe n 11 contractual ca h fl WS liliit ut - due to the 01111>nny [n 
uccurdllncc wilh the contr ct nncl nil the CMh fluws llmt lhe enti ty c)(Dect ~ to r eivc (Lc" 11 
on~h h rtf 11 ), discounted l llio rlgirlal EIR. When cstim!ltilll:lthe CMh flows, n emlty is 
r 'qui red to considur: 

a). All ~lIntrm: l ullltC:flTlS oflllC fin nei I instrument (Including prllpuyment, extension, clIll ncl 
~il11 i1 ar oplion~) over the: expected llfe of tho litlunciu\ i n~!rtlment. Ilowever, in l' case 
whell tlJe xpc t d life of the till ncial i n~ln.JJtlenl CHnna! he c:slil11pted r Ii bly. tllen the limilY 
is rClJyir d to usc Ih . remaining contrucLuullcnn of Lhe li nnnoini illlllrlU1liml, 

b), Ilsh flows tom thii ~u le o l~ colln\ernl held I' other credit cllhwlcefll 'IUS thUl UN intcgrnltn 
the COnlracluultem1s. 

0) . Finnl1cinl S5 Is mcustlfed as at IilllOfllsl3d clIsl, ClInlractunl revenue rec iv blcB IIDd lease 
rcecivnbl' ; - L is pre ented uS un allll\vunce, i.e., liS lin intearnl p rt of the mCOSUJ'Illtlom f 
Iho cis In the bllianell Shelll. The allowance reduces Ihe n I cnrrylng mouni. Until lhe 

S I meeLS wrltu-off etiwrill, lhe olnppny do' nol reduce Imp IrillCnt aIl OWflllC(l I'mm Ihe 
gross currying umu\Jl1l. 

111iti I Rec03nhiun and MeDsurement 

·Inllnclal li abllit1e!i ure c111~sified, nl initlol I' co n lion, as iiilOJickd Iiubi lities III f!lir v lue 
through pl'utilllr l (j~~, I OIlIl~ IIl1d borrowilli pny bles, or as del'ivalive~ designuled 113 h dRinK 
I!lBlFLLil'iel1 t ~ in un eli'ective h dg • pproprillic. 

AI! fi nunoi!11 Ii bilities Ill' rccol!nlslld Iniliully OI L fai r vnllie md. in the c 
borrowinss nud pllynbl118, !lc.i of dlreull )' allri b\Jluble Ir tllll lion cosls, 

of loons lind 

Thl: mpany's hnunulul liubi l iLie~ in llide tr de lind other paYfibles. loulls and horrowin 
In lud!.l!! btlllk uvcrdrulh, linnn illl u r ntee conir ClS flild derivative finunoin l in~\nUll nls, 

Suhs~'lY nt M iI uremeDI 

The men w'cmct1l of IlIla rlc i all illbi li tie~ depc:nds on III ir classlficallol1,us desorihed below; 

Jiiullllllilll linhillt! s J mit' vl lu . th rougJi pl'lIlii IIr IlIss 

I' inunuiu l li ubi li tiC8 1\ ~ II' V lu' Ihrough pro IL Or lu~s inolude lin _11 i I lillbilili h Id fot 
truding lind /in!lnci.l Ii bllItl dcslgrlatGd upun initilll recognition t tblr value lhrough 
profil (lr loss, 'in nei I IInblliillls arc ulll.~silled II~ held for lr dill!/. If 111 'I ar Illutirrad ro r the 
PIJrpo ' of r pureh Ins In Lha ncar term, Thia c leso!,), I includils derivul ive Ii nul1llinl 
in trnmcnls l1lured Into by Lh~ ompnny th ( r not de IgML -d uS hedging instrunl Ills in 
hedg rclatlut18hip~ U~ defined by Ind 10 , 'cpsrllled embedded d rivntive IIr Is 

los81 fled U~ held lor troding ynles they i\ • dcslSftflted u!l el1ilc livc hedl:lins in lr,\!llwn 
a:-ihl' II T'I" • 

. ;(r'~~.~ " . 
1, 'n 
t;;"" . \\'1 .1 j ~ li 



tntGIl1Gnl 0 f 

Goins or lossea on Ilab IlHos huld fo l' lradiI)!; are rCOO!;lI h;ldd in Iha prolil or lo~s. 

·Inancial HubiH liii~ de:;i!;nuted upon initin! rccognition IH ro ir valuc throll h pro tit r IOB8 nrc 
desi!lmlled II~ ~u tlh ul l!n: inil io) dnle of [I;COlll1itiol1, nd Ill)' if the criteria in Ind A ~ 109 arc 
sul i s ll ~d . For linbi lilic5 design Icd ill! FV PL, ir value g. in8l 108ses niirlbulabl to ehW'lg~~ 
in WIl cred·, risk life recognized In 1. ilese g Ins! loss fil'ij l\ot subsllquel'ltly ltiinfl l"erred In 
P 'L, However, th ompnn)' Illay trl\f\s/br lh - Cliil'lllliiLlVe !luin or lo~s \vilhin equi ty. All olher 
changes In fair valli ot'slieh Hablli ty ure r~~IiHnblld in Ihe stntemenl of profi t or 1088, Th.e 

ompally has nul dlS~ i !;nal(ld any IInundal l i ~Jbi lity u~ 01 rllir V!I)llC Ihrough profi t 11 lOBS, 

!""nn And b"" I'ow DWl 

After inll! I recognillon, InIGI'(l91.bllllrinll loan~ and burrowinlls nre ~ubsr:q\lenlly mellsur d t 
amorllsed co l u~ ri ll Ih lit liiiill1l1d. Guins und losses nre recosnised ill profit r loss whell 
the HlIbi liLi !i~ ilra dii ret;q l!n i~ed liN well U~; thro\JSh the IR umorlis!ltion pro~eS8 , 

AlliOfli !lcd oOsl is Imlcul (lled hy ulkillg into OCCO\lJlt ny dl count or p emlum on Eicquisitil/rl 
and ri!es gr ~I)~ts Ihnl ore nn inte&rol p rt of iile IR, he ElR mOrilsatloil I Included liS 

finu!1ce costs in th.e stotcl11cnt of profi t and 1088, 

DCfilcugfiU iurt 

A ii l'lOrluiul liability i ~ d ll ref;ogr! i ~ed whel1 the obl igation under the II blllty Is dlseharl!(i(1 Or 
~a l1cl! lIed nr I; )(pire~ , When III cl(istins; fi n nelnl IInbillty Is replaced by another furn the KlIm~ 
lender on s\lbst nti !II)' diffe rent Icnns, or lhe terlna of ull oXlglirll! liubility llrC SLJb~lllnt i n!l y 
modi fil:d , such 1 cxch nge or modi l~iIt i Uil is lreuted u.~ lhe dilrC(lognitilln or tn origina l 
linbilit)' nd the rocognlt 0 11 of il l\ilW liabi li ly. The di!"l~rf:l1~e in U1 fespectiv corrylng 
nmounts is recognised in lhil ~l lulem(ml nr pr() lit or loss. 

J)cd~lI tlvc Flnnn\1ll1 ll!Jl!tl'!I!lwnte 

The ompnny uscs derivative financial i n S !rtlln(i rlL~. furwarcl ClIrre!1(ly contmcts to hedge it 
foreign elll't'cney risks, Such dedvulive Ii IHlnd II I in~\wlTlr:n\ · !Ire il1iti lly recognised nt fnir 
valuc on the daiil ul'! whieh II derivutive COI1~nlQ \ iB entered into nd f ubsl:qllcni ly re­
m CII8Ul'CU til fair Wille. DeriVII\ivc:s Ilf ' C lrried 0 IinlU1c i I ssets when tho filiI' value is 
pu~il i ve lind \is Iinll!1Qial !illhililics when Ule fuir v lue Is Ilcgmlvc, 

h ompull )' l1lea~ ll J'e~ llflundul im;trlllneni , ~y '11 IS, deriv llive at fa it' v lue HI each 
b l an~il ~h",e! dule. 

I'llir vu llie i ~ the price thnt would be rcc Ivcd (0 sell illl il~Selor paid to tTlln~fer tJ lillbility in n 
OrQ!:rly tmna etion between n1ill'kcl piiJ't ieipU/H~ at the mellsur~mel]l Qlll ' , The foi v lue 
mC!lSlIrement is b cd on tll ' presumption lhut the t rlln~uoli un lo ~c l! the 

1'1 ce I:lther: 
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Notes formi ng part ot'the Balance hect as at March 31 20 land tatcl11Gnt of 
Profit Il11d Loss for the yellr ended March 3 I . 20 II 

u). In !he principol ml1rKCI for Ihe !!~sel or liability, or 
b). In he abscnce r II princip I 111 rkcl. In the most IIdv,nt geOUl! III ket fur th n ct or 
IIllblllty 

T M prinoipal or lhe mg~l udv!lnlngeous m~rkel mu~\ be \Iool,!ssible by the gmpuny. 

TI,e fuir vl1lul! of 011 l\~~e! gr II linhiHIY i ~ rne(lr.ured us ing Ihe !l!lS~HnDtion~ tho! mnrkel 
DUrlicipon~ woy]d II· e when pricinlJ the I1ss~1 r linbility, l sYlllina th II mllf~t;1 Pnrticip I1IB 
!let in Iheir economic besl int ce I. 

Th' ompai\)' USilS vllluuUon lilcl\n\qu-s thilt ilfG appruprliito In the cifCUin~Uii1oa~ and fut 
which Nurtieienl dulu urI! uVllj l tlbl~ to measure fuit value. maxi mising [h~ USII of relevllnt 
ob~!!rVubl(l !np\l!.s qnd min imisi ns Ihe \IS\: gt\lngb~r;rvl\b ll: inplllli. 

All ssc l~ nnd Ii bililles for whieh J. Ir valuc Is measured or disclosed In the talidllione 
flll!m lal 8tatonUlr1tS ur - categorised within lhii fait value hleriirchy, dos(;tibilJ iiil l·hllo\'/~. 
bU8!ldlil1 lj;~ luwe~l lev!!l inpullhul i~ sisnilicul1llti lhe lilir villue l'!,eu.~lIr~menl n.~ u wh\'lle; 

hI:Vf;] I - Quoled (unnljjusted) ml!l'ket pricc8 in nctlvc 'm kets for identical 8scls or 
liobi l iti~8 . 
L v' l 2 - Valuation techniques for which the I wesl levlll Inplit thal I slgnl leilnl to the fair 
value mcnsurcmcflt Is dh'cct!y or Ii\dlrectly obsetvable. 

Lavel ) - Vu\ua liOI1 ta!il1l1iq ul!s rOr whith the I Qwl!~t level input thlll i ~ siSpi/icupt lO lhe fllir 
vul ue ml!~~url!m!;nl i~ Un\)b~erVllble . 

[lllr l\~5ets nd Ii bilitil:s thlll ur recognised in the stDud lone flmmci I at lements Oil 
rc:currin b is, the omp 11)' determines whether transi rs hay" occurred b tween lilV'ls til 
the hler rehy by I'C- 88 sslng calegOl'lsulion (based all the I west !cvcllnput lhilt Is lIiHIlillcmli 
to the fulr ville nlcllSufemOtlt Il~ a who Ill) (lItho Gild o\'eDch reporting periou. 

Fur the purpo~e or nlir V!I IYf; di~elQ~lIres, the omp .ny hus determined cl 8SC8 of sc!s Dnd 
!illbi lilies on !he: brn;is of Ihe natur , ch r clerisllcs and risks of th ssset or \lsbll ty and the 
It:vel of li e ti Ir v lu hi .. r I'ehy as explained Ilb vo. 

'ash and Cu~h Equiv:l lel\l iii the blliance .~ h~e l Qompr i~;C! c~sh li t blinks Lln9 on hpI,d [Ind ~hort· 
tOnn doposi ts wilh /In ori!lil1ul lTIut!lri!y or ~hre~ months or less. which J 8ubject to n 
imil:!n ifiQfl!1t ri~k of Ilh nges in v tim:. ' 

t,r 'Quity 811 r's 



NOlt.:li forming part of the BalancG Sheet as t M 1 h I, 2019 lind l'llemont of 
ProD Clnd Ii' for the year cnd d March 31, 2019 

lOot Ihe purpo'C of colcullllins diluted cl!flliu a I,or sharo. III lI ' i prolii lInet lux fur lhe p riod 
il\lrihlll!lble lo QlIity shureh ldora and III WGiSh!(!d UVerllSll nllmber of equily ahnr 
olll I ndilli during the period fit · IIdjus!ed fur Ihe efl'ec:: l ~ or 1111 dillJlivc PQten~illl Quity all fCB . 

Bll~ed gn "Mlin Igcmcnt Approach" as dcfln d \11 Ind A . lOS . per'HinS Sel:lm(lnt~, Ihe hier 
pemlin8 ccision Maker evaluates Iho 'o l1'\Puny '~ perf'grmnnCQ om! ollocnl . Ul r Ufce 

b cd on 1 n lysis of vilfiou~ perfurmunce indicnlor~ hy bllsim:s i m nt8. h omplllly 
conclude Ihm II operllla~ undet one reporting segment. 

Unllllocuohi ilems i nQ l ude~ generol corpor t income and eXJ.lOIl 0 Itoms whioh ure nnl 
alluCllted lu un)' husiness sCl:lmenl. 

!tID nl Polich! 

h olnpuny prepure~ jls s'smenl infomlnlion in conforn]lty wIth the IIccoululng polioills 
adopled for prep;rring IlIld presenlini UIC stand lone flnliIicllil 81 icme,lla uf Ihe llrnpUI1)' liS n 
Wlillie. ullllllon pllocnb!e costs OJ' !located io each Begin nt On il lll1ppropriule hasis. 

Tha preparaliOn of lhe; Oml) ny's andulollc [lnal1Cllil sUilOIllCl118 requira~ mUllagemenl til 
111uke judgement, estim Ilea and umpilon8 that affecl Ihe reported "mllunl f revenuc, 
~xpcn!i~~, II:;~C\S 11d Ii bilitl s nd the Ii ompanying disclosures. Uneartn!nly Ilbout til e 
as~a l mpliol1 ' ml c 11m t s could resuli In Olll Ome~ Ihal require p mnt~rill l nQjlll!tment io 
the cllrryinll mount of I or lI ab Ihlcs af'f'llclad ill fulure period~ , 

a) Diiprc.ciMiufi I IImo rti~ lIlion lind liS 'ful liv of pl'ope I plant find cq uiplDent I 
IlIhlll 'iblc IIsscb 

l' ruperly. pIr1!1\ lind equipment I inl ngible ss 'liI aril depre iUlad I all1urlbr:d C)ver !heir 
!l~ t imutt:d ~se f\lllives, ft t kin Inio IicCOUlll ll~ti l11 Ullld residual vnl~e . Mann en enl 
rev i llw~ Ule stim icd u cfuillvils and ril iduul vulues of Ihe IIsse\~ gnnunlly in order to 
d termin th Rill lint of depreciallon I umnrli ~uliol1 10 be r ord d during lilly 
r porting po iod. The u~ef'u l lives lind rc~id \ln l voluc are b cd on Ihe ~o ll1puny's 
hlslorlcol Gxpcrience wilh similul' el and IlIke llil aCCounl anlit)ipuled 
ICldmologiCli1 eh Ingcs. The d Pl'cc\ tlon IliIil0rtlSalion for fulure peri lds i ' r'vi 'ed if 
Ihere nre sill,nificIU1( eh ngcB from previuus ~~lili1ate.~. 

b) . OViJfabilii- uf lrulle reeeivQ hl 
Jud 1ll '11I8!ife requited in Ilssessing Ih recovernbllity of overdue Lt'lide rGt:civubles 
nd dOlefl'llinin!! whelher II provisi 11 1\ nin t tho e I' celv ks i~ required. Fllulurs 

t;OIlSidored include Ihe Qredi mling. of the ounl -rpatl ),. IhG mfloUnl nnd tim ina of 
un ti iputed futllre p'lyment nd ny pOBslbl uCtl(in~ lhul UlIII be Illken lO !1).iti.l.Il!C th 
risk of I1Qn'p lymenl tf%Y~i:.I I7:~., 

;1~Qi~CI 'I'~~ 
'i-\' " ~~II '\~ i 



2019 and tilt rnerlt of 

il) l'ru"i8iunN 
r'r vj~i()n~ and lillhi lili!;s nj"e r ogniz d In the period whGn it bec:on1()~ prohnbh: th I 
Ihl!re will he u I'ut\!£!; oy\flow of funds I' lIliing frOIl'! pasl uperHli()n~ or events nnd the 
amounl of Q(l h outflow c n rell bly estlmaled. The liming or recoaniti n nd 
quun!ifiClltion of th Ii bility requlros ihe applicaliun of judllelllenl 10 exi ting facIs 
lind circllln lances, whIch cail be ~hjeol lo Qhn!l e, Th c rrying J 'OUIllS of 
I>r vlslolls and lIabilili(i~ are reviewed rCBulnrly nnd revised 10 lake Cellun! uf 
changIng facLQ ~nd ciroumslam;es. 

cI) 1011) lrm nt of DOD-nllilll~11IIuN8il\ N 
he omp ny OBseSSeS ili ei.lch teporlilig dale whelher ihere is n indicotion Ihal i.ln 
ssel m y be Impaired. II' uny indicnlion exi ts, the omp ny e tlmmcs Lhc I.L~Ne!'s 

i'l:coVlll'ilble amount. An IISsel'8 rccov r ble moulll Is the highGr llf un u.~sl!l'5 or Ii ir 
value less oosl' of disp B 11 nd ita vtUu In usc. Ills delermined f r un individu I JlBcl, 
unh:~;s the et do~ not generaiil c8sh Influ\v8 Ihill are luraely ina pelldcl I of Iho. il 
frnrn other scls r 8 groups 0 u!i81l1~. Where the cllrryipg nmoun of 11 liS Sill Or 
c:<ce d it r Ovcfllble amounl,!h l1~sel is cunsidered illlpnired nnd is writ! n duwl! 10 

il r cover. blc amoIJnt. 

In 8S c~sing vulue ill \I~e, ~he e tim led [tltufe i\sh flows aro dlst;(junl~d Ig their 
presenl vu lue usina pr -tm< dis o\lnl rate ih I reneel8 Cllrrclnl markelu~se~sl11 nt~ of tl c 
lime vulue of mOil y Ilnd the risks spcclflc tu the asse\. In d I fl11irtina ~ if v 1\1 le88 
cosls of disl>oS I. re enl murk!!1 Ifllns'lillions nre t k n into coollnl, I flO ~Udl 
II' ns cHona .11 b Idellilliotl, On uppruprillie vllll![I\ion model Is used, 

) Impuirlncn\ uf I1nlln ~I!! 1 I ~~ Is 

The impuinnenl provi iOIl for f1nnnelll ilS illS ate bu.~ed on !I~slllnp\ions nb lit 1'1 k of 
delilu!1 md xpeetcd ellBh I ss fal~~. The nmpuny IIses judgement In Ill. klng lhll~G 
18SIU11plions and selecting the Inpuls Ig Ihe imp innellt c lelilmlon, baslld till 

omp n)"s pllBI hi~lur>" existing mllr~ct c ndiliol1s 8 well uS forward looking 
catim te 11\ iho !lnd of' euch reporting p riod, 

Ili ~cluslIl'cs : 

As por AUllQunlillB tnndnrd 18, Ih dl closur\l~ of lriin~m:tinn~ with Ihe r-I ted partl B fl8 
deli ned in Ihe AccounHng Inndard nro giv 11 below: 

II) Rei ted P rtIc : 

(I) ub ldiu\'y tln1puny: NI 

(ii) A~~;oQi(\les : NI 

(iii) Key Man3gcrlall'er&onnlll (KMP) 
• Nltlnkum r Oldwunia. Direr:lor 
• Kiln l :ill rll10 - Dlreclo 



Noteli forming purt of the Balance sheet aa at M l' h 1, 201 9 and til · ment of 
Prnn and 0 "· fOr the year ended March 31,2019 

(Iv) Blllerpri~1l over which KMP exer i c ntfol 
• Vlltila~ (Indiu) td 
I Hnzel M(ltl:llrlLile Li l11ltlltl 
• Verltas Infra & LogiRlic IJvt ltd 
• V rit Housing Dllvelopm fll "VI ltd 

b) ranan lions w1th r luted purtie~ I'ur lh~ period ended M _rch 31 201 
(Flilul'cs in Ih.) 

!l!,b~I\!lllry Msoclnle KM I) & Ihelr EOIffpfl,e oVer TOlnl 
relultv" will h I<MI' 

ex relle conlro l 
I n ell'lIl"~ 
holdln~ 

CUfIIllHflV 

UlllfCI,fci! 
NIL NIL 'NtL 19,400,000 19.'100,000 

LUIlII Tuken 
(I'. y .) (NIL) (NIl.) (JJ,l6.80,OOO) (2,417,092,0.16) (2,7~1l,772,04G) 

UnsQcured NtL NIL NIL j I9,700,OOO 519,700,000 
1.0110 R paid 

(P.V.) (N IL) (N il.) (NIL) (2,672.915) (2, 12,9 1$) 

Rent I) Id 3H2.2S0 NIL ~IL_l 833,636 1,2 I ~, HH(, 
(382.250) (NIL) NIL 1760) 16) (! .14Z.5661 

Invill lffioOIi 520,514,267 Nil Nil Nil 52MI4.26' Reed 

) Bal. neG wilh relaled pllrlie~ n~ II I Iv! reh 1.1019: 
( I; i~ure~ in Rs.) 

Sn 1J1i11l!u ry i\s5Dcln KM I' & their EnlerJlrl,~ {lViif .vI,leh Tulu l 
Iii fiihlJi~ KMI' elvrcllr ~ontro l 

UfiSeCUI"\;Y I'l l NIL 33.36,HO.000 1,488. 40.762 1,822,020,762 
Lonn (f'. Y.) Nil. NIl.. NIL (l,~ 11 .2GO,730) (2.~ 11.160.730) 

Dep .11 20.000.POQ NIl. NIL I ~,oOO,OOO 3S.000.QOO 
(20,000,000) (NIL) (NIL) (I ~.OOO.OOO) (35,000,000) 

Nol~l. III lilt Cllr'diil Y liT !11II1I!ml rcruil'cd /rllllliit a IIoltllllN OOIllPUIIJ' W11. 8"JII{!dllllfi,l iif II/h ur Vl/lilly fIr 
~!ll'lfqf COllfrlbllllllll/rOIll pl/wlI CIIIIIPfIll)' IIIIIII/i/llilli//ll 1l.s,5ZIJS ""61 U~ III III~ Dllli oj' l', y •• tJ 111-10 19. 

he omp ny reporls ba~ilJ und dilut~d cQJl1inij ' Per h r (LP~) In ac.cordal1lJll wilh Ind 
A 3 on llmlll1!8 I'ur Shure. Ilowevcr ther- is no incomcllo dllring tho reportina yellr, 

14, nl Llil ililli l ·ii : I'll 

IS, 
(FlifilfC8 in R!I.l 

Fnr Ihe yenr t'lIr II! 1 periud 
1>urii~ulur5 end Ii Mllrell elld 'd Murch 

31 ,1019 l ' .20 i 8 a I'flVI1(oo For ser\li~es 8S ~tn llll\Jry Audilors , . "- 1.00.1)00 1,00,000 

~D~ Tulul n: ~ 
;.~, 1,00,000 1.00,000 

~ g. ~, ~\..\\ V 
{~JJ; • .1 tl· .\" • 1" 

1,\ ' ~ 

" " ~" 
\ 



Not s fonning pur of Lhe u.iunce ht;:et tiS LIt MtLrch 31. 2019 und StEltcmcllt of 
Profi t and o~~ for the Y Of t:nd d MUfOh 31. 2019 

16. The ol11pnn)' doe~ nol hnve nn)' dll!l~ pnynblc to n)' micro. ~111 II nd Ille 11\1111 ~n!~fflP! ;8 I fiI Ille 
ycpr ~nd , hI: IdQ!1ilnC tlon r the mlc I moll . medium CIlI;tllrlsc I bfi (f II illL 1i1lgol11!lnl's 
kllOwlecl jlo uf Ihoir swluli. Tho Cumpuny hu~ nol received nny inlimillion Itom the ~1I11plle r 
regllrd ing their ~tutus under the M M 0 Aot 2000. 1"lencll. dl~c lo~ llre~. If nny. relnt lng to om Ililt . 
unpnld n~ nt th;: yenr encl, tog ther wlih iller I pult! I jlfiynble It -qllifed under Ille 8nid aiil hn\le not 
b n IilveM, 

17, In the opin ion of tba Bnnrd nnd i Ih b t or ih Ir kno\V l ~di:l(l fiM bollef, the va lile on uliulil.1n or 
the ~Url'iifll 0 sci, 103118 ,'Ie. adviillcu~; (filposit~ III !lIe ordinury cour~o of bu~i nes~ will not be leS8 thnn 
tho vu lue stnled in the Bnlnnce ~heet. Tho linblli\lc~ n Co unt of 8UPP!Y of ood &. etv l~es firu 
D I~o nnl more ih nth .. y lue (If lI,bllhle e eel)! wrltt Ii 011' Oft iieCOUlll or ii hortilllc/rute 
0111' l'9uce!conl lIel perCurtlifinelVQuuliiy lit~u \)iI ~LC. 

18, A~ per the terms of Irmngcmcnt with the Hold lna o!npnny, th~ COlllj}fi!ly h s r"~elv · d POrt iu l hur~ 
Appllcntlon rvl 0I1QY mOlllllln~ to I~ • 1.04,3 1,34,ll7/- (II ul J 1.0J .l O 19) DB por Ihil provisions of the 
celloll 42 of Tlic UIIIJlfillioB ACt, 201), Ilowovcr, u~ ugr~lId wilh the subscribers. the Qompnny will 

allot tho Shuro5 upon rllaoipl of the remnining Shnr Applicnlion Money 

n) The COl11pnny h tnken COmf!1er-c 01 SJ)Hce n fin Oil "ratlnil len bilRi , Tin; lef ronlnls ure 
Ijuyubl by the Cllnlpfin)' 0 11 ilnll)lllh l)'lqunl't~rI)I bu~i~, 

b) r.lIluro minimlll11ll1nSII rentnls pnynble as nt j 1I0j/2019 n~ per the IcnKc ~Bre~m~ni : 

PIlI"tlcu lnrs 

Nol Inter Ihon one yenr 

Aa per Our Audit Report of liven dille nttllQhed 

For MllInd Mehln.1'i ·0 

. hnrILlfcd;. eO!!J1iimtB 

For Ihe YCilf em! ' d For ill ' Yiiar cud 'd 
JI/0312019 31/03/2018 
I i l $,~H6 ~ 002,<1 00 

F"ur "!lid un B IlII lfufl hlllJuu rd 

"UNAL ~ RMA 
OIR · TOR 
DT : OJ!l!!j '.Iii 



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO mE MEMBERS OF 
VERITAS AGRO VENTUREPRIV ATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON mE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanyin$ financial statements of Mis Veritas Agro Venture 

Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, 

the Statmnent of Profit and Loss (includin$ Other Comprehensive Income) and the Cash 

Flow Statement and Statement of Chan$es in Equih] for the year then ended and a 

sunll11ary of si$nificant accountin$ policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordin$ to the explanations Biven 

to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements $ive the information required by the Act in 

the manner so required and $ive a true and fair view in conformity with the accountin$ 

principles $enerally accepted in India includin$ the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2019, and its profit and its cash flows and the chan$es in equih] 

for the year ended on that date. 

BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditin$ (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Compan1] in 

accordance with the Code of EthicS issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India tO$ether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400104. 
TEL. : 2B72 0555 / 2873 9939. CIN No. AAC-2949 • shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

KEY AUDITMATIERS 

Kel,) audit matters are those matters that, in our profeSSional judBment, were of nlOst 

siBnificance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 

fonninB our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no kel,) audit matters to communicate in our report. 

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBlUTYfOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Companl,)'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2015 (lithe Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 

Iud AS financial statements that Bive a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance includinB Other Comprehensive Income cash Hows and chanBes in 

Ecp . .1itl,) of the COlnpanl,) in accordance with the accountinB principles Beneralll,) accepted 

in India includinB the AccountinB Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 135 of the 

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

This responsibilitl,) also includes maintenance of adequate accountinB records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeBuardinB the assets of the Company and 

for preventinB and detectinB frauds and other irreBularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accountinB policies; makinBjudBments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and desiBn, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operatinB eHectivell,) for ensurin8 the accuracl,) and completeness of 

the accountinB records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 

financial statements that Bive a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparin8 the financial statements, manaBement is responsible for assessinB the 

Companl,) 's abilitl,) to continue as a BoinB concern, disclosinB, as applicable, matters 

related to BoinB concern and usinB the BoinB concern basis of accountinB unless 

manaBement either intends to liqUidate the Companl,) or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeinB the Companl,)'s financial reportinB process. 

NARAYAN NIW AS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI • 400104. 
TEL. : 2B72 0555 / 2873 9939. ClN No. AAC-2949. shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 
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AUDITORS'RESPONSIBIllTY 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS tinancial 

statenlents as a whole are tree trom material misstatement, whether due to traud or error, 

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hieh 

level of assurance, but is not a euarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will alwal]s detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

traud or error and are considered material it, individualll] or in the aeereeate, thel] could 

reasonabll] be expected to inHuence the economic decisions ot users taken on the basis of 

these Ind AS financial statements. 

REPORT ON OTI-IER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

As required bl] the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued b1] the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) ot section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we eive in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paraeraphs 3 

and 4 ot the Order, to the extent applicable. 

1. As required bl] Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have soueht and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of our knowledee and belief were necessan] for the purposes of our 

audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required bl] law have been kept bl] 

the COlllpanl] so tar as it appears trom our examination of those books. 

d The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss includine other 

Comprehensive Income and the Cash Row Statement and Chanees in EquihJ 

dealt with bl] this Report are in aereement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements compll] with the 

Accountine Standards specified under Section 133 ot the Act, read with Rule 7 

of the COl11panies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 includine Ind AS; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received trom the directors as on 

March 31, 2019, taken on record bl] the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

is disqualitied as on March 31, 2019, trom beine appointed as a director in terl11S 

of Section 164 (2) of the Act. ~"""':~:::::::RJr.--~O:::::~~ 

NARAYAN NIW AS, 6J, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON CN'J. MUMBAI ·400 104. \.~~ 
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f) With respect to the adequacl] of the internal financial controls over finc :ial 

reportin8 of the companl] and the operatin8 effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to our separate Report in Annexure B 

8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 

our opinion and to the best of our information and accordin8 to the 

explanations 8iven to us: 

(i) The COll1panl] has disclosed the impact of pendin8liti8ations on its 

financial position in its IND AS financial statements. 

(ii) The COll1panl] has made provision, as required under the applicable 

law or accountin8 standards, for material foreseeable losses, if anl], 

and as required on lon8-term contracts includin8 derivative 

contracts. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to 

the Investor Education and Protection Fund bl] the Companl]. 

For SHABBIR &- RITA ASSOCIATES UP 

Chartered Accoun tan ts 

Firm's Re8istration No.109420W 

habbir S Baljasraw a 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 

Place of Si8nature: Mumbai 

Date:30/04/2019 

NARAYAN NIWAS, 63, AAREY ROAD, GOREGAON (W), MUMBAI - 400104. 
TEL: 2872 0555 / 2873 9939. CIN No. AAC-2949. shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Relerred to in para$raph 1 under the headin$ 'Report on Other Le$al & Re$ulatorlJ 
Requirement' ol our report ol even date to the linancial statements ol the CompanlJ lor the 
lJear ended March 31, 2019, we report that: 

1) (a) The CompanlJ has maintained proper records showin$ lull particulars, indudin$ 
quantitative details and situation ol lixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been phlJsicalll] verilied blJ the manaaement in a 

phased manner, desi$ned to cover all the items over a period ol three lJears, 

which in our opinion, is reasonable havin$ re$ard to the size ol the companlJ 

and nature ol its business. Pursuant to the pro$ram, a portion o£ the lixed asset 

has been phlJsicalllJ verilied blJ the mana$ement durin$ the lJear and no 

material discrepancies between the books records and the phlJsical lixed 

assets have been noticed. 

(c) The title deeds ol immovable properties are held in the name ol the campaulJ. 

2) (a) The manaaement has conducted the phlJsical verilication o£ inventor"':) at 
reasonable in tervals. 

(b) The discrepancies noticed on phlJsical verilication ol the inventor"':) as 
compared to books records which has been properllJ dealt with in the books ol 
account were not material. 

3) Accordin$ to the inlormation and explanations Biven to us, the CompanlJ has NOT 

$ranted unsecured loans to wholllJ owned subsidiaries covered under section 189 
oltheAct. 

(a) The terms and conditions on which loan has been $ranted to the borrower 

COl11panlJ covered under Section 189 o£ the Act is not, prima lacie, prejudicial 

to the interest o£ the COl11panlJ.-NA 

(b) The principal al110unt is repalJable within __ hom the date o£ receipt o£ such 

loan. The borrower has been re$ular in pm]in$ interest on loan .. -NA 

(c) There is no overdue amount ol l110re than __ dalJs in respect ol loan $ranted 

to the partlJ listed in the re$ister l11aintained under section 189 o£ the Act. .­
NA 

4) In our opinion and accordin$ to the inlormation and explanations Biven to us, the 
companlJ has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 ol the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect ol loans, investments, $uarantees, and securitlJ. 



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

5) The Companl,) has not accepted anl,) deposits £rom the public and hence the 
directives issued bl,) the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 
76 or ant] other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with reBard to the deposits accepted £rom the public are not 
applicable. 

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified b1) the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) o£ Section 148 of the Act, in respect of 
the activities carried on bl,) the companl,). 

7) (a) AccordinB to information and explanations Biven to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books o£ account, and records, the Compal1t] has been Benerallt] 
reBular in depositinB undisputed statutorl,) dues includinB Provident Fund, 
Emplol,)ees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duh] of Customs, 
Dutl,) of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and anl,) other statutorl,) dues with the 
appropriate authorities. AccordinB to the information and explanations Biven to 
us, no undisputed amounts pal,)able in respect of the above were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date on when thel,) 
become pal,)able. 

b) AccordinB to the information and explanation Biven to us, the followinB dues of 
Income Tax and Sales Tax / Value Added Tax have not been deposited b1) the 
Compal1t] on account of disputes. 

Name of the Nature of dues Amount (In Rs.) Period to Forum where 

Statute which the dispute is 

amount pendillB 

relates 

INCOME TAX INCOME TAX 1072570 A Y.2013-14 CIT APPEAL 8 
ACT 1961 

INCOME TAX INCOME TAX 883800 A Y.2014-15 CIT APPEAL 8 
ACT 1961 

INCOME TAX INCOME TAX 2863580 A Y.2015-16 CIT APPEAL 8 
ACT 1961 

INCOME TAX INCOME TAX 3007744 A Y.2016-17 CIT APPEAL 8 
ACT 1961 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

8) In our opinion and accordin8 to the infonnation and explanations 8iven to us, the 
Companlj has not defaulted in the repaljl11ent of dues to banks. The Company has 
not taken anlj loan either from financial institutions or frOl11 the 80vernment and 
has not issued anlj debentures. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures per£ormed and the information and explanations 

8iven blj the mana8ement, the companlj has not raised moneljs blj walj of initial 

public oHer or further public oHer includin8 debt instmments and term Loans. 

Accordin8llj, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Companlj and hence not commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
8iven blj the Inana8ement, we report that no fraud blJ the Companlj or on the 
companlj blj its oHicers or emploljees has been noticed or reported durin8 the ljear. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures per£ormed and the information and explanations 
8iven blj the l11anaael11ent, the mana8erial remuneration has been paid or 
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated blj the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the COl11panlj is not a Nidhi Companlj. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the COlnpanlj. 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements as required blj the applicable accountin8 standards. 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 

8iven blj the l11ana8ement, the companlJ has made preferential allotment of equitlJ 

shares durin8 the ljear under review and has complied with all the requirements of 

section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(a) The amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds 

were raised blj the Compam} 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
aiven blJ the manaaement, the companlJ has not entered into anlJ non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordinah], the 
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the CompanlJ and 
hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the companlJ is not required to be reaistered under section 45 IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordinallJ' the provisions of clause 3 
(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the CompanlJ and hence not commented 
upon. 

For SIiABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accoun tan ts 

Finn's Reaistration No.109420W 

Shabbir S Baaasrawala 
Partner 

.. ~~ 
tS,] 

)"",0' ACCO\)''\~ 
Membership No. 039865 

Place of Sianature: MUl'nbai 
Date:30/04/2019 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
AnnexureB 

REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reportin8 of Mis. 
YE.RITAS AGRO VENTURE. PRIVATE LIMITED("the CompanlJ") as of March 31, 

2019 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the Companl] for 

the lJear ended on that date. 

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSILILITYFOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The COlllpanlJ'S Inana8ement is responsible for establishin8 and maintainin8 internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reportin8 criteria 

established blJ the CompanlJ considerin8 the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Fin< :ial 

Reportin8 issued, blJ the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 

include the desi8n, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

contY< that were operatin8 effectivellJ for ensurin8 the orderllJ and efficient conduct of 

its business, includin8 adherence to companlJ's policies, the safe8uardin8 of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuraclJ and completeness of the 

accountin8 records, and the timellJ preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY 

Our responsibilitlJ is to express an opinion on the CompanlJ's internal financial controls 

over financial reportin8 based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportin8 (the 

"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditin8, issued blJ ICAl and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 

an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 

Controls and, both issued blJ the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we compllJ with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reportin8 was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated eHectivellJ in all material respects. 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Our audit involves perforl11in$ procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequact) of 

the internal financial controls slJstem over financial reportin$ and their operatin$ 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reportin$ included 

obtainin$ an understandin$ of internal financial controls over financial reportin$, 

assessin$ the risk that a material weakness exists, and testin$ and evaluatin$ the desi$n 

and operatin$ effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor's jud$ement, includin$ the assessment of the risks of 
l11aterialmisstatel11ent of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the CompanlJ's internal financial controls slJstem 

over financial reportin$. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A cOl11panlJ's internal financial control over financial reportin$ is a process desi$ned to 

provide reasonable assurance re$ardin$ the reliabilitlJ of financial reportin$ and the 

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with $eneralh) 

accepted accountin$ principles. A companlJ's internal financial control over fina :ial 

reportin$ includes those policies and procedures that 

1. Pertain to the l11aintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratellJ and fairh) 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the COl11panlJ. 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessarlJ to pen11i t 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with $eneralllJ accepted 

accountin$ principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the companlJ are beine 

made onllJ in accordance with authorisations of l11ana$el11ent and directors of the 

COl11panlJ; and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance re$ardin$ prevention or til11elt) detection of 
unau thorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the COl11panlJ 's assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statel11ents. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent lil11itations of internal financial controls over financial reportin$, 

includin$ the possibilitlJ of collusion or il11proper mana$ement override of controls, 

material l11isstatel11ents due to error or fraud malJ occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of anlJ evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reportin8 to 

future period are subje to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reportin$ mat) become inadequate because of chan$es in conditions, or that the de$ree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures malJ deteriorate . 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the CompanlJ has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls slJstem over financial reportina and such internal financial controls over financial 

reportina were operatina eHectivellJ as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control 
over financial reportina criteria established blJ the COlnpanlJ considerina the essential 
components of internal control stated in the GUidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reportina issued blJ the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. 

For SHABBIR &' RITA ASSOCIATES LLP 

Chartered Accoun tan ts 
Firm's Reaistration No.109420W 

~ 
Shabbir S Baaasrawala 

Partner 

Membership No. 039865 

Place of Sianature: Mumbai 
Date:30/04/2019 
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PR1VATE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet for the period ended 31st March 2019 

Asat Asat 
Particulars Notes 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 

-Tangible Assets 84881,13,803 84882,24,175 

-Goodwill 4,20,252 8,40,504 

(b) Financial Assets 

- Investments 4 - 6,01,600 

(e) Other Non Current Assets 5 24,07,803 37,34,213 

Total Non Current Assets 84909,41,858 84934,00,492 
- -- - - - --

-
2 Current Assets 

(a) Inventories - -

(b) Financial Assets 

- Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 6,43,540 3,40,447 

(e) Other Current Assets 7 - 548 

Total Current Assets 6,43,540 3,40,995 

Total Assets 84915,85,398 84937,41,487 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

1 (a) Equity Share Capital 8 1,00,000 1,00,000 

(b) Other Equity 9 83459,68,026 83488,07,915 

Total Equity 83460,68,026 83489,07,915 

-
liabilitIes 

- -
2 Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

- Borrowings 10 1454,77,872 1447,97,872 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 0 6,300 

Total Non Current Liabilities 1454,77,872 1448,04,172 

3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

- Other Financial Liabilities 11 39,500 29,400 

Total Current Liabilties 39,500 29,400 

Total Equity and Liabilties 84915,85,398 84937,41,487 

The accomplmying notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates LLP For ~d on behalf of Boar1~f Directors -Chtlrtered Accountants ~ 
Firm Regd. No.: 109420W tI:~ ~ Nitin Kumar Did iI -

Director 

C ~ ~MU~ DIN: 00210289 fr:J ~ 

/' O~ .we> .J! Iy~) ., ~f:' 
Shabbir S Bagasrawala ~d A~ Nitib~ .?"\"'- ~ Partner - ....:: 

Membership No.: 039865 Director 
DIN : 01938308 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30/04J2019 



VERI rAS .·\GRO \'[NTURE PRI\',\TE U\IITED 

Particulars 

Continued operations 

Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 

Manufacturing Costs 

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in Inventories of.stock.-i~:!rade 
Emloyee Benefit Expenses 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Finance Costs 

Other Expenses 

Prior Period Items 

'atal Expenses 

• rofit! (loss) before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 

ProfitJ (loss) before tax 

Tax Expense 

a) Current tax 

b) Income Tax Adjustment 

a) Deferred tax 

- c) MAT Credit (Entitiement)IAdj. 

d) Adjustment of Earlier Years 

Total Tax Expense 

Profit! (loss) for the period from continuing operations 

Profit! (loss) from discontinued operations 

Tax expense of discontinued operations 

Profit! (loss) from discounting operations (after tax) 

ProfitJ (loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 

- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss 
- Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Earnings per equity share 

a) Basic 

b) Diluted 

,tying notes. in part o/the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates LLP 

Membership No.: 039865 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30 04/2019 

Notes 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

For the year ended 

31 March 2019 

2,100400 

2,10,400 

35,100 

2,10,458 

5,30,624 

3,599 

22,76,808 

30,56,589 

(28,46,189) 

(28,46,189) 

(6,300) 

(6,300) 

(28,39,889) 

(28,39,889) 

(28,39,889) 

(283.99) 

(283.99) 

(Amount in Rs.) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2018 

2,35,709 

2,35,709 

27,730 

__ 18,32,569 

2,16,716 

5,59,290 

6,272 

24,59,297 

51,01,874 

(48,66,165) 

(48,66,165) 

,(19,054) 

(19,054) 

(48,47,111) 

(48,47,111) 

(48,47,111) 

(484.71) 

(484.71) 

For and on behalf of Boa of Directors 

DIN: 00210289 

~d ' 
Nlti Dl wanta 

Director 
DIN: 01938308 



VERITAS ,\GRO \'ENTL:RE rrU\'.'\TE LI~IITED 

Particulars 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities 

Profits before Tax 

Addl(Less): 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Loss on Subsidiary Investment 

Interest & Finance Charges 

Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 

Working Capital Clclnges 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 

(!nerease)IDeerease in Trade Receivables 
(Increase){Deerease in Short Term Loans and Advances 
(Inerease){Deerease in Other Current Assets 
Jnerease/(Deerease) in other finandalliabilities 
Inerease/(Deerease) in Other Current Liabilities 
(Inerease){Decrease in Working Capital 

Cash Generated from Operating Activities 

Cash Used (-)/(+) generated for operating activities (A) 

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities 

Loss on Non-Current Investments 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ( B ) 

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

Iiiterest Paid 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (C) 

D Net Increase (+)/ Decrease H in cash and cash equivalent 

Cash equivalent ( A+B+C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalent Opening Balance 

Cash and Cash Equivalent Closing Balance 

The accompanying notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates LLP 

Partner 
Membership No.: 039865 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/04/2019 

For the year period ended 31st 

March 2019 

5,30,624 

21,00,235 

3,599 

(1,71,677) 
6,80,000 

10,100 

(3,599) 

(28,46,189) 

26,34,458 

(2,11,731) 

5,18,423 

3,06,692 

3,06,692 

(3,599) 

3,03,093 

3,40,447 

6,43,540 

Ni~ 
Director 

DIN : 01938308 

(Amount in Rs.) 

For the year period ended 31st 

March 2018 

5,59,290 

6,272 

18,32,569 

23,46,256 
(11,09,349) 

(56) 
(31,500) 
(51,523) 

(6;272) 

(48,66,165) 

5,65,562 

(43,00,603) 

29,86,397 

(13,14,206) 

(13,14,206) 

(13,20,478) 

16,60,925 

3,40,447 



VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2019 

1 Corporate Information 

Veritas Agro Venture Private Limited ("The Company") is a subsidiary of the Listed Public entity 

incorporated in India. The Company is dealing in business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro 
;.,- - -- -- :- - --

products. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian 
Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements in 
accordance with the requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), 
which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and 
considered as "Previous GAAP". 

These financial Statemeot~are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

(i) Derivative financial instruments 
(ii) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 

Regarding financial instruments) 

Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional 
currency. 

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a) Current I Non- Current Classification 

Company presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non­
Current classification. 

An Asset is treated as current when it is: 

a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) Held primarily for the purpose oftrading; 
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

or at least twelve months after the reporting period. 



All other Assets are classified as Non-Current. 

A Liability is current when: 
a} It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d} There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period,_ 

The Company classifies all other Liabilities as Non-Current. 

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 

b) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount 
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost 
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful life 
prescribed in Schedule II ofthe Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

The company has in an earlier financial year carried out assessment of useful lives of these 
assets and based on technical justification, different useful lives have been arrived at in 
respect of above assets. The justification for adopting different useful life compared to the 
useful life of assets provided in Schedule II is based on the business specific environment & 
usage, consumption pattern of the assets, past performance of similar assets and peer 
industry comparison duly supported by technical assessment by a Chartered Engineer. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of a property, plant and equipment are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognized. 



c) leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or 
contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset 
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is 
not explicitly specified in an arrangement. For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 
2015, the Company has detepnined whether tbe.ar:.r:..angement contain lease on the basis Qf 
facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition . 

Company as a lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease 
that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company 
is classified as a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in 
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

d) Intangible Assets and Amortization 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization /depletion 
and impairment loss, if any. 

Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign 
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to 
the intangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Gains or losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Intangible assets of the company comprises of Software which is amortized over a period of 
5 years. 



e) Finance Costs 

Borrowing Costs includes Interest, amortisation of ancilliary cost incurred in connection 
with the arrangement of Borrowings and exchange differences arising from Foreign 
Currency Borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest 
Costs. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for 
which they are incurred. 

f) Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing 
for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other 
overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present 
location and condition. The valuation of inventories is done on FIFO Method. 

g) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any 
property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent 
of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use 
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk 
specific to the assets. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. 

h) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 

lbodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made ofthe amount of the obligation. 



i) Employee Benefit Expenses 

(i) Short Term Employee Benefits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering the service 
are classified as Short Term Employee Benefits and they are recognised in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense 
during the period when the employees render the services. 

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the 
Company makes specified monthly payments to Employee State Insurance S eme, 
Provident Fund Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all 
applicable employees. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders 
the related service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the basis of 
an actuarial valuation on Projected Unit cost method made at the end of each 
financial year. Actuarial gains/ (losses) are recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after 
deducting the fair value of the plan assets. The Company determines the net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by 
multiplying the net liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the 
beginning of the annual reporting period. 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are 
charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. 

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company 
measures the lected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date. 



Other long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences which are 
both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of 
accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation using 
projected unit credit method . 

j) Tax Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay Income Tax under the normal 
provisions during the specified period, resulting-in utilisation of MAT Credit. In the Year-in 
which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the 
recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants' of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. Company reviews the same at each Balance 
Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent 
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will utilise MAT Credit 
during the specified period. 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period. 

k) Foreign currencies transactions and translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. 



Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of 
assets. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items 

_ ____ measured at fair value in a foreign CUIrency are translateLI_,:!sing the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non­
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in 0(::1 or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in 
OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at 
the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses 
arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

I) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the e-conomic benefits will flow 
to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

Revenue from Sale of Goods 
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have been passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, 
volume rebates and cash discounts. 

Revenue from Electricity Generation 
Sale of Power is recognised at the point of transmission of electricity generated from 
Windmill. 

Interest Income 
Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Dividends 
Dividends are recognised when the company's right to receive the payment has been 
established. 



m) Financial Instruments 

(i) Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction 
costs_th~J: are directly attributable to the acqui.sition or issue of finan_~ial assets and 
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to 
the fair value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehen-sive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured 
at FVTPL. 

Equity Investments 

The Company has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint 
venture at cost. 



Other Equity Investments 

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the Company 
decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
thejnstrument, excludillg.fiividends, are recognized in the OCI. 1.bere is no recycling _ __ . 
of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 
Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (Le. removed from the 
Company's balance sheet) when: 

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset 

or nas assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and 
either 
I) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset, or 
II) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control ofthe 
asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or 
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it 
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company 
has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 



Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECl) 
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assgts that are debt i[lstrl.!!!,ents, and are measured at amortized~ 
cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance 

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 
c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to _receive cash or another 

financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind 
AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue receivables' in these standalone 
financial statements) 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance on: 

a) Trade Receivables and 
b) Other Receivables 

The application of simplifiea approach does-not require the Company to track 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECls at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the 
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECl is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECl is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality 
of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment 
loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime Eel are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECl is a portion of 
the lifetime ECl which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date. 



ECl is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the 
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity 
expects to receive (Le., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When 
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial 
instrument. However, in rare cases,YIhen the expecte_d Jjf~_of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the 
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument. 

b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables 
and lease receivables: ECl is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of 
the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces 
the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

(ii) Financial liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans 
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative 
financial instruments. 



Subsequent Measurement 

The measurement offinancialliabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below: 

Financialliabiliti~s at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also 
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that a re not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they 
are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or 
loss are designated as-such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria­
in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss 
are not subsequently transferred to P&l. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated 
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 



Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is repla ced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liaQility are substantiaUy __ modified, such an exchange or moljjfication is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

(iii) Derivative Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments- forward currency contracts to 
hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as fina ncial 
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is 
negative. 

(iv) Fair Value Measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at 
each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
Ii~~ility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for 

the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using ! assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. 



The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizingthe use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the fina ncial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 'markets for identical assets 
or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements 
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurem-ent as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis ofthe nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

n) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

0) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholder by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 



p) Segment Reporting 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the 
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The 
Company conc!~des that it operates under one re(Lorting segment. _ Una_~owable items 
include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 
business segment. 

Segment Policies 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies 
adopted for preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements ofthe Company 
as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 

2.3 Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to 
make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, 
expenses, assets arrd liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Depreciation / amortization and useful lives of property plant and equipment / 
intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortized over 
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. 
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets 
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortization to be 
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based 
on the Company's historical experience with similar assets and take into account 
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortization for future 
periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

b) Recoverability of trade receivable 

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade 
receivables and determining whether a provision against those receivables is 
required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the 
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions th at can 
be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. 



c) Provisions 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that 
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and 
the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and 
quantification of the liability requires the application of judgment to existing facts 
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amou nts of 
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and ciJcul'D~tances . 

d) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent 
of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an 
asset or exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present va1ue using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

e) Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk 
of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making 
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on 
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period. 



2.4 Adoption of Ind AS 

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being 
restated. Accordingly the impact oftransition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as 
at 1st April 2016. The figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and 
reclassified wherever required to comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule III. 

Exemptions from Retrospectjye Application 

(i) Business combinations 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind 
AS 103, "Business Combinations" to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 
2016 (the "Transition Date"), pursuant to which goodwill/capital reserve arising from a 
business combination has been stated at the carrying amount prior to the date of transition 
under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the exemption for past business 
combinations to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures 
consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

(ii) Fair value as Deemed Cost 

The Company has elected to measure items of property;-plant and equipment and intangible 
assets at its carrying value at the transition date except for certain class of assets which are 
measured at fair value as deemed cost. 

(iii) Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 

The Company has elected to measure Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and 
Associates at Cost 



VERITAS AGRO VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes forming integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

Note No 3 

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 

FIXED ASSETS Gross Bloc. Depreciation/Amalgamation 'j Net Block 
Sr. Particulars Rate As at As at Depreciation Date of Upto As on As on 
No. 01.04.2018 Addition Deduction 31.03.2019 as At 01.04.2019 Purchase No. of Days for the year Deduction 31.03.2019 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

I 

1) Land - 84877,04,650 - - 84877,04,650 - - - - - - 84877,04,650 84877,04,650 

2) Computer System 16.21% 24,895 24,895 21,856 3,039 24,895 - 3,039 

, 
3) Furniture & Fixtures 6.33% 2,59,196 2,59,196 2,01,396 36,008 I 2,37,404 21,792 57,800 

I , 
4) Office Equipment 4.75% 35,725 35,725 33,939 1,786 I 35,725 - 1,786 

I 
I 

5) Plant & Machinery 4.75% 6,97,482 6,97,482 2,53',204 62,867 3,16,071 3,81,411 4,44,278 

6) Software License (Tally) 16.21% 2,414 2,414 2,293 121 2,414 121 

7)' Motor Cycle 9.50% 36,747 36,747 24,246 6,551 30,797 5,950 12,501 

TOTAL - 84887,61,109 - - 84887,61,109 5,36,934 1,10,372 6,47,306 84881,13,803 84882,24,175 

1 Previous Year -I 84887,61,1091 - 1 84887,61,1091 3,97,900 1 1,39,03 .. I - 1 5,36,9341 84882,24,1751 84883,63,2091 

Goodwill on Amalgamation 8,40,504 

Previous Year 12,60,760 
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4 INVESTMENTS - NON CURRENT 

ParticuliU5 
Asat As at 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

Investments measured at Cost 6,01,600 

Tolal 6,(11,600 

5 Other Non Current Assets 

Particulars 
As at As at 

- - - c ~ 31 March 2019 31 M arch 21118 _ 

Loans to was 14,98,635 

Security Deposits Unsecured, Considered. Good 66,761 66,761 
Loans and Advances to others Unsecured, Considered Good 12,83,230 12,93,615 
Advance tax net Provision for tax 10,57,812 8,75,202 
Total 24,07,1l{l3 37,34,213 

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Particulars Asal Asal 

31 Much 2019 31 March 2018 
-

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(i) Balances with Banks 
In Current Accounts 2,15,749 1,18,656 

(ii) Cashon Hand 4,27,791 2,21,791 

Total 6,43,540 3,40,447 
Cash and cagh equivalent as per standalone statement of cash Flows 

7 OTHER CURRENT ASSESTS -

Particulars 
As.t As at 

31 Much 2019 31 March 2018 

Unsecured Considered Good 

Prepaid Expenses 548 

Total 548 



8 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Particulars 
Asat As at 

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 

Authorised Share Capital 

Eq uily Shares of . 1 each 12,00,000 12,00,000 

(CY 1,20,000 shares of . 10 each) 

(rY 1,20,000 shares of . 10 each) 

Tot.1.1 U,OO,OOO 12,00.000 

Issued Subscribed and Paid Up 

Equity Shares of' 1 each 1,00,000 1,00,000 

".. (CY 10,000 shares of ' 10 each) -- -- .-
(rY 10,000 shares of ' 10 each) 

Total 1.00.000 1.00,000 

8.1 The reconcHiation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below: 

Particulars 
Aul Asat 

31 Much 2019 31 March 2018 

Equity Shares with Voting Rights 

Equily Shares allhe beginning of the year 10,000 10,000 

Number of Shares 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Amount 

Equity Shares at the end of the year 
Number of Shares 10,000 10,000 

Amount 1,00.000 1,00,000 

Total 

9 OTHER EQUITY 

P.uticul~ 
As at As at 

- - 31M .. ch2019 31 March 2018 

(i) Securities Premium 

Opening Balance 83466,00,000 83466,00,000 

Additions! (fransfers) during the year 

Closing Balance 83466,00,000 83466,00,000 

(ii) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 

Opening Balance 22,07,915 70,55,026 

Add: Profit for the year (28,39,889) (48,47,111) 

Closing Balance (6,31,974) 22.07,915 

Total 83459,68,026 83488,07,915 

10 OTHER FINANCIAL UABILmES - NON CURRENT 

Particu lars 
ASolt As at 

31 Much 2019 31 March 2018 

Unsecured Loan from Holding Company . __ , _ J~.?!.zz,m 1447,97,872 

Total 1454,77,872 1447,97,872 

11 OTHER FINANCIAL UABILmES - CURRENT 

Particulars As"t As at 

31 Much 2019 31 Much 2018 

Other Payables 39,500 29,400 

Tolal 39,500 29,400 
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20 Related Party Disclosures: 

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related 

parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 

a) Related Parties: 
(i)- -Subsidiary Company: NIL 
(ii) Associates: NIL 
(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

• NitinkumarDidwania- Director 

• SushmaDidwania- Director 
(iv) Enterprise over which KMP exercise control: Veritas India Limited 

b) Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2019: 

Subsidiary Associate KMP& their Enterprise 

relatives over which 

KMP exercise 

- - control --

Unsecured Loan 
NIL NIL NIL 6,80,000 

Taken (P.Y.) NIL NIL NIL (8,22,500) 

Unsecured Loan 
NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Repaid (P.Y.) NIL NIL NIL (8,54,000) 

NIL NIL 
Advances Given 

(5,19,040) (5,19,040) 

Total 

6,80,000 

(8,22,500) 

NIL 

(8,54,000) 

NIL 

(5,19,040) 



c) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2019: 
(Figures in Rs .) 

Subsidiary Associate KMP & their Enterprise Total 

relatives over which 
-. 

KMP exercise 

control 

,- - -- -- - - . - - -

Unsecured Loan NIL NIL NIL 
145,477,872 145,477,872 

(P.Y.) 
NIL NIL NIL 

(14,47,97,872) (14,47 ,97,872) 

NIL 
NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Advances Given 
(14,98,635) NIL NIL NIL (14,98,635) 

21 Contingent Liabilities: NIC-

F.Y. Nature of Dues Amount (Rs.) Status 
2013-2014 INCOME TAX 10,72,570 APPEAL FILED WITH 

CIT APPEAL 

2014-2015 INCOME TAX 8,83,800 APPEAL FILED WITH 
CIT APPEAL 

2015-2016 INCOME TAX 28,63,580 APPEAL FILED WITH 
CIT APPEAL 

2016-2017 INCOME TAX 30,07,744 APPEAL FILED WITH 
CIT APPEAL 

22 Auditor's Remuneration: 
(Figures in Rs.) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the period ended 

March 31,2019 March 31,2018 

For services as Statutory Auditors 29,500 25,000 

Total 29,500 28,750 



23 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium 

enterprises as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium 

enterprises is based on management's knowledge of their status. The Company has 

not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the 

MSMED Act 2006. Hence, disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the 

year end, together with interest paid / payable as required under the said act have 

not been given. 

24 During the year the Company has written off Investment of Rs 6,01,600/- & Loans & 

Advances of Rs 14,98,635/- given to its foreign subsidiary M/s GV Investment 

Finance Co Ltd ( Mauritus) as it had shut the operation. 

25 Capital Management: 

The. Company's objective for Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value, 

safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The 

Company determines the Capital requirements based on annual operating plans and 

long term and other strategic investments plans. The funding requirements are met 

0rough equity and operating cash flo"Ys generated. __ 

As per our Audit Report of even date attached 

For Shabbir & Rita Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30/04/2019 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

NITINKUM R DIDWANIA 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00210289 

NI~NIA 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 0210240 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT 

The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2019. 

In the opinion of the directors, the fmancial statements as set out on pages 6 to 23 are drawn up so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2019, and the financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the financial year then ended and at the date 
of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts when 
they fall due. 

I. DIRECTORS 

The directors of the company in office at the date ofthis statement are: 

Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania 
Ang Teck Lee (Hong Deli) (Appointed on April IS, 2019) 

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS 
BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTIJRES 

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of the 
acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate. 

3. DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

The directors of the company holding office at the end of the fmancial year had no interests in the share 
capital and debenture of the company and related corporation as recorded in the register of directors' 
shareholdings kept by the company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows: 

Name of directors and company 
in which interests are held 

Holding company 
- Veritas (India) Limited 
(Ordinary shares) 

Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania 

I 

At beginning 
of the year 

9,250,000 

At end of 
the year 

9,250,000 



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT 

4. SHARE OPTIONS 

Ca) Options to take up unissued shares 

During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the company was granted. 
"-"" .--.~-- - '-,~. -- ....... _-

Cb) Options exercised 

During the financial year, there were no shares of the company issued by virtue of the 
exercise of an option to take up unissued shares. 

Cc) Unissued shares under option 

At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares ofthe company under option. 

5. AUDITORS 
I 

The auditors, A.H. Low & Co, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment. 

THE DIRECTORS 

Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania 

Date 1 7 MAY 2019 
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A.H.LOW&CO 
Chartered Accountants, Singapore 
Audit Finn Number: TOOPF0759B 

165 Buldt Merah Central 
#05-3679 
Singapore 150165 
Tel: 6273-3882 Fax: 6271-7112 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 

VERlTAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Veritas Global Pte. Ltd., which comprise the balance sheet of the 
company as at March 31,2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and cash flow statement of the company for the year then ended, and notes to the 
fmancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 6 to 23. 

In our opinion, the accompanying fmancial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act") and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore 
("FRSs") so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2019 and 
of the fmancial perfonnance, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("SSAs"). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Accounting and 
Corporate Regulatory Authority ("ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants 
and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the fmancial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other infonnation. The other infonnation comprises the Directors' 
Statement set out on pages I to 2. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infonnation and we do not express any fonn 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infonnation 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other infonnation is materially inconsistent with the fmancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have perfonned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infonnation, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

3 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of fmancial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal 
accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from 
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as 
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair fmancial statements and to maintain accountability of 
assets. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The directors' responsibilities include overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies. used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF 

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company have 
been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

A.H.Low&Co 
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants 
Singapore 

Date 1 7 MAY 2019 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2019 

Note 2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Trade receivables 5 100,550 100,550 
Other receivables 6 2,146 2,547 
Total current assets, representing total assets 102,696 103,097 

LIABlLITIES AND EOUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Trade payables 7 1,566 1,566 
Other payables 8 15,035 8,720 
Total current liabilities 16,601 10,286 

Capital and reserves: 
Share capital 9 77 77 
Retained earnings 86,018 92,734 
Total equity 86,095 92,811 

Total liabilities and equity 102,696 103,097 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Note 2019 
US$ 

Other operating expenses (6,716) 

Loss before income tax (6,716) 

Income tax expense 10 

Loss after income tax (6,716) 

Total comprehensive income for the year (6,716) 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 
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2018 
US$ 

(7,068) 

(7,068) 

(7,068) 

(7,068) 



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Balance at April 1, 2017 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Loss for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2018 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Loss for the year 

Balance at March 31, 2019 

See accompanying notes to fmancial statements. 

Share 
caEital 
US$ 

8 

Retained 
earnings Total 

US$ US$ 

77 99,802 99,879 

(7,068) (7,068) 

77 92,734 92,811 

(6,716) (6,716) 

77 86,018 86,095 



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Loss before income tax 

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 

Other receivables 
Other payables 

Net cash from operating activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

(6,716) (7,068) 

(6,716) (7,068) 

401 4,938 
6,315 2,130 



VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31,2019 

1. GENERAL 

The company (Registration No. 201010094Z) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal place of 
business and registered office at 100 Tras Street #16-01 100 AM, Singapore 079027. The financial 
statements are expressed in United States dollars, which is the functional currency of the company. 

The principal activities of the company are those of general wholesale trade including general importers 
and exporters and other holding companies. During the fmancial year, the company remains dormant. 

The company is a subsidiary ofVeritas International FZE, incorporated in United Arab Emirates, which is 
the company's immediate holding company. The ultimate holding company is Veritas (India) Limited, 
incorporated in India. 

The financial statements of the company for the fmancial year ended March 31, 2019 were authorised 
for issue by the Board of Directors on the date of the Directors' statement. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The fmancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies 
Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS"). 

2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - In the current financial year, the company 
adopted all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS ("INT FRS") that are relevant to its 
operations and effective for armual periods beginning on or after January I, 2018. The adoption of 
these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the company's accounting policies 
and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior years. 

At the date of authorisation of these fmancial statements, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and 
amendments to FRS that are relevant to the company were issued but not effective: 

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Januarv 1. 2019 

• FRS 116 Leases 
• Amendments to FRS 109 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 
• Amendments to FRS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement 
• Amendments to FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term Interests in 

Associates and Joint Ventures 
• FRS INT 123 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 
• Improvements to FRSs (March 2019) 

Effective for armual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2021 

• FRS 117 Insurance Contracts 

10 



2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONT'D) 

Effective date is deferred indefinitely 
• Amendments to FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements and FRS 28 Investments in 

Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture 

Management anticipates that the adoption of the above FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS in 
future periods will not have a material impact on the fmancial statements of the company in the period 
of their initial adoption. 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the 
company's balance sheet when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Financial assets and fmancialliabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or fmancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. 

2.3.1 Financial assets (before January 1, 2018) 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and 
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees on points paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 
discounts) through the expected life of the fmancial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. 
Income and expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method less impairment losses. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest method, except 
for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The amount of impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When the receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amount previously written off are credited 
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised 
in profit or loss. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 

2.3.1 Financial assets (before January 1, 2018) (cont'd) 

Derecognition of financial assets 

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the fmancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the asset to another entity. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained 
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the company retains 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred fmancial asset, the company 
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received. 

2.3.2 Financial assets (from January 1, 2018) 

Classification of financial assets 

Debt instruments mainly comprise trade and other receivables that meet the following conditions and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 
• the fmancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold fmancial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and. 
• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Amortised cost and effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant period. 

For fmancial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired fmancial assets, the 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees 
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt 
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument 
on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted 
effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected 
credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any 
loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost 
of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at 
amortised cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") on trade and other 
receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in 
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective fmancial instrument. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 

2.3.2 Financial assets (from January 1, 2018) (cont'd) 

Impainnent of financial assets (cont' d) 

The company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on 
these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the company's historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and 
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 
including time value of money where appropriate. 

For all other financial instruments, the company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the 
fmancial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures 
the loss allowance for that fmancial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment 
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or 
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being 
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

Significant increase in credit risk 

In assessing whether the credit risk on a flnancial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the fmancial instrument as at the 
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the fmancial instrument as at the date of initial 
recognition. In making this assessment, the company considers historical loss rates for each category of 
customers and adjusts to reflect current and forward-looking macroeconomic factors affecting the 
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The company has identified the forecast economic 
information that relate to the business of the countries in which it sells goods and services to be the 
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in 
these factors. 

The company presumes that the credit risk on a fmancial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the company has 
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 

The company assumes that the credit risk on a fmancial instrument has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. 
A fmancial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the fmancial instrument has a low risk 
of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the 
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will 
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 

The company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are 
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 

Definition of default 

The company considers that default has occurred when a fmancial asset is more than 90 days past due 
unless the company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging 
default criterion is more appropriate. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 

2.3.2 Financial assets (from January 1, 2018) (cont'd) 

Credit-impaired financial assets 

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. 

Write-off policy 

The company writes off a fmancial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in 
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has 
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade 
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets 
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the company's recovery procedures, 
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or 
loss. 

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual 
cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

If the company has measured the loss allowance for a fmancial instrument at an amount equal to 
lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the 
conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the company measures the loss allowance at an amount 
equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date. 

Derecognition of financial assets 

The company derecognises a fmancial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the fmancial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company 
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received. 

2.3.3 Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D) 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D) 

2.3.3 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (cont'd) 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs. 

Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest method, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting 
is immaterial. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company's obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

2.4 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

2.5 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 
tax. 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not 
taxable or tax deductible. The company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted in country where the company operates by the 
end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the fmancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIClES (CONT'D) 

2.5 INCOME TAX (CONT'D) 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 
settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the 
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss. 

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The [mancial statements of 
the company are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the company operates (its functional currency) which is the United States dollars. 

Transactions in currencies other than the company's functional currency are recorded at the rate of 
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting 
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

(i) Critical judgements in applying the company's accounting policies 

In the application of the company's accounting 'policies, which are described in Note 2, 
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

Management is of the opinion that any instances of application of judgements are not expected to 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that 
management has made in the process of applying the company's accounting policies and that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the [mancial statements. 
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT'D) 

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. 

Recoverability of trade receivables 

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 
that a fmancial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of 
impairment, the company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant 
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are 
estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar risk characteristics. The 
carrying amount of the company's trade receivables at the end of the' reporting period is disclosed 
in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(a) Categories offmancial instruments 

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period: 

Financial assets: 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Total financial assets at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities: 

Trade payables 
Other payables 
Total fmancialliabilities at amortised cost 

2019 
US$ 

100,550 
2,146 

102,696 

1,566 
15,035 
16,601 

2018 
US$ 

100,550 
2,547 

103,097 

1,566 
8,720 

10,286 

(b) Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements, and similar 
agreements. 

The company does not have any fmancial instruments which are subject to enforceable master 
netting arrangements or similar netting agreements. 
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(c) Financial risk management policies and objectives 

The company's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables and trade and 
other payables. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk 
(primarily being foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors 
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective 
manner. 

i) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that arises from the movements in the foreign currency 
exchange rate against United States dollar that will affect the company's financial results and 
its cash flows. 

The company's foreign currency exposures arise mainly from the exchange rate movements 
of the Singapore dollars against the United States dollars. 

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of monetary liabilities denominated 
in currency other than the company's functional currency are as follows: 

Liabilities 
2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Singapore dollars 7,999 7,250 

The following table details the sensitivity to a 2% increase and decrease in the relevant 
foreign currencies against the functional currency of the company. 2% is the sensitivity rate 
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and 
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange 
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign 
currency rates. 

If the relevant foreign currency strengthens by 2% against the United States dollars, profit 
before income tax will decrease by: 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Singapore dollars (160) (145) 

The opposite applies if the relevant foreign currency weakens by 2% against the functional 
currency of the company. 

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign 
exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year. 

ii) Interest rate risk 

The company has minimal exposure to interest rate risk as it does not have significant interest 
bearing fmancial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. As such, no sensitivity 
analysis is prepared. 
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 
(CONT'D) 

(c) Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont'd) 

iii) Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparties will default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a fmancialloss to the company. 

The company develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures 
according to their degree of risk of default. The company uses its own trading records to rate 
its major customers and other debtors. 

The company's current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 

Category Description Basis for 
.. recogmsmg 

eX)Jected credit losses (ECL) 
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-month ECL 

and does not have any past-due amounts. 

Doubtful Amount is > 30 days past due or there has Lifetime EeL - not credit-
been a significant increase in credit risk impaired 
since initial recognition. 

In default Amount is > 90 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL - credit-
evidence indicating the asset is credit- impaired 
impaired. 

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written off 
is in severe financial difficulty and the 
company has no realistic prospect of 
recovery. 

The table below details the credit quality of the company's financial assets as well as 
maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades: 

Internal 12-month Gross Net 
credit or lifetime carrying Loss carrying 

Note rating ECL amount allowance amount 
US$ US$ US$ 

2019 
Trade receivables 5 (i) Lifetime 100,550 100,550 

ECL 
(simplified 
approach) 
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 
(CONT'D) 

(c) Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont'd) 

iii) Credit risk (cont' d) 

(i) The company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision 
matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the 
debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future 
economic conditions. 

Deposits are considered to be low risk and the loss allowance is determined at an amount 
equal to 12-month ECL. 

The company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in 
monitoring its credit risk. The company only grants credit to creditworthy counterparties. 

Although the company's credit exposure is concentrated mainly in Singapore, it has no 
significant concentration of credit risk with any single customer or group of customers. 

iv) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The company's 
operations me financed mainly through equity and accumulated profits. 

All fmancialliabilities in 2018 and 2019 are repayable on demand or due within 1 year from the 
end of the reporting period, and me non-interest bearing. 

v) Fair values of fmancial assets and fmancialliabi1ities 

The cmrying amounts of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximate 
their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these fmancial 
instruments. 

(d) Capital risk management policies and objectives 

The company reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the company will be able 
to continue as a going concern. The capital structure ofthe company comprises only of share capital 
and retained e&nings. The company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2018. 

Management reviews the capital structure on an annual basis to balance its overall capital 
structure through the issue of new capital and distribution of dividend. 

The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the year ended 
Mmch 31, 2019 and 2018. 

5. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Third parties 100,550 100,550 
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5. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT'D) 

The average credit period on sale of goods is 30 days (2018: 30 days). No interest is charged on the 
outstanding balance. 

Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past 
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor's current financial position, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors 
operate. 

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current 
reporting period. 

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe fmancial 
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

The ageing profile of these receivables is as follows: 

2019 
US$ 

More than 90 days 100,550 

The entity has only one trade receivables balance and which can be graded as low risk individually. The 
trade receivables at amortised cost shown above are subject to the expected credit loss model under the 
fmancial reporting standard on financial instruments. The trade receivables are considered to have low 
credit risk individually. At the end of the reporting year, no loss allowance is necessary. 

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade receivables 

Included in the company's trade receivables balance were debtors with a carrying amount ofUS$100,550 
which were past due at the end of reporting period for which the company had not provided as there had 
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts were still considered recoverable. The 
average age of these receivables were as follows: 

2018 
US$ 

More than 90 days 100,550 

Management believes that trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with creditworthy 
counterparties. 
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6. 

7. 

8. 

OTHER RECEIVABLES 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Deposits 2,146 2,146 
GST receivables 401 

2,146 2,547 

TRADE PAY ABLES 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Third parties 1,566 1,566 

The average credit period on purchases of goods is not more than 180 days (2018: not more than 180 
days). No interest is charged on the outstanding balance. 

OTHERPAYABLES 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Accrued expenses 7,999 7,250 
Other payables 7,036 1,470 

15,035 8,720 

The company's other payables that are not denominated in the functional currency are as follows: 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Singapore dollars 7,999 7,250 

9. SHARE CAPITAL 

2019 2018 2019 2018 
Number of ordinary shares US$ US$ 

Issued and fully paid: 
At the beginning and end of the year 100 100 77 77 

Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and carry a right to 
dividends as and when declared by the company. 
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

2019 2018 
US$ US$ 

Current 
Total income tax expense 

Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2018: 17%) of the estimated assessable loss for the year. 

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting loss as follows: 

Loss before income tax 

Income tax benefit calculated at 17% (2018: 17%) 
Non-allowable items 
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 

2019 
US$ 

(6,716) 

(1,142) 
1,142 

2018 
US$ 

(7,068) 

(1,202) 
1,202 

Subject to the agreement by the tax authorities, at the end of the reporting period, the company has 
unutilised tax losses of US$4,591 (2018: US$4,591) available for offset against future profits. 
Unutilised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely subject to the conditions imposed by law 
including the retention of majority shareholders as defmed. 

Unutilised tax benefits arising from these unabsorbed tax losses have not been recognised as there is no 
reasonable certainty of their realisation in future years. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamrlyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Director's Rcport 

The Director has the pleasure in presenting his report and the audited tinancial statements for the year ended Murch 
31,2019. 

Financial review: 

Revenue 
Gross profit 
Gross profit margin 
Net profit /(Loss) for the year 

2019 
usb 

6,811,878 
2,070,2~2 

30.39% 
(~,356,906) 

During the year, Hazel International FZE (H1F) completed its 172,000 CBM, integrated chemical & petrochemical 
storage and handling terminal in Harnriyah Free Zone, Sharjah, UAE tor both liquid bulk as well as containerized 
cargoes. Apart from the storage facilities the terminal has started offering value added services like drumming, 
blending and distillation. The construction of the tank tenninal has been completed and commercial operation started 
on 22nd April 2018. 

Director's role & responsibilities: 

The Director is the Entity's principal decision-maker and has the overall responsibility of leading and supervising the 
Entity and to deliver sustainable growth to the shareholders. He monitors performance of the Entity's business, guides 
and supervises its management. 

The Managing Director recognizes his responsibility to ensure the existence of the internal control systems and for 
reviewing its continued effectiveness. In view of the above, the management has in place a management information 
system that facilitates fmancial and other information being periodically reported on a transparent basis to the 
management and that in turn helps management to mitigate risks to the extent feasible. 

Auditors: 

Mis Youssry & Co. Auditing & Consultancy, is willing to continue in office and a resolution to re-appoint them will be 
proposed in the Annual General Meeting. 

Acknowledgements: 

The Management wishes to place on record their sincere gratitude for the continuous support extended by various 
government departments, financial institutions, suppliers, employees and all well wishers. 

Forv;~=ALF~ 
De 
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Independent Auditors' Repol1 to the Shareholdel' of 
HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

Report on the Audited Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Wc havc auditcd the accompanying financial statemcnts of HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE which comprises of 
the statement of financial position as of 31 March 2019, and the statement of comprchcnsive income lind the 
stutemcnt of changes in equity the year thcn endcd, and notes to the financial statcments, including a summury or 
significant accounting policies and explanatory notes. 

In our opinion, the financial statements prcsent fairly, in all material respccts, the linnneial position of HAZEL 
INTERNATIONAL FZE as of 31 March 2019 its financial perfonnance for the year then ended, in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UAE, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. 

Emphasis of the matter 

As discussed in Note 9 & 18 to the financial statements, the Company has revoked the Periormance Guarantce Hnd 
the contractor has taken the matter to Arbitration in India. Management's evaluation of the events on this matter arc 
also described in Note 9 & 18. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the 
outcome of judgement in the matter. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficicnt and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Tel.: +971 4 5588206 Fax: +971 45588204 

Mob.: +971 551019871, P.O.Box: 95463 

Dubai - United Arab Emirates 
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Auditors' Responsibilities fill· the Audit of the Financial Stlltcmcnts 

Our objectives ure to obtnin reasonabte assurance about whcther the linaneial statements as a whole arc free trom 
material misstatement , whether due to frnud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Rcasonable assurance is 1\ high lcvel ofussurance, but is not n guaruntee thnt nn oudit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will alwuys detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements eun arise trom fraud or error and arc 
considered material it: individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional jUdgment and maintain profe~sional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the linancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those ri sks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient und 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 1rom 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions , 
misreprescntations, or the override of internal control. 

ii Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control. 

iii Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

iv Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company' s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statemcnts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statcments represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

We further confirm that we have obtained all information and explanations necessary for our audit and that proper 
tlnaneial records have been maintained by the company in accordance with the laws ofHamriyah Free Zone. To the 
best of our knowledge and belief no violations of said regulations have oceurred which would have had a material 
effect on the business the company or on its financial position. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
[ [amriyuh Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at March 3 I. 2019 
(In United States Dollars) 

Assets 
Non-Current Assets: 
Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work-in-progress 

Current Assets: 
Cash and bank balances 
Trade and other receivables 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 
Shareholder's Equity: 

Share Capital 
Retained eamings 
Contribution from associate 

Total Shareholder's Equity 

Non-Current Liabilities: 
Non-current liabilities 

Current Liabilities: 
Trade and other payables 

Bank borrowings 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Notes 

4 
5 

6 

7 

2 

8 

9 
10 

2019 

USD 

149,673,980 

149,673,980 

4,465,038 
1,934,880 

6,399,918 

156,073,898 

9,524 
(5,356,906) 
56,243,528 

50,896,146 

74,265,047 
74,265,047 

15,054,015 
15,858,690 
30,912,705 

105,177,752 

156,073~898 

The accompanying notes/orm an integral part o/thesefinancial statements. 
The Report o/the Auditors is set out on page 3-4. 
Thefinancial statements on pages 5 to 22 approved by the Director on May 15,2019. 

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

Page 5 

2018 

USD 

152,304,934 

1~2,304,934 

4,040,064 
747,616 

4,787,680 

157,092,613 

9,524 

49,723,865 

49,733,389 

84,012,285 
84,012,285 

7,473,923 
15,873,016 
23,346,940 

107,359,224 

157,092,613 



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended March 3 1 , 2019 
(In United States Dollars) 

Revenue 

Cost of revenue 

Gross profit 

Expenses 

Profit from operating activities 

Finance charges 

Net profit/Ooss) for the year 

Other income 

Total comprehensive income/Ooss) for the year 

II 

12 

13 

15 

2019 
USD 

6,811,878 

(4,741,626) 

2,070,252 

(1,765,133) 

305,119 

(5,739,774 ) 

(5,434,655) 

77,749 

(5,356,906) 

The accompanying notesf01m an integral part of these financial statements. 
The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 3-4. 
The finanCial statements on pages 5 to 22 approved by the Director on May J 5, 2019. 

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

~~~~ 
Dlrector 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
I Iomriynh Free /.A>ne- United Arab Emirates 

Statement of Changes In Equity 
For the year ended March 3 I, 2019 
(In United Stotes Dollors) 

Contribution 
Share Retained from 

Cal!ltal eamlngs associate· Total 

USD USD USD USD 

As at 31 March, 2017 9,524 29,787:)70 29,797,494 

Net movement for the year 19,935,895 19,93S,89S 

As at 31 March, 2018 9,524 49,723,865 49,733,389 

Net profit/Closs) for the yeor (5,356,906) (5,356,906) 

Net movement for the year 6,519,663 6,519,663 

As at 31 March, 2019 9,524 (5,356,906) 56,243,528 50,896,146 

·Represents amount contributed by Hazel Middle East FZE which is sllb-ordinated against bank facilities availed by the 
company. (refer note J 0) 

The accompanying notesfonn an integral part oftllesefinancial statements. 
Tile Report of the Auditors is set out on page 3-4. 
The fmancial statements on pages 5 to 22 approved by the Director on May J 5, 20 J 9. 

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

~~*~ Director 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
)-)umriyah Free Zone- United Aruh limirutcs 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended March 31. 2019 
(In United States Dollars) 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Tota) comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Adjustments for non cash items: 
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & other receivables 

Increase / (Decrease) in trade & other payables 

Increase / (Decrease) in end of service benefits 

Net alsh generated from I (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

(Increase)lDecrease in capital work-in-progress 
(Purchase) of fixed assets - net 

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Net funds contributed by associate 
Net proceeds from the bank loan 
Net funds contributed by related party 
Net alsh from I(used in) financing activities 

Net increase I(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 

NotCR 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 14 

2019 

USD 

(~,3~6,906) 

3,454,968 

(1,901,938) 

( 1,187.264) 

7,580,092 

30,611 

4,521,500 

152,304,934 
(153,128,948) 

(824,014) 

6,519,663 
(15,858,440) 

6,066,265 
(3,272,512) 

424,974 

71,016 

495,990 

The accompanying notesfonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
The Report of the Auditors is set out on page 3-4. 
Thefinancial statements on pages 5 to 22 approved by the Director on .A4ay 15, 2019. 

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

~~~~ 
Director 
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2018 

usn 

521,635 

6,258,516 

6,780,151 

(40,693,416) 

(40,693,416) 

19,935,895 
7,643,487 
4,969,234 

32,548,616 

(1,364,649) 

1,435,665 

71,016 



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
I-iumriyah Free Zone- United Arub Emirates 

Notes to the Financial Statementll 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

1 Legal status and buslnefls activity 

1.1 MIS HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE is registered as a free zone establishment with limited liability 
with Hamriyuh Free Zone Authority in the Emirate of Sharjah, DAE tmder industrial license nO.12340 and 
commercial license no. 11994. 

1.2 The company is licensed to carry out blending and processing of chemicals and lube oil products tmdcr 
industrial license and general trading (including import/export/trading of bitumen, diesel, hydro carbon 
solvt:nt, fuel oil & petroleum oil products under commercial license. 

1.3 The management und control of the company are vested with the Director, Mr. Saurabh Deepak Sanghvi. 

2 Share Capital 

Authorized, issued and paid up capital of the company is made up of 35 shares of AED 1,000 each equal to 
AED 35,0001. The breakup of the shareholding at March 31, 2018 is as follows: 

Nationality 

MiS Veritas (India) Ltd India 

*1 USD is equalloAED 3.675 

3 Significant accounting policies, estimates and judgments 

Basis of Preparation 

Percentage 
Holding 

100% 9,524 

9,524 

Management has made an assessment of the company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied 
that the company has the resources to continue business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management 
is not aware of any material tmcertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Therefore the financials statements are prepared on the going concern basis. 

The financial statements are prepared tmder the historical cost convention and in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (!FRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board 
(IASB), improvement/amendments to IFRS issued by International Financial Reporting Interpretations 
Committee (IFRIC), and applicable requirements of the Free Zone and DAE. Law. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
llumriyuh l'ree Zonc- United Arab Emirates 

NotcH to the Financial Statements 

For the year ended March 31,2019 

The significant accounting policies adolltcd, estimates and .iudgments followed, arc all followN: 

II New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards 

The tollowing International Financial Reporting Standards, amcndments thereto und interpretations issued hy 
IASB that became effective for the cmrent reporting period and which ure applicable to the company ure us 
follows : 

I ll<'RS 9 - Financial Instnunents 
II IFRS 15 - Revenue from contructs with customers 

111 Clarifications to IFRS 15 - Revenue trom contracts with customers 
Iv IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Currcncy Transactions and Advance Consideration 
v Amendments to LAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property 
vi Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 
vII Amt:riumt:riCS (0 IFRS 4 - Applyirig IFRS 9 Firiancial Irisliumerils willi IFRS 4 lrisunirict: Cori(raCls 

vlli Amendments to IFRS 1 and LAS 28 as per annual improvements to IFRS standards 2014-16 cycle 

During the current year, the management has adopted the above standards and amendments to thc extent 
applicable to them from the financial reporting period commencing on or after 1 January 2018. 

II International Financial Reporting Standards issued but not effective 

IFRS 16 - Leases - The effective date of the standard is set for annual periods beginning on or aHer 
January 2019. 

ii IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts - The effective date of the standard is set for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2021. 

III IFRIC 23 - uncertainty of Income Tax Position - The effective date of the interpretation is set for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

Iv Amendments to IFRS 9 - Prepayment features with negative compensation. The effective date of the 
amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

v Amendments to LAS 28 - Long term interests in Associates and Joint Ventures. The effective date of the 
amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

vi Amendments to IFRS - Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-17 Cycle. 
vii Amendments to LAS 19 - Plan amendments, curtailments or settlements. The effective date of the 

amendment is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

viii Amendments to IFRS 10 and lAS 28 - Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or 
joint venture. These amendments will apply when they become effective. 

The company has not early adopted any other standard., interpretation or amendment that has been issued but 
is not yet effective. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Ilumriyuh Free Zone- United Arub I ~mirates 

Notcs to thc Financial Statcmcnb 

For thc ycar cnded March 31, 2019 

Significant accounting cstimates Ilnd judgments: 

Estimates and judgments arc continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other ractors, 
including expectations of ruturc events that are believed to be reusonable under the circumstnnees. 

The company makcs estimates and assumptions companying the ruture. Thc resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, Tllliy diner from the related actual results. The estimntes and assumptions that have 11 

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount or assets and liabilities at 3 I March 
2019 are discussed below. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the company has an obligation (legal or constmcLive) arising from [l past 
event, and cost to settle the obligation are both probable and are able to reliably measured. 

Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities are in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the probability of an outf1ow 
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the linancial 
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Carrying values offixed a!lscts 

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the current value can be obtained rOT 
similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected to exist at the end of the assets ' estimated 
useful lives . 

Doubtful debt provision 

Management regularly undertakes a review of the amounts of receivables owed to the company either from 
third parties or from related parties and assesses the likelihood of non-recovery. Such assessment is based 
upon the age of the debts, historic recovery rates and assessed creditworthiness of the debtor. Based on the 
assessment, assumptions are Tlllide as to the level of provisioning required. 

Impairment 

At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of fixed assets and all fmancial assets to 
determine whether there are any indications that they Tllliy be impaired. In the absence of such indications, no 
further action is taken. If such indications do exist, an analysis of each asset is undertaken to determine its net 
recoverable amount and if this is below its carrying amount, a provision is Tlllide. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Ilumriyuh I,'ree /,one- United Arub Hmirates 

NotCH to the Financial Statements 

For the ycarl.'I1dcd March 31,2019 

Finance lea~es 

[,eases in terms of which company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ure clussilied 
as rinunce leases. Upon initial recognition, assets acquired by way of finance lease is measured Ht un umount 
equal to the lower of its Iilir value and the present value of the minimum lease puyments at inception or the 
lease. Lease payments arc apportioned betwet:n tht: outstanding liubility and fmance charges so as to uchieve 
a con stunt pt:riodic rate of interest on the remaining balanct: of the liability. 

Operating leases 

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets arc classilied 
as operating leases. Operating lease payments art: recognized us an expense in the income statement on II 

slruight line basis over lease term. 

Significant accounting policies: 

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment 
losses, if any. The cost comprise of purchase price, levies, duties and any directly attributable cost of 
bringing the assets into its working condition. 

Dep recia tion: 

The cost of property, plant & equipment is depreciated by equal annual installments over their estirnuted 
useful lives less residual value, using the straight line method as follows: 

Tank Fanns 
Distillation plant 
Building 
Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment 
Motor vehicle 

Years 
40 years 
40 years 
20 years 
10 years 
10 years 

Depreciation on addition is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the month of addition and on deletion up to 
and including the month of deletion of the asset. 

3.2 Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditures connected 
with specific assets during the installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in­
progress. These are transferred to property, plant and equipment as when they are available for use. All those 
expenditures which are not connected with any specific assets during the construction phase of the project 
are carried under pre-operating expenses. Once the project is completed, these expenditures will be allocated 
to the specific assets. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
I Iamriyuh Free Zone- United Arab Emirutcs 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

Pre-operating expenses 

All those expenditures which are not connected with any spccific asscts during thc construction phasc of the 
project are carried under capital work-in-progress (pre-operating expenses). Once the project is completed, 
these expenditures will be allocated to the specific assets. 

3.3 Trade and other receivables 

Trade & other receivables are stated at their nominal value reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated 
doubtful debts. Bad debts are written off as they arise when there is no possibility of recovery. 

3.4 Trade and other pay abIes: 

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid for goods or services received, whether or not invoiced hy 
the supplier. 

3.5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualitying asset are capitalized during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed in 
Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. 

3.6 Value Added Tax 

The revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of value-added tax (V AT). In case Input VAT paid to 
the supplier of asset or expense is not recoverable from the Federal Tax Authority, it is disclosed as part of 
asset acquired or expense incurred. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of V AT receivable or payable. The net amount 
of V AT 'payable to or VAT recoverable from, Federal Tax Authority is disclosed as other payable or other 
receivable under current liabilities or current assets in the statement of fmancia! position. 

3.7 Staff end of service benefits: 

Staff end of service benefits are accounted on accrual basis. 

3.8 Revenue recognition: 

Sales represent net amount invoiced for goods delivered during the year. Sales are recognized when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer. 

Rental income arising from leasing of tanks is recognized, net of discount, in accordance with the terms of 
lease coilti'acts oVer tlie lease hii'ill.S of me coil.ti;act period. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
I lumriyuh Free Zone- lJnited I\rub I imiTates 

Notes to the Flnllncial Statements 

For the year ended Milreh 31,2019 

3.9 Impairment: 

The currying umount or the assets, arc reviewed at each reporting mIte to determine whether there is uny 
indication or impairment. If any such indication exists, the ussets recoverable amount is estimuted. I\n 
impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its eash-generuting unit exceeds 
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, arc recognized in the income statement. 

3.10 Derivative flnanclallnstruments: 

The company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Derivutives 
arc initially recognized at fair vulue as the date of derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognizcd in the 
income statement immediately, unless the derivative is designated and eficetive as a hedging instTlU11ent, in 
which event the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. 1\ 
derivutive with a positive fair value is recognized as a tinancial asset: a derivative it a negative air value is 
recognized as II !inancialliability. 

Hedge Accounting: 

The company designates certain hedging instruments as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. Hedges 
of interest rute risk and foreign exchange risk on fIrm commitments are accounted on cash flow hedges. 

As at 31 March 2019, the company has an interest rate swap contract which is classified as derivative 
[maneiul assets £It fair value through profit and loss . 

3.11 Foreign currency transactions: 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars (USD) at the rate of exchange 
ruling on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into 
USD at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Resulting exchange gain or loss is taken to the 
income statement. 

3.12 Installment plans: 

Future installments payable under installment plans net of fmance charges are included under non-current 
and current liabilities with the corresponding asset values recorded as fixed assets and depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives. Payments are apportioned between the fmance element charged to income statement 
and the capital element, which reduces the capital amOlUlt outstanding. 

3.13 Cash and eash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of cash and cheques on hand, 
bank balance in current accounts, deposits free of encumbrance with a maturity date of three months or less 
from the date of deposit and highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the 
date of investment. 

3.14 Dividend: 

Dividend is paid out of retained earnings, when declared. 
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HA~EL INTERNATIONAL FZE 

Dubaia . United Arab Emirates 

Notes 'h the Financial Statements 
For tbaeyear ended March 31,2019 

4 Property, plant and equipment 
Furniture, 
Fixtures & 

Distillation Office Motor 
Tank Falm Plant Building Equipment vehicles Total 

Cost USD USD USD USD USD USD 

.As at April 1, 2018 

...Addition during the year 111,036,872 40,426,714 965,656 483,329 216,377 1~3,128,948 

J..J at March 31, 2019 111,036,872 40,426,714 965,656 483,329 216,377 153,128,948 

Depreciation 

.J\I at April 1, 2018 

3Jcpreciation for the year 2,478,176 902,263 37,704 17,508 19,317 3,4~,968 

.....As at March 31, 2019 2,478,176 902,263 37,704 17,508 19,317 3,454,968 

:Net book value 

..As at March 31, 2019 108,558,696 39,524,451 927,952 465,821 197,060 149,673,980 

.property, plant and eqUipment are mortgaged with the bank against term loan. (Refer Note 10) 

@ Jndependent valuation was performed by an independent valuer determining the fair value of the Tank Farm facililY on Plot 1A-08, Hamrlyah Free 
Zo 71e, Sharjah, UAE, for USD 198,430,7001- based on their market value as at 9 August 2018, Management is of the view that there Is no impairmel1l in 

the value of the property plant & equipmentg as at March 31, 2019 and no provision for impairment iis required. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
1 lamriyah Free Zone- Unitcd Arab Emiratcs 

Notcs to the Financial Statemenh 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

5 Capital work-in-progrclili 

Direct capital expenses" 
Indirect capital pre-operative expenses" 

2019 

Usb 
2018 

USD 
132,562,515 

19,742,419 
152,304,934 

" During the year capital work-In-progress balances were capitalized under property plant & equipment. (refer note 
-/) 

6 

7 

8 

Cash and bank balances 
2019 2018 

USD USD 

Bank balances in: 
Current accounts 495,990 71,016 
Deposi1# (refer note. 10) 3,969,048 3,969,048 

4.4651°38 41°40,064 

#Represents an amount ofUSD 3.969.0481- held under Debt Service Accollnt as per inter-credit agreement. 

Tradc and other receivables 
2019 2018 

USD usn 
Trade receivables 1,458,851 
Advance to a contractor# 49,144 
Security deposits 46,475 115,402 
Staff advances 14,848 
Prepayments 414,706 583,069 

119342880 7471616 

#Balance represents advance given to the contractor which is secured against the bank guarantee. 

Non-current liabilities 
2019 2018 

USD usn 
Syndicated term loans: 
Conventional term loan (refer note 10) 37,035,815 47,609,203 
Islamic facility (refer note 10) 18,469,853 23,740,578 

55,505,668 71,349,782 

Due to a related party (refer note 15)' 18,728,768 12,662,503 
Staff end of service benefits 30,611 

74,265,047 84,012,285 

*Represents long-term unsecured. interest bearing loan without any fixed repayment schedule. (P. Y. Non interest 
bearing) 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Humriyuh Frce Zone- United Arub Emirates 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

9 Trade and other pay abIes 

10 

2019 2018 

usb usn 
Trude payahles 545,941 
Payable to a contractor· 13,266,852 6,795,780 
Other payahles 636,603 354,256 
Provisions 409,899 323,887 
Duties & taxes 127,820 
Advances from tenants 66,900 

151054.015 714731923 

·Year 2019 balances includes USD 6.5 Mil/ion which the company during the year, revoked the performance 
guarantee of the mam contractor of the tank farms for nonfilljillment of the performance as per terms of contract 
agreement. Currently the contractor has taken the matter to Arbitration In India for their outstanding and is 
pending judgment. 

Bank borrowings 
2019 2018 
usn usn 

Syndicated Term Loan: * 

Conventional term loan 10,581,481 10,589,569 
Islamic facility" 5,277,209 5,283,447 

15,858,690 15,873,016 

Syndicated term loan @ 
Total Syndicated term loan (conventional) outstanding 47,617,296 58,198,773 

Payable after next 12 months 37,035,815 47,609,203 

Payable within next 12 months 10,581,481 10,589,569 

Syndicated term facility (Islamic) @ 
Total Syndicated term facility (Islamic) outstanding 23,747,062 29,024,025 

Payable after next 12 months 18,469,853 23,740,578 

Payable within next 12 months 5,277,209 5,283,447 

*As per InterCreditor Agreement dated September 07, 2015, company has been sanctioned the Syndicated Facility 
of AED 350 million (Conventional facility of AED 233.5 million & Islamicfaci/ity of AED 116.5 million) to build the 
storage tanks and related facilities. The term loans are payable in 24 equal quarterly installments starting from 
September 2017. 

"Represents Islamic facility under Istisna'a Agreement and Forward Lease Agreement dated September 07. 2015. 

@Represents disbursement of term loans under conventional facility and Islamic facility to build the storage tanks 
and relatedfacilities. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Notcs to thc FInancial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

The bank facilities are secured against:-

J Mortgage over any immoveable property constructed on Ihe project land by company In favour of security agent. 

2 Contractors all risk Insurance policy. 

3 Personal guarantee of Mr. Nilin Kllmar Didwanla. 

4 Joint and several corporate guaranteesfrolll Verltas India Lilllited, Hazel Middle East FZE and Verltas IntfJmaliona/ 
FZE. 

5 Sub-ordination of the amount of contribution from the shareholder and associate. 

6 Assignment of material contract, receivables account and Insurance policies. 

In addition, there are various conditions andjin<Jncial covenanls allached to the bank facility. 

11 Revenue 

Trading Sales (refer note J 5) 

Renta1lncome (refer note 15) 

12 Cost of revenue 
Opening inventory 
Add: Purchases 

Less: Closing inventory 

Lease expenses 
Other direct expenses 
Depreciation on plant & machinery 

13 Expense!l 

Salaries & other related benefits 
License & registration fee 
Legal and professional charges 
Bank charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Vehicle running & maintenance 
Insurance charges 
Depreciation 
Other administrative expenses 
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2019 

USD 

618,034 

6,193,844 

618ii l878 

541,149 
541,149 

541,149 
706,637 
113,401 

3,380,439 
4,741,626 

2019 

usn 
886,164 

28,278 
221,226 

2,056 
112,518 

4,682 
263,647 

74,529 
172,033 

1,765,133 

201~ 

USD 

2018 

USD 

= 



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

14 Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank balances in: 
Current accounts 

15 Related party transactions 

2019 2018 

USD USD 

495,990 71,016 
495,990 71,016 

The entity enters into transactions with other entities that fall within the defmition of a related party 
as contained in lAS 24, Related Party Disclosures. Such transactions are in the normal course of 
business and at terms that correspond to those on normal arms-length transactions with third 
parties. Related parties comprise entities under common ownership and lor common manageml!nl 
and control; their partners and key management personnel. 

The Entity believes that the terms of SHGh trans8Gtions EIre not signifi~antly different from those that 
could have been obtained from third parties. 

Transactions with related parties 

The nature of significant related party transactions and their amounts involved were as follows: 

Revenue 

Revenue 

Hazel Middle East FZE - Trading & Rental 

Expenses 

Hazel Middle East FZE - Finance charge 

Balances outstanding with related parties 

Due to a related a party 

Hazel Middle East FZE-UAE 

2019 

USD 

3,381,038 

684,864 

2019 

USD 

18,728,768 
18,728.768 

The Entity also receives fimds from its related parties as and when required. 
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2018 

USD 

2018 

USD 

12,662,503 
12,662,503 



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

16 Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments of the company comprises of cash at hank, trade & other receivables and 
trade & other payablcs. 

Credit risk 

FimmciAI Assets; which potentially expose the company to com:entration of credit risk comprise 
principally bank balances and trade & other receivables. 

The Company's bank accounts are placed with high credit quality financial institutions. 

There is no significant concentration of credit risk from trade & other receivables situated within 
UAJo: and outside the industry in which the company operates. 

Currency risk 

There are no significant exchange rate risks as substantially all the fmancial assets and fmancial 
liabilities are denominated in US Dollars or Arab Emirates Dirhams to which the conversion is 
pegged. 

Intere!lt rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a fmancial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The compan,y's exposure to the risk of 
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long terms debt obligations with 
floating interest rates. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of consolidated income statement & or capital 
work in progress to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held 
constant and net of hedged instruments. The sensitivity of consolidated income statement is the 
effect of the assumed changes in the interest rates on company's result for one year, based on the 
floating rate fmancial assets and financial liabilities held at the reporting date . 

2019 

Interest bearing loans & borrowings - Income / 
Expense 

2018 
Unhedged portion of interest 
bearing loans & borrowings - Effect 
on capital work-in-progress 

Fair values 

Changes in basis 
points 

+/-50 

+/-50 

Sensitivity of 
interest 
usn 

238,086 

290,994 

Financial instnnnents comprise of fmancial assets, fmancial liabilities and derivatives. The fair 
values of financial instnnnents are not materially different from their carrying value. 
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HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Ilulllriyah Frcc Zonc- United Arab Illlliratcs 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

17 Hedging activities 

As at 3 I March 20 I 9, thc Company held ccrtain interest rate swap contract designated as a 11l.:dge 
of expected futme payments W1der thc borrowing contracts cntercd by the company for which it has 
firm commitments. The intcrest rate swap contract is being uscd to hedgc the intercst rate risk of' 
thc firm commitments. Thc nominal amount of thcsc contracts was USD 50,140,0001- (AE!) 
184,264,416/-) and the outstanding contract value as at balancc shcet datc is usn 39,966,257/­
(AED 146,875,996) 

Interest rate swap contracts 
Fair Value 
Assets 
Lia bilities 

2019 2018 
USl) US]) 

24,260 

The fair values of the interest rates swaps are estimated using quotes from extcrnal somccs or from 
the counter party to the instruments 

18 Contingent liabilities 

The Company is subject to legal and regulatory proceedings as detailed below. These contingcnt 
liabilities are reviewed on a regular basis and where feasible an estimate is made of the potential 
fmaneial impact on the Company. As at 31 March 20!9 it was not feasible to make such an 
assessment. 

The company has revoked the Performance Guarantee given by the contractor for USD 6.5 Million 
and also have not settled the outstanding payable to the contractor for which the matter is in thc 
Arbitration court in India. The existence, timing and amount of any futurc fmancial obligations 
(such as fmes, penalties or damages, which could be material) or other consequences arising from 
the jUdgement are unable to be determined at this time and no liability has been recognized in 
relation to these matters in the fmancia! statement at the end of the reporting period. 

Except for the outcome of the ongoing litigation matter in the Arbitration court in India for 

19 Capital & other commitments 
Except for the following there have been no other known capital & purchase commitments on thc 
company as on the financial position date. 

Lease commitment- banks* 

Lease commitment - rental# 

2019 

USD 

23,747,062 

4,741,497 

2018 

USD 

29,024,025 

5,312,925 

"The company has also entered into aforward lease agreement in which bank will lease the assets to the company.( 
rifer note 10) 

#Represents outstanding lease commitment at the respective year end. The company has entered into a long term 25 
years lease agreement with Hamriyah Free Zone Authon'ty of which first 13 years lease rentals are agreed upon and 
for 14-25 years will be reviewed and agreed at end of 13th year. 

Page 21 



HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
Hamriyah Free Zone- United Arab Emirates 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended March 31,2019 

20 Comparative ftgures 

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to confonn to the 
presentation adopted in the current year. 

21 Others 

Management oonfirms there were no loans & other liabilities exoept showing in the statement of 
financial position. 

For HAZEL INTERNATIONAL FZE 
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To, 
The Shareholder, 
Mfs. Veritas International FZE, 
JAFZA, Dubai- UAE. 

Auditor's Report 

ASP AUDITING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditor s and Con sultant s 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mfs. Veritas International FZE, JAFZA, 

Dubai, UAE which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2019, the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2019 and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the 

management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 
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ASP AUDITING 
Chartered Accountant s 

Auditor s and Con s ultant s 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

of Mis. Veritas International FZE, JAFZA, Dubai, UAE as at 31st March 2019 and its financial 

performance and cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2019 is in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards. 

We have obtained all information, which we considered necessary for our audit. Based on the 

information available, during the year, there were no contraventions of the UAE Federal 

Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015 (as amended), The Jebel Ali Free Zone Companies 

Implementing Regulations 2016 and the Memorandum of Association of the Establishment during 

the year under audit; which might have a material effect on the financial position of the 

Establishment or on the results of its operations for the year. 

May 30, 2019 

A member of 
ASP International Umited 

a UK company 
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Veritas International FZE 

JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 31st March 2019 

ASSETS 

NON -CURRENT ASSETS 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Investment 

Total Non-Current Assets A 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and Cash EqUivalents 

Trade & Other Receivables 

Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets B 

TOTAL ASSETS A+B 

EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Share Capital 

Shareholder's Loan Account 

Retained Earnings 

Total Equity C 

(Cant.) 

Page 4 

ASPAU TNG 

Note 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

4 

13 

14 

Cha r tered Accountant s 
Auditor s and Consultant s 

Mar-19 Mar-18 

USD USD 

74 74 

74 74 

1,506,926 50,755 

67,650,178 85,626,207 

5,379 23,162 

69,162,483 85,700,124 

69,162,557 85,700,198 

4,353,742 4,353,742 

1,597,808 21,875 

50,058,126 39,503,441 

56,009,676 43,879,058 



Veritas International FZE 

JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont.) 

As at 31st March 2019 

LIABILITIES 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Total Non Current Liabilities 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Bank Borrowings 

Trade & Other Pay abies 

Accruals and Provisions 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 

D 

E 

D+E 

C+D+E 

'AS ,AUDI G 

Note 

10 

11 

12 

Ch a rt e r e d Ac c o unt a nt s 
Auditor s a nd Co n s ult a nt s 

Mar-19 Mar-18 

USD USD 

17,150,000 

13,148,372 24,594,528 

4,509 76,612 

13,152,881 41,821,140 

13,152,881 41,821,140 

69,162,557 85,700,198 

The notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

These financial statements were approved on May 25, 2019 

For Veritas International FZE 

Authori,ed Signt -
The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3 
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ASPAUD TING 

Veritas Intentational FZE 

JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

Chartered Accountants 
Auditors and Consultants 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Continuing Operations 

Sales 

Cost of Sales 

Gross Profit 

Other Income 

Operating Expenses 

General & Administration Expenses 

Financial Charges 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Total Operating Expenses 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income For the year 

Profit for the year: 

Attributable to Shareholder 

Note 

F 

G 

H 

The notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

These financial statements were approved on May 25, 2019 

For Veritas Inter ~tional FZE 

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3 
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Mar-19 

USD 

174,091,660 

(162,475,919) 

11,615,741 

411,612 

(111,348) 

(1,100,095) 

(1,211,443) 

10,815,910 

10,815,910 

10,815,910 

Mar-18 

USD 

179,115,901 

(167,943,875) 

11,172,026 

311 

(60,241) 

(829,370) 

(889,611) 

10,282,726 

10,282,726 

10,282,726 



Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 
Adjustment for non-cash items 
Depreciation 
Operating Cash Flow before changes in net operating assets 

Changes in net Working Capital 

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory 
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Pay abies 
Increase / (Decrease) in Accruals & Provisions 
Net Cash Flow from / (used) from Working Capital 

Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Increase / (Decrease) of Bank Borrowings 
Dividend paid 
Net Changes in ShareCapital Shareholders Current Account 
Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Financing Activities 

Cash flow from Investing Activities 

Net Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment 
Net Changes in Investments 
Net Cash Flow from / (used) in Investing Activities 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 
Cash & Cash equivalents in the beginning of the year 
Cash & Cash equivalents at the end of the year 

'ASP AUD TING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Consultants 

Mar-19 
USD 

10,815,910 

10,815,910 

17,976,029 
17,783 

(11,446,156) 
(72,103) 

6,475,553 

(17,150,000) 
(261,225) 

1,575,933 
(15,835,292) 

1,456,171 
50,755 

1,506,926 

Mar-18 
USD 

10,282,726 

10,282,726 

1,411,200 
(22,808,048) 

(3,987) 
12,010,657 

19,543 
(9,370,635) 

(261,225) 
(617,922) 
(879,147) 

32,944 
17,811 
50,755 

The notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

These financial statements were approved on May 25, 2019 

For Veritas Inter i 'onal FZE 

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3 
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Veritas International FZE 

JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the year ended 31st March 2019 

Particulars 
Share 

Capital 

USD 

Balance as on 01st April 2017 4,353,742 

Net Movements of the year 

Profit of the year 

Dividend Paid 

Balance as on O1st April 2018 4,353,742 

Net Movements of the year 

Profit of the year 

Dividend Paid 

Balance as on 31st March 2019 4,353,742 

ASP,AUDITING 
Chartered Account a nt s 

Audit o rs and Con s ultant s 

Shareholders Retained 
Total 

Loan Accounts Earnings 

USD USD USD 

639,797 29,481,940 34,475,479 

(617,922) (617,922) 

10,282,726 10,282,726 

(261,225) (261,225) 

21,875 39,503,441 43,879,058 

1,575,933 1,575,933 

10,815,910 10,815,910 

(261,225) (261,225) 

1,597,808 50,058,126 56,009,676 

The notes on pages 9 to 24 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

These financial statements were approved on May 25, 2019 

For Veritas Intern anal FZE 

The report of the auditors is set on page 2 and 3 
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Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

As at 31st March 2019 

1. Legal Status and Activities 

ASP AUDIT NG 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Con sultants 

1.1 Mis. Veritas International FZE, is Limited Liability Free Zone Establishment with Limited 

Liability, registered with Commercial Registration Department, Jebel Ali Free Zone 

Authorities, Jebel Ali, Dubai, UAE vide General Trading License number 133949. The 

original license was granted on the 11 th day of September 2012. 

1.5 

1.2 The registered address of the Establishment is Office No. TPOFCB 0231, Jebel Ali, Dubai, 

UAE. 

1.3 The shareholder of the Establishment is: 

Mis. Veritas (India) Limited, Incorporated in India 100% Holder 

1.4 Mr. Ramesh Chetan Yadav, Indian National is the manager of the Company. 

The Establishment is licensed to engage in the activities of General Trading. 

2 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

2.1 New and revised IFRSs effective for accounting periods beginning on or after Olst January 2018: 

The following new and revised IFRSs which became effective for the annual periods beginning on or 

after 01st January 2018 have been adopted in these financial statements. 
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Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

New and revised IFRSs 

Amendment to IFRS 1 
, First time adoption of International 
Financial Reporting Standards 

Amendment to IFRS 2, 
, Share Based Payments' 

Amendment to IFRS 4, 
, Insurance Contracts' 

Amendment to lAS 7, 
I 'Disclosure Initiatives' 

I 

Amendments to lAS 40 
'Transfers of Investment Properh/ 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 

IFRlC22 
I 'Foreign CurrenClJ Transactions 

Advance Consideration' 

L_ 

and 

ASP,AUD TING 
Charter e d Accountants 

Auditors and Con s ult a nts 

Summary of requirements 

'The amendments delete certain short term exemptions in !FRS 
1 because the reporting period to which the exemptions 
applied have already passed. 

Amendments to clarify the classification and measurement of 
share-based payment transactions. 

1 Amendments relating to the different effective dates of IFRS 9 - I 
Financial Instruments in the forthcoming new insurance I 
contracts standard. 

Disclosures relating to the additional hedge accounting 
disclosures and consequent amendments resulting from the 
introduction of hedge accounting chapter in IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments, 

Amendment to para 57 states that an entity shall transfer a I 
property to, or from, investment property when and only 
when, there is evidence of change in use. A change of use 
occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of 
investment property. A change in the management's intentions 
for the use of property by itself does not constitute evidence 0 I 
change in use. 'The para has been amended to state that the list 1 

of examples therein is non - exhaustive. 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2014-2016 cycle to remove 
short term exemptions and clarifying certain fair value 
measurements. 

I 

The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or 1 

parts of transactions where: I 
- 'There is consideration that is denomination or priced in a 

foreign currency; 
'The entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred 
income liability in respect of that consideration, in 
advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or 
income; and 
The prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non -
monetary. 

L __ _ 
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AS tAU ITING 

Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

Chartered Accountants 
Auditors and Consultants 

Amendments to lAS 28 Amendments providing clarifications on measuring at fair value 
'Investment In Associate and Joint through profit or loss 
Ventures' 

IFRS9 
'Financial Instruments 
Financial Instruments' 

I Recognition and Measurements for annual periods beginning on 
replaces lAS 39 I or after Olst January 2018, bringing together all three aspects of 

'II accounting for financial instruments: classification and 
I measurements; impairment and hedge accounting ~ 

2.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not effective: 

The Company has not yet applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are 
not yet effective: 

~ _________________________________________________ I:-_E_f_fe~c_tl_'v~e.~f_o_r _ann ___ u_ru ___ p_e_r_io_d_S __ b_e __ gi,""ng~ , New and Revised IFRSs ! on or after 
'I IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments I 

The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable I I 
I profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax , I 
I credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income II 
i tax treatments under lAS 12. 
I It specifically considers: 
! - Whether tax treatments should be considered 
I collectively; I 
i Assumptions for taxation authorities examinations; 
I The determination of taxable profits (tax loss), tax bases, 
I unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and I 
I - The effect of changes in facts and circumstances I 01st Janu~ 2019 

i Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 cycle I ------.-------
! amending IFRS 3 - Business Combinations, IFRS 11 - Joints 
i Arrangements, lAS 12 - Income Taxes and lAS 23 -

I Borrowing Costs I O}5t January 2019 _____________ ~ 
I Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Relating to I' I 
I prepayment features with negative compensations. This I 
I amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding I 'I 

I termination rights in order to allow measurement at 
I amortised costs ( or depending on the business model at fair , 
i value through other comprehensive income) even in case of Ii 

! negative compensation payments Olst January 2019 

I 

Page II 



Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

i IFRS 16 - Leases: specifies how an IFRS reporter will 
I recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard 
I provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to 

I 
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease 
term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low 

i value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or 
I finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting 

TING 

1\ substantially unchanged from its predecessor, lAS 17. I O1S! January 2019 

: Amendments to lAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint 'I ------ .----

! Ventures: Relating to the long term interests in associates and 
I joint ventures. These amendments clarify that an entity I 
I applies IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments to long term interests I 
! in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net 
! investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the 
I equity method is not applied. I 01<! January 2019 

I IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts: requires insurance liabilities to 1-------­
, be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides a 
I more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all 

I insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to 
I achieve the goal of a consistent, principle based accounting for 
I insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance I l Contracts as ofOlS! January 2021 l OlS! Janu~2021 

i Amendments to IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements I ----- -----·-----1 
! and lAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures I I 
I (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or contribution of i Effective date deferred indefinitely_·_ 11 I assets from an investor to its associate or joint venture. I Adoption is still not permitted. 

'- -

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted 

in the Establishment's financial statements as and when they are applicable and the adoption of 

these new standards, interpretations and amendments except for IFRS 16 may have no material 

impact on the condensed financial statements of the Establishment in the year of initial application. 

Management anticipates that IFRS 16 will be adopted in the Establishment's financial statements for 

the annual period beginning 01st January 2019. 

3 Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), 

Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 

and applicable rules and regulation of the UAE Law and JAFZA rules & regulations. The significant 

accounting policies, which have been applied, are set out below: 
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Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai- UAE 

a) Accounting Convention: 

ASP AUDITING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Con sultants 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical Cost convention. The 

accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Establishment. 

b) Revenue recognition: 

Income is recognized when it is earned, not necessarily when received. Expenses and charges 

have been recognized when it was incurred, not necessarily when paid. 

c) Property, Plant & Equipment: 

Property, Plant & Equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 

identified impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, levies, duties and any 

directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition. The cost of property, 

plant & equipment is depreciated using the Straight Line Method basis after considering the 

average life of the asset. 

The Carrying value of Property, Plant & Equipment is viewed for impairment when events or 

changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such 

indication exists and where the carrying value exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the 

assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair value less 

costs to sell and their value in use. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 

economic benefit., are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 

arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined 

as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is 

accounted for separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component that is 

replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases 

future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other expenditure 

is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as the expense is incurred 
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]AFZA, Dubai - UAE 

ASP AUDIT NG 
Chartered Accountant s 

Auditors and Con s ul t ant s 

The Assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and 

adjusted prospectively if appropriate, at each financial year end. 

d) Foreign Currency Transactions: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in US Dollars at the approximate rate of exchange 

ruling at the time of the transaction. Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the 

statement of financial position date are converted into US Dollars at the year end rate of 

exchange. All foreign currency gains and losses are booked in the statement of income as they 

arise. 

e) Revenue: 

Income represents the invoiced value of goods sold/ services rendered during the year, net of 

discounts and returns. 

f) Inventory: 

Inventory is stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of closing 

inventory is determined on the basis of Weight cost average. Net Realizable Value represents 

the estimated selling price less all estimated cost of completion and cost of disposal. A general 

provision for slow moving items has been made and adjusted with the value of the closing 

stock. These provisions are valuated and determined by the management as on statement 

financial position there is no inventory. 

g) Trade receivables: 

The schedule of trade receivables represents amounts falling due as on the date of Statement of 

financial position. Trade . receivables normally require the amounts to be received within 90 

days from the date of invoice. Bad debts are written off as and when they arise. Accounts 

receivables are stated net of provision for doubtful debts and discounts. 

h) Employees' Terminal benefits: 

Provision is made in accounts for end of service benefits due to employees in accordance with 

UAE federal labour Laws No (8) year 1980 and Jebel Ali Free Zone Rules & Regulations. 

Provision is made for amounts payable under the UAE Labour Law applicable to employees 

Accumulated year of service at the date of the Statement of Financial Position. 
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JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

i) Rounding off: 

ASPAUD T NG 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Consul t ants 

The figures stated in the attached financial statements are rounded off to the nearest US Dollars. 

j) Fair Val ue of financial instruments: 

The value of all classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, as recorded in the statement 

of financial position approximate the fair value of these assets and liabilities. 

k) General: 

In the opinion of the management all the assets as shown in the financial statements are existing 

and realizable at the amount shown against and there are no liabilities against the 

Establishment contingent or otherwise not included in the above financial statements. 

1) Profit and Loss account: 

The Establishment's profit is arrived at after charging all expenses, incurred in day to day 

operations of the business and in maintaining property, plant & equipment. 

m) Trade Payable: 

The schedule of Trade Creditors represents amounts falling due as on the date of statement of 

financial position. Accounts payable are normally settled within 90 days. Liabilities are 

recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods of services whether or not billed to 

the Establishment. 

n) Inflationary Factor: 

No adjustments have been made in these financial statements to identify the inflationary factor. 

0) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The entity management set out the entity's overall business strategies and its risk management 

policy. The Entity's overall financial risk management program seeks to minimize potential 

adverse effects on the financial performance of the entity. The entity policies include financial 

risk management policies covering specific areas, such as market risk (including foreign 

exchange risk, interest risk, liquidity risk and credit risk) . Periodic reviews are undertaken to 

ensure that the entity' s policy guidelines are complied with. 
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ASP/AUDITING 
Charter e d A c countant s 

Auditor s and Co n s ult a nt s 

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to the financial risks or the manner in which 

it manages and measures the risk. 

The entity is exposed to the following risks related to financial instruments. The entity has not 

framed formal risk management policies; however, the risks are monitored by management on 

a continuous basis. The entity does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, inveshnent 

in securities, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative or risk management 

purposes. 

a) Foreign Currency risk management 

The entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, 

exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. 

b) Liquidity risk management 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the management which has 

built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the 

entity's short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. 

The entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, continuously 

monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial 

assets and liabilities. 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the entity's financial assets and 

financial liabilities. The contractual maturities of the financial assets and financial liabilities 

have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the financial position date 

based on contractual repayment agreements were as follows: 
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Auditors and Consultants 

Veritas Intemational FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

Interest Bearing Non Interest Bearing 

Particulars On Demand Within 1 More than On Within 1 

(Figures in USD) or Less than 3 Year 1 Year Demand or Year 

Months Less than 3 

Months 

As at 31st March 2019 

Financial Assets 

Cash and Bank 

Balances - - - 1,506,926 -

Trade 

Receivables - - - - 67,649,727 

TOTAL - - - 1,506,929 67,649,727 

Financial 

Liabilities 

Trade 

Pay abIes 
- - - - 13,148,372 

TOTAL - - - - 13,148,372 

c) Credit Risk Management 

More 

than 

1 

Year 

-

-

-

-

-

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations 

resulting in financial loss to the entity. The entity has adopted a policy of only dealing with 

the credit worthy counterparties. The Entity's exposure are continuously monitored and 

their credit exposure is reviewed by the management regularly and the entity maintains 

and allowances for doubtful debts based on expected collectability of all trade receivables. 
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ASPAUD TING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Con s ultant s 

The Establishment is exposed to credit risk on its Bank Balances & Trade receivables as 

follows: 

Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

USD USD 

Bank Balances 1,505,999 49,600 

Trade Receivables 67,649,727 85,626,207 

TOTAL 69,155,726 85,675,807 

The Establishment seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with 

reputable banks and with respect to customers by setting limits for individual customers 

and monitoring outstanding accounts receivable. 

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Establishment, 

including cash and cash equivalents, the Establishment's exposure to credit risk arises from 

default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of 

these instruments. 

Trade receivables consist of a number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is 

performed on the financial condition of trade receivables. Further details of credit risk on 

trade and other receivable are disclosed in the notes to financial statements. 

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high 

credit- ratings assigned by international credit-ratings agencies. 

d) Capital risk management 

The Establishment's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Establishment's 

ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and 

benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the 

cost of capital. The director's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain 

investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business 

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure. 
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ASP AUDIT NG 
Chartered Accountant s 

Auditors and Con s ult a nt s 

The Establishment may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital 

to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the 

industry, the Establishment monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is 

calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities less 

Cash at Bank. 

The Establishment manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of 

changed in economic conditions. No Changes were made in the objectives, Policies or 

Processes during the year ended 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018. Capital Consists of 

Share Capital, Shareholders Loan Account and Retained Earnings measured at USD. 

56,009,676/- as at 31st March 2019 (2018 - USD. 43,879,058/ -). 

e) Impairment of Trade Receivables 

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade receivables is made when collection of the 

full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is 

performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but 

which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the 

length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates. 

At the reporting date, gross trade receivables was USD. 67,649,727/- (2018: USD. 

85,626,207/-) with provision for doubtful debts USD. Nilf- (2018 USD. Nil/ -). Any 

difference between the amounts actually collected in future periods and the amounts 

expected will be recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

f) Useful Lives of Property and Equipment 

The Establishment's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and 

equipment for calculating depreciation. This Estimate is determined after considering the 

expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual 

value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where 

the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates. 
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p) Contingencies and commitments: 

ASP~AUD TING 
- Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Con s ultants 

As at 31 st March 2019 the Establishment doesn't have any commitments other than the cheques 

issued ~hich are not yet presented in the bank for collection. 

q) Exchange Rate Risk: 

Since the main currencies of the financial instruments, other assets, liabilities and trading 

transactions including purchase and sales are UAE Dirham's and US Dollars, the Establishment 

is not exposed to any significant exchange rate risk. 

r) Financial Charges: 

The Financial Charges includes finance cost charges, other charges related to finance and bank 

charges. 

s) Corresponding Figures: 

The corresponding figures of the previous year are comparable as these comprise the financial 

position and operating results for the year ended 31st March 2018, while the current figures 

comprised the financial position and operating results for the year ended 31st March 2019. 

Reclassification has been made wherever necessary, for the purpose of better presentation of 

financial information. 

t) Operating Segments: 

For management purpose the Establishment is organized into a single operating segment called 

General Trading. 
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Veritas International FZE 
JAFZA, Dubai - UAE 

Share Capital Account: 

Authorized, Subscribed, Issued, Paid up Share Capital; 

-16 Shares of Dhs.1,000,000/ - each Dhs. 16,000,000/-

Held By 

Shareholder and his holdings; 

M/s. Veritas (India) Limited 

Total 

16 shares Dhs. 16,000,000/-

16 shares Dhs. 16,000,000/-

Ch a rter e d A c coun ta nts 
Auditor s a nd Con s ul ta nt s 

31st March 2019 

USD 4,353,742/ -

USD 4,353,742/­

USD 4,353,742/-

5. Property, Plant & Equipment: 

111ere is no property plant & equipment in the books of the establishment as on the date of 

statement of financial position. 
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Notes to the financial statements 

6. Investments in Subsidary 

Shares ofVeritas Global Pte. Singapore 

AS ,AU ING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Consultants 

31st March 2019 

Mar-19 

USD 

74 

74 

Mar-18 

USD 

74 

74 

The value of above Investments in Subsidary are confirmed by the management. 

7.Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash in hand 

Cash at Bank 

927 

1,505,999 

1,506,926 

Cash and Cash Equivalents are items, which are readily convertible to known amounts of Cash 

and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. 

C1l11llllttlative Bank Reconciliation: 

Bank Balance as per bank statement 

Add: Cheques issued but not cleared 

Bank balance as per books of Accounts 

8.Trade & Other Receivables 

Trade Receivables 

Other Receivables 

Ageing Analysis: 

0-180 days 

5,999 

1,500,000 

1,505,999 

67,649,727 

451 

67,650,178 

67,649,727 

67,649,727 

1,155 

49,600 

50,755 

49,600 

49,600 

85,626,207 

85,626,207 

85,626,207 

85,626,207 

The company uses an allowance account when recognizing impairment losses on its receivables unless 

otherwise determined that the likelihood of collection is remote, in which the Establishment directly charge~ 

the loss against its receivables. The management writes off receivables if after exhausting prudent collection 

procedures, the Management assessed that the possibility of collection is remote. 

The Management considers the all the trade receivables as good and hence has not made any provision for 

bad and Doubtful debts. 
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Notes to the financial statements 

9. Other Current Assets 

Deposits 

Loans & Advances 

Prepayments 

10. Bank Borrowings 

Bank Loan 

11. Trade & Other Payables 

Trade Pay abies 

Ageing Analysis: 

0-180 days 

12. Accruals & Provisions 

Provisions 

Accrued Expenses 

13. Shareholder's Loan Account 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Repaid during the year 

Addittional Loan taken during the year 

Balance at the end of the year 
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31st March 2019 

Mar-19 

USD 

2,068 

3,311 

5,379 

13,148,372 

13,148,372 

13,148,372 

13,148,372 

1,361 

3,148 

4,509 

21,875 

1,575,933 

1,597,808 

Mar-18 

USD 

2,068 

3,311 

17,783 

23,162 

17,150,000 

17,150,000 

24,594,528 

24,594,528 

24,594,528 

24,594,528 

57,069 

19,543 

76,612 

639,797 

(617,922) 

21,875 
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Notes to the financial statements 

14. Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Add: Net profit for the year 

Less: Dividend Paid 

Balance at the end of the year 

F. Sales 

Sales 

Geographical analysis 

Outside UAE 

F. Cost of Sales 

Opening Stock 

Net Purchases (including Direct Cost) 

G. General and Administration Expenses 

Rent & Accommodation 

Printing & Stationery Expenses 

Postage & Courier Charges 

Bad Debts 

Travelling Expenses 

Communication And Utilities 

License, Professional & Legal Charges 

Forex Loss 

Conveyance Expenses 

General Expenses 
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TING 
Chartered Accountants 

Auditors and Consultants 

31st March 2019 

Mar-19 

usn 

39,503,441 

10,815,910 

(261,225) 

50,058,126 

174,091,660 

174,091,660 

174,091,660 

174,091,660 

162,475,919 

162,475,919 

17,783 

1,231 

2,459 

5,278 

7,731 

5,824 

15,603 

20,755 

2,874 

31,810 

111,348 

Mar-18 

usn 

29,481,940 

10,282,726 

(261,225) 

39,503,441 

179,115,901 

179,115,901 

1,411,200 

166,532,675 

167,943,875 

15,556 

1,895 

1,511 

7,432 

7,574 

4,387 

2,803 

19,083 

60,241 




